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At Maruti Suzuki, we believe that all constraints whether 
external or internal have a brighter side to it. They encourage 
us to question the status quo, think afresh, work inwards, 
innovate and help us identify new opportunities and create 
new pathways of progress.

Ever since inception, we have always tried to understand 
deeply the diversity of Indian customers, and we choose 
path (products, technologies and services), which is right for 
them. The path that we prefer may be non-existent, 
non-traditional or fraught with challenges in the current 
scenario; but eventually, it lays the foundation for our 
future success. Following this principle, we have made our 
foundation strong enough to emerge unconstrained. 

With the business environment getting increasingly dynamic, 
we may come across at a crossroad to choose or create 
a new path. Be it in the area of technology or product or 
customer interface or other business function. We continue to 
follow our principle of choosing and creating a path, which is 
right for Indian customers and strive to remain unconstrained 
in future as well. 



Bringing more convenience 
at lower costs

At Maruti Suzuki, we felt that automatic transmission 
was the need of the hour for India. There were numerous 
constraints in offering this feature in small and price 
sensitive cars. Nevertheless, we made all efforts to offer a 

This path-breaking technology enhanced convenience 
for Indian consumers. Traditional auto transmissions 
are not only expensive to own, but have a high running 
cost as well. AGS technology overcame both these 
disadvantages. 
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When we began our journey, we realised that India needed 

unthinkable at a time when all the enablers of democratising car 

was the right path for the long term. Despite constraints, we 
continued our journey on our chosen track.  

Small car success provided India a great volume. It helped the 
country move up the ladder in the world ranking of car market 
from 27th position in 1985 to the 5th largest market in the world 
in 2015. The country is now poised to emerge as the 3rd largest 
market as envisaged in the Automotive Mission Plan by the 
Government.

This has also played a pioneering role in recognising India as a 
global small car hub. Volume brings in best-in-class technology, 

world-class quality products. It also elevates the country to a 
commanding position internationally.

Putting India on wheels

Map not to scale



 
model for more customer focus

On the production side, we sensed that with growing 
scale, we might not be able to devote enough time 
required for creating customer delight. As the Indian 
market is poised to become the world’s 3rd largest 
market, sharper customer orientation would be required. 

sharing some business responsibilities with our parent, 
Suzuki Motor Corporation. It is taking care of our further 
capacity additions. This arrangement will help us to 

functions like product development, R&D and sales 
infrastructure.

We have also sensed that there may be a threat to customer 
satisfaction in future if the dealerships need to relocate to a 
remote location due to unaffordable land lease rentals. To 
obviate this risk, we have chosen the path of securing land by 
purchasing land parcels for dealerships.

Services to remain 
in proximity of customers 

We also decided to address the growing need of Indian 
consumers for an enhanced buying experience. The result is the 
introduction of a premium channel – NEXA, which has been well 
received by our customers. We are also revamping our existing 
channel to provide our other customers an elevated customer 
experience.

Catering to the aspirations 
of global Indians 

Corporate Overview
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Following the principle of choosing right paths along the journey, at Maruti Suzuki we 
have strengthened our foundation to deal with disruptions in the market effectively.   

Supported the Government’s bold reform

The Government of India rolled out its seminal economic reform 
(demonetisation) in November 2016. This resulted in a lot of 
uncertainty in the market and an initial stress on sales. We 
focused our efforts on understanding customers’ need and 
identify solutions to make them comfortable.  

We geared  all our business partners and dynamic employees, 
a part of the strong foundation of the Company to act in unison 
and deliver what is right for the customer in that situation. The 
option of cashless transaction was provided at most customer 
touch points, in a move towards Digital India. This has helped us 
to travel an extra mile to support a well-intentioned bold reform.

Managed supply disruption  
with stakeholder support

Two of our vendors’ supplies were disrupted during the year due 

the challenge of serving the pending customer orders for several 
models. To successfully mitigate any adverse impact, we braced 
ourselves for an agile response. Key personnel were deployed 
to support the affected vendors, cross-functional teams were 
formed to coordinate, monitor and communicate the ground 
reality to the concerned stakeholders.

The bi-annual maintenance schedule was preponed and 
production plans were suitably altered to match demand. 
This resulted in higher capacity utilisation. While the effective 

stakeholders, helped avoid any untoward scenario, the 
events helped us gain key learnings. Duly imbibed across 
the organisation, these learnings will enhance our future 
preparedness.
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Li-ion

Committed to the next  
technology challenge

Government has come up with plan to rapidly promote the 
use of Electric Vehicles (EVs) in India. We also believe that 

the Government’s policy efforts as it’s a major step towards 
enhancing energy security of the country and making 
environment cleaner. We will not hesitate in introducing EVs as 
soon as we understand that the Indian customers are ready to 
buy them. Meanwhile, we will continue our efforts in enhancing 

vehicles, as a step towards electric mobility. 

As a starting point for developing an ecosystem for electric 
mobility, Suzuki Motor Corporation, along with Toshiba and 
Denso is setting up a Li-ion battery plant in India. This would 
help reduce cost and promote hybrids and EVs.

Corporate Overview
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5-year Performance Summary (` mn)

Particulars FY' 13 FY' 14 FY' 15 FY' 16 FY'17 FY' 17/16 
(% Change) 

Net Sales 426,126 426,448 486,055       564,412       669,094 19

EBITDA 42,768 51,871 67,129          88,844       103,530 17

PBT 29,910 36,585 48,682          74,437          99,413 34

PAT 23,921 27,830 37,112          53,643          73,377 37

EPS (`) 79 92 123              178              243 37

Net Worth 185,789 209,780 237,042       298,842       361,711 21

Current Liabilities 68,280 81,381 88,213       110,392       132,313 20

Total Liabilities 81,091 96,217 98,451       120,558       148,222 23

Non-current Assets 157,882 164,083 253,531       340,940       423,834 24

Current Assets 109,248 141,914 81,962          78,460          86,099 10

Total Assets 266,880 305,997 335,493       419,400       509,933 22

Operating Cash Flow 43,011 49,036 63,207          84,845       102,847 21

Free Cash Flow 5,693 14,109 31,720          58,518          69,124 18
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7.615.5

22.2 30.1
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FY’15

Graphs not to scale



Highlights 2016-17

Delivering across all Parameters

95.1%

#1
in J.D. Power Customer Satisfaction Index study 

for the 17th year in a row

15.5%
EBITDA Margin

47.4%
Market Share in Passenger Vehicles 

(Increase of 0.6% points)

Energy from Cleaner 
Sources 

Natural Gas 
Solar

Corporate Overview
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Quarterly Highlights
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5,000,000

Maruti Suzuki begins 
 

LCV Super Carry

India’s beloved Alto is now  
aero designed with a formidable  
fan following

and truck drivers and Road Safety 
Knowledge Centres crosses a  
historic landmark

cars exported globally (Sri Lanka, 
Chile, Philippines, Peru and Bolivia 
emerged as top markets)

units…and counting 
 
Swift remains 
the preferred 
car globally

Refreshingly
Relevant

From India to  
the World

Scorched by 200 
motorsport enthusiasts as 

14th Desert Storm Rally

smart hybrid 
car Ciaz

National 
launch of LCV 
Super Carry

becomes the largest selling sedan in the A3+ 
segment; sales crosses one lakh units

Strong body. Turbocharged diesel 

3 Million

1,500,000+

aruti Suzuki begins 

V Super Carry

he World
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100,000 cars sold

Innovative styling, spacious interiors, 
class-leading features, safety and fuel 

CII-ITC Sustainability Award

Forbes India Leadership 
Awards (FILA 2016)

recognises Maruti Suzuki’s contribution to road safety, 
youth skilling and employability, along with integrated 
approach to water, sanitation and rural education

becomes Indian Car of the Year 2017. 
Emerges as India’s top 10 selling 
models (83,000+ cars sold).  
Class-leading features. Future-ready 

bestowed the ‘Best CEO – Multinational 
Company’ award on Kenichi Ayukawa, MD  
& CEO, for adaptability to change, vision 
for India, strategic approach and innovative 
thinking

Vitara Brezza #

200th Showroom Inaugurated  
India’s fastest growing auto retail channel NEXA sold 
185,000+ vehicles since inception

#IGNIS

compact vehicle for millennials

Baleno RS
combines power and 
design to usher in 
a new performance 
segment
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Quarterly Highlights

was conferred upon R. C. Bhargava, Chairman, 
at the CNBC-TV18 India Business Leader 
Awards 

Hall of Fame AwardStart of 
Production 
from SMG, 
Gujarat
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Green Procurement

 
clean & 

100 km  
Green Procurement Guidelines 

Product Safety & Emissions

696,756

LOCAL TIER-I 
SUPPLIERS

SUPPLIERS
%87 %100

tonnes

Total Effective Control Technology   

%20
Baleno RS & Ignis

Sustainability Highlights
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 ISO 14001   

ENVIRONMENTALLY-
CONSCIOUS PRACTICES 

 

81,032 m3 

  

 

0.12 JGurugram plant

E N E R G Y  F O R 

%95
200litres

Zero 
 

Sustainability Highlights

 
%86
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providing quality 
 

Social Development

Industrial Training 
Institutes

CSR in three thematic areas 

403

6

Maruti Driving Schools

Institutes of Driving Training  
& Research 

 

   
Japan-India Institute for

villages

Manufacturing

I N  G U J A R AT

skilled manpower 
for manufacturing in 

India

24 
141

I N  A R E A S  O F

Water, 
Sanitation
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Whistle Blower &  
Internal Complaints  

resolution mechanisms

Risk Management System

Corporate Governance 

 

Conducive Work Environment 

Governance 

OF REGULAR 
WORKFORCE

State-of-the-art 
Maruti Suzuki 

%100

and 

System

Sustainability Highlights
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Product Portfolio

WagonR Alto 800

Baleno

Eeco

Ciaz

Dzire Vitara Brezza

Ertiga
Omni
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S-Cross Ignis

Ertiga

Alto K10

Swift

Celerio

Product Portfolio

Super Carry*Gypsy

*Super Carry is sold through Commercial Channel
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Message from the 
Chairman

 

`  
`

in India. 
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` 

R. C. Bhargava 

Message from the Chairman
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Message from the 
Managing Director & CEO
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`

 

.

Kenichi Ayukawa 

Message from the Managing Director & CEO



20 Maruti Suzuki India Limited

Mr. R. C. Bhargava

Mr. K. Ayukawa

Mr. O. Suzuki

Mr. T. Hasuike

Mr. T. Suzuki

Mr. S. Torii

S

S

NN

R

R

R

C

CA

Board of Directors

Board Committees
A

N

S

C

R

Mr. S. Ravi Aiyar
Deloitte Haskins & 
Sells LLP

Mr. A. Seth*
Mr. R. S. Kalsi*

*Additional Members
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Mr. D. S. Brar

NSA

Board of Directors

Mr. R. P. Singh

Ms. P. Shroff

Mr. K. Saito

Mr. K. Ayabe

C

A

Ms. R. S. Karnad

A N

A
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Executive Management Team

1. Mr. K. Ayukawa, Managing Director & CEO
2. Mr. S. Torii, Director (Production)
3. Mr. R. Gandhi, Sr. Executive Director (Production)
4. Mr. A. K. Tomer, Executive Director (Corporate Planning)
5. Mr. S. Y. Siddiqui, Chief Mentor
6. Mr. K. Yamaguchi, Executive Director (Production)

7. Mr. A. Seth, Sr. Executive Director (Finance)
8. Mr. M. Nishio, Executive Director (Finance)
9. Mr. M. Suzuki, Executive Director (Engineering)
10. Mr. Y. Suzuki, Executive Director (QA)
11. Mr. C. V. Raman, Sr. Executive Director (Engineering)

2

4

7 8 9 10
11

5
6

3

1
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12. Mr. T. Hashimoto, Executive Director (Marketing and Sales)
13. Mr. R. S. Kalsi, Sr. Executive Director (Marketing and Sales)
14. Mr. S. Ravi Aiyar, Executive Director (Legal)
15. Mr. C. S. Raju, Executive Director (HR)
16. Mr. S. Kakkar, Executive Vice President (Supply Chain)

17. Mr. S. Srivastava, Executive Director (International Marketing)
18. Mr. Y. Ozawa, Executive Director (HR)
19. Mr. P. Bannerjee, Executive Vice President (Service)
20. Mr. D. K. Sethi, Executive Director (QA)
21. Mr. R. Uppal, Executive Director (IT)
22. Mr. K. Suzuki, Executive Director (International Marketing)

12

14 15
16

17

18
19 20 21 22
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 36th annual report 

31st March, 2017.

Financial Results

(` in million)

2016-17

Total revenue

26,036

73,377

Retained Earnings

210,116 

73,377

Other comprehensive income arising 
(100) (61)

Balance at the end of the year  310,589 250,037 
*net of income tax of ` 58 million (previous year ` 38 million)

Financial Highlights
`

`

` `

stood at ` 73,377 million against `

Dividend
` `

st March, 2017 amounting to `
`

Operational Highlights

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Consolidated Financial Statements read with Indian Accounting 

provided in the annual report.

Extract of Annual Return

Annexure - A. 

Material Subsidiaries

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees  
and Investments 

Board Meetings

Board's Report
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Audit Committee

Independent Directors

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

d) 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) 

th 

Risk Management

Internal Financial Controls 

Vigil Mechanism

Related Party Transactions

Performance Evaluation 
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Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Annexure - B. 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

details are given in Annexure - C.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

complaint was received in March, 2017 and is under investigation. 

Conservation of Energy, Technology 
Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings 
and Outgo

as Annexure - D.

Corporate Governance

Secretarial Audit Report

secretarial audit is attached as Annexure - E. The report does 

Personnel

Annexure - F. However, as per the 

Cost Auditors

Auditors 

th 

th Annual General Meeting. As per the 

Crisil Ratings 

Quality 
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Awards/Recognition/Rankings 

• Golden Peacock Training Award 2016.

th time.

th CNBC 

 
2017 award. 

Imaging Awards 2017.

Annual Awards 2016. 

th Times Auto Awards.

Acknowledgment

authorities and all concerned without which it would not have 

continued patronage.

R.C. Bhargava Kenichi Ayukawa
Chairman

New Delhi
27th April, 2017
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I. Registration and other Details:
i. CIN
ii.
iii. Maruti Suzuki India Limited
iv.
v.  

 

vi. Yes
vii.   

 
 

 
 
 

II. Principal Business Activities of the Company:

 Sl. 

No.

1. 29101

III.  Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies:

 Sl. 
No. Associate held

1. Suzuki Motor Corporation N.A. Holding

2.

3.

6.

7.
Maruti Insurance Broker Limited

9. True Value Solutions Limited

10.

11. Bharat Seats Limited Associate 2(6)

12. Caparo Maruti Limited Associate 2(6)
13.  

Limited)

Associate 2(6)

Associate 2(6)
Krishna Maruti Limited Associate 2(6)

16. Machino Plastics Limited Associate 2(6)

Annexure - A
Form No. MGT - 9

Extract of Annual Return
st
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 Sl. 
No. Associate held

17. SKH Metals Limited Associate 2(6)
Nippon Thermostat (India) Limited Associate 2(6)

19. Bellsonica Auto Component India Private Limited Associate 2(6)

20. Associate 2(6)

21. FMI Automotive Components Private Limited Associate 2(6)

22. Maruti Insurance Broking Private Limited Associate 2(6)

23. Manesar Steel Processing India Private Limited Associate 2(6)
Magneti Marelli Powertrain India Private Limited 2(6)

2(6)

IV. Shareholding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise shareholding

during the 
Demat Total

share
Demat Total

share

A. Promoters

1. Indian

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 d) Bodies Corp 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00  0.00

Sub-Total (A) (1): 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

2. Foreign

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
 

Foreign Investor)
0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Sub-Total (A) (2): 169,788,440 0 169,788,440 56.21 169,788,440 0 169,788,440 56.21 0.00
Total Shareholding of Promoter 

(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)
169,788,440 0 169,788,440 56.21 169,788,440 0 169,788,440 56.21 0.00

B. Public Shareholding

1) Institutions

0 6.07 0

21,363,220 0 21,363,220 7.07 0

 c) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

 g) FIIs 0 0 0.60
 h)  Foreign Venture Capital 

Funds 
0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Investor)
0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Sub-Total (B)(1): 112,042,314 0 112,042,314 37.09 111,211,447 0 111,211,447 36.82 -0.27
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during the 
Demat Total

share
Demat Total

share

 2) Non-Institutions

 a) Bodies Corp. 11,023,071 0 11,023,071 0

  i)  Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital upto ` 1 lakh

7,032,061 7,036,676 2.33 2.66 0.33

  ii)  Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 

 
` 1 lakh

0 0.09 0 0.13

  i) Foreign Nationals 200 0 200 0.00 0 0.00 0.00

392,213 0 392,213 0.13 0 0.16 0.03

0 0.17 0 0.01

  iv) Trusts 0 0.33 0

Investor
0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Sub-Total (B)(2): 20,244,691 4615 20,249,306 6.70 21,075,843 4330 21,080,173 6.97 0.27
Total Public Shareholding  
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

132,287,005 4615 132,291,620 43.79 132,287,290 4330 132,291,620 43.79 0.00

C.  Shares held by Custodian 
for GDRs & ADRs

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total (A+B+C) 302,075,445 4615 302,080,060 100.0 302,075,730 4330 302,080,060 100.00 0.00

ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. No.

shares shares 

total shares

shares shares 

to total 
shares

1. Suzuki Motor Corporation

Total

iii) Change in promoter’s shareholding : There is no change

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.



Board's Report

Statutory Reports

33

iv) Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders - Other than directors, promoters and holders of GDRs and ADRs:

Sl. No. Shareholding Cumulative shareholding during 

 
held as on

Date
Decrease

 in shareholding
change held as on 

1

6.11

29719 6.12

6.13

6.07

6.01

17272071

2. 1.16   1.16

0.76

  0 0.00

3.
ICICI

0.69 0.69

  0.69

  0.69

  0.69

  0.69

  16362 0.70

  0.70

  2139129 0.71

  0.70

  0.71

  0.70

  0.70

  0.67

  0.66
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Sl. No. Shareholding Cumulative shareholding during 

 
held as on

Date
Decrease

 in shareholding
change held as on 

  0.66

  0.67

  0.62

  0.62

  0.63

  

  

  1122

  

  

  0.60

  

  

  

  

  11073

  37396

  

  

  

  

  7363 1609117

  

  

  

  

  3271

  

  

  

  

  

  776

0 0.00

0 0.00

  

  0.61

  

0.62   0.62

  0.60

  0.60

  

  

  1707000
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Sl. No. Shareholding Cumulative shareholding during 

 
held as on

Date
Decrease

 in shareholding
change held as on 

  37162

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  910

  13170

  

  1662627

  

  

  

  

  11399

  10602 0.60

  0.60

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

6.
 

0.60   0.60

  

  

  

  

  

7.   

  

  1213

767673

1962
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Sl. No. Shareholding Cumulative shareholding during 

 
held as on

Date
Decrease

 in shareholding
change held as on 

0.26

0.26

0.26

6912 791907 0.26

3630 0.26

0.27

1090930 0.36

2970 1093900 0.36

72221 1166121 0.39

0.39

0.39

1399329

9027

13672

  
ICICI

0 0.00   0 0.00

  

  3696

  3931 1603127

  

  

  

  

    

9. Copthall Mauritius Investment Limited   

  

  

  

6193

9266 1607192
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Sl. No. Shareholding Cumulative shareholding during 

 
held as on

Date
Decrease

 in shareholding
change held as on 

3907

3610

1630773

9070

17726

1669722

2266

1692

1662770

10632 1677179

  

10.
HSBC
HSBC GIF Mauritius 

1366699   1366699

1221277

676277 0.22

0.10

0.03

0.03

0.01
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Sl. No. Shareholding Cumulative shareholding during 

 
held as on

Date
Decrease

 in shareholding
change held as on 

0 0.00

  0 0.00

11.
Vanguard Total International Stock 

  

0.19

0.19

6619

0.26

923669 0.31

0.31

0.31

0.31

0.31

0.32

0.39

0.39

0.39

177931

 

12.  1337336 1337336

1399676

100000

1216721

123900
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Sl. No. Shareholding Cumulative shareholding during 

 
held as on

Date
Decrease

 in shareholding
change held as on 

62023

  

13.
HDFC

  

23

72

17772

1669107

31039

1633931
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Sl. No. Shareholding Cumulative shareholding during 

 
held as on

Date
Decrease

 in shareholding
change held as on 

327

9971

  

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. No.
Cumulative shareholding during 

1.

 
1(one) 1(one)

3. Directors  NIL NIL

2.

1(one) 1(one)

3. Directors NIL NIL

V. Indebtedness
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans 
Unsecured Loans Deposit

Total
 

(In `) (In `)

 
(31st 

(i) Principal Amount

Total (i+ii+iii) 2,309,475,660 2,309,475,660
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Secured Loans 
Unsecured Loans Deposit

Total
 

(In `) (In `)

 

• Addition

Net Change 2,526,900,492 2,526,900,492
st

(i) Principal Amount

Total (i+ii+iii) 4,836,376,153 4,836,376,153

VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
A. Remuneration to Managing Director and Whole-Time Directors

Sl. No. Total Amount
 

Mr. Kenichi Mr. T. Hasuike Mr. Shigetoshi Torii

(In `)  (In `) (In `) (In `)

1.

(c) 
100,000 100,000

2. Stock Option
3.

Commission
•
•

10,762,000
Total (A) 42,067,808 23,548,183 30,823,264 96,439,255
Ceiling as per the Act (` in million)

B. Remuneration to other Directors

Sl. No. Total Amount

(In `)1. Independent Director
Mr. Amal Ganguli

(In `)
Mr. Davinder 

Singh Brar (In `) (In `) Singh (In `)
900,000 1,100,000 900,000 600,000

• Commission 2,710,000 2,330,000

2.
Bhargava (In `) (In `)

Mr. Toshihiro 
Suzuki (In `)

Mr. Osamu 
Suzuki (In `)

Mr. Kazuhiko 
`)

600,000 200,000

• Commission

Total (2) 9,900,000 400,000 600,000 400,000 200,000 11,500,000

Total (B)=(1+2) Total Managerial 

Remuneration
15,395,000 5,345,000 4,210,000 3,330,000 200,000 28,480,000

Overall ceiling as per the Act (` In million)
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Sl. No.

(In `)
 

(In `)
Total 
(In `)

1.

2. Stock Option

3.

Commission

•

•

Total  19,575,800 21,665,000  41,240,800

VII. Penalties/ Punishment/ Compounding of Offences:

Companies Act

imposed

(give details)

A. Company

NILPunishment

Compounding

B. Directors

NILPunishment

Compounding

C.

NILPunishment

Compounding

R.C. Bhargava Kenichi Ayukawa
Chairman

New Delhi
27th April, 2017
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Annexure-B
Nomination and Remuneration Policy

1. Scope

2. Objective

and Senior Management.

competitive advantage. 

3. Board Diversity

including rules and regulations made thereunder, the Board  
shall have atleast one woman director, persons who have 

KMPs and Senior Management

attempt to gain direct or indirect personal advantage 
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Agreement.

1.2.  The KMPs and the Senior Management should possess the 

management, accounting, marketing, production and human 

5.  Evaluation of the Board, its Chairman, 
Individual Directors and Committees of 
the Board 

6.  Appointment and Removal of Non-
Executive/Independent Directors

1.1 Appointment

Board at appropriate times.

appointment as Independent Directors, the Board shall 

disclosures in relation to such appointments made.

1.2. Removal

7.  Appointment and Removal of Managing 
Director, Joint Managing Director, 
Whole-Time Directors, KMPs and 
Senior Management Personnel 

1.1. Appointment 

recommend their appointment to the Board including the 

1.2. Removal 
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8. Remuneration

9. Increments

with the process.

10. Review/Amendment
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Annexure 
Evaluation Criteria

Sl. 
No.

A. Independent Directors

B.

the Act
The Board Board

Independent Directors

C.
Act

Independent Directors

The Board
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1.  Brief outline of Company’s CSR Policy including overview 
of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken 
and a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and 
projects or programmes.

villages. 

Annexure - C
Annual Report on CSR Activities

licenses.

in this area. 

2.     The composition of the CSR Committee.  

Sl. No. Name

1 Chairman

2

3 Independent Director

years.

`

4.   Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount 
as in item No. 3 above)

`

  The 
`

`

spent to `
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(in `Crore)

Sl. 

No.

Sector in 

which the 

covered

 

 

were undertaken

programmes 

wise

Amount spent on the 

 

Cumulative 

spend up to 

the reporting 

period

implementing 

Direct

Community Development

1
Including Sewer Lines, Bore 

drinking water ATMs, Village 

toilets.

Sanitation and 1. Local

(Karnataka)

Direct and 
through 

implementing 

2

grounds, parks, village streets 
Development 

1. Local 20 13.73 Direct and 
through 

implementing 

3

students and all round 

Promoting 1. Local 0.26 Direct and 
through 

implementing 

Skill Development

1
Private Vocational and Industrial 

providing teaching aids etc.

Vocational 
Skills

Pan India 10.91 11.76 Direct and 
through 

implementing 

2 Skill enhancement in 

Training Institutes (ITI) Support 

material and practical training.

Vocational 
Skills

Pan India 7 1.23 Direct

 Road Safety        

1 Skill Development in Driving 

train the trainer, Development 

training, and sponsor driving 

drivers.

Promoting 

Vocational 
Skills

Pan India 0.26 17.71 Direct and 
through 

implementing 
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spending the amount shall be stated in the Board report. 

with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company duly signed by Director and Chairperson of the CSR Committee.

R.C. Bhargava Kenichi Ayukawa
Chairman

New Delhi
27th April, 2017

(in `Crore)

Sl. 

No.

Sector in 

which the 

covered

 

 

were undertaken

programmes 

wise

Amount spent on the 

 

Cumulative 

spend up to 

the reporting 

period

implementing 

Direct

2
Campaigns at college, 
schools, and during road 

on TV, radio, and print media.

Promoting Pan India 7.63 0.13 7.76 Direct and 
through 

implementing 

3 Promoting 1. Local 0.17 Direct and 
through 

implementing 

 Total (A) 87.20 82.69 3.93 86.62
CSR Administrative  
Overheads**

Common Administrative 

Grand Total (A+B) 89.45

* Overheads primarily include transport costs, stationery, refreshments, telecommunication charges etc.
** Administrative overheads include salary, training and capacity building of CSR staff. These expenditures are undertaken independent of the projects.
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Annexure - D
st March, 2017.

A. Energy Conservation

 
` 

1.  Energy Cost Reduction:

on pressure control mode and optimising inlet air to the gas 

short term power purchase agreements under open access.

2.  Energy Conservation:

treatment to reduce dosing pump operations. 

3.  Reliability / Process Improvement:

response with event recording.

4.  Safety Improvement: 

5.  Conservation of water:

 

B. Research & Development (R&D)
Vision:

developing various new models across segments. 

Technology:

•  Platforms: th

•  Powertrain: 
launched in Indian market.

•  Connected Technologies: Android Auto was introduced in 

driving, Automated Manual Transmission (AMT) variants 

Focus on Safety and Emission Regulations:
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In addition, various models were made compliant to new 

speed limiting device.

• Meeting upcoming regulations. 

understand and assimilate new technologies. 

papers were presented at various national and international 

• Comfort and Convenience:

convenience.

class).

in India.

• Improved Aesthetics:

lamp (Ignis).

• NVH and Safety:

• Weight Reduction and Fuel Efficiency improvement:

•  Benefits derived as a result of above R&D:

segment. 

onwards. 

`  
`

Future plan of action:



Maruti Suzuki India Limited

upcoming new models.

 

C.  Technology Absorption, Adaptation and 
Innovation

1.  Efforts made towards technology absorption, 
adaptation and innovation:

optimization.

•  Generate and implement value engineering ideas at design 

and cost targets. 
•  Special value enhancement idea generation activities done 

with vendors to reduce costs.

2. Benefits derived as a result of above efforts

•  High local content in new models leading to lower costs and 

3. Technology inducted:
•  Platform: 

•  Connected Technology: 

•   Powertrain: 

down on spares cost.

chassis area.

Year of import: 

Status of absorption: 

Expenditure incurred on R&D

 (` in million)

 Particulars 2016-17

A.

B. 2,913

Total 6,404 5,935

D.  Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo 
(Cash Basis)

were `
`

R.C. Bhargava Kenichi Ayukawa
Chairman

New Delhi
27th April, 2017
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Annexure - E
Form No. MR - 3
Secretarial Audit Report

st

To

Maruti Suzuki India Limited

Maruti Suzuki India Limited

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 

 

31st March, 2017, complied with the 

has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place 

st March, 2017 according to the 

including the provisions with regard to disclosures and 
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following:

We further report that 

the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
st March, 2017 

during the period under review is mentioned in Annexure - I.

Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 

We further report that 

We further report that 

st April, 2016.

th 

motion application on 01st March, 2017.

For RMG & Associates

CS Manish Gupta 
New Delhi Partner
27th April, 2017

Note: This report is to be read with ‘Annexure I and II’ attached herewith and 
forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure - I
Composition of the Board of Directors as on 31st March, 2017

Sl. No. Name Designation

1 Chairman 
2 Director
3 Mr. Osamu Suzuki Director

Mr. Toshihiro Suzuki Director 
Director 

6 Mr. Toshiaki Hasuike Director
7 Director

Mr. Amal Ganguli Director
9 Mr. Davinder Singh Brar Director 
10 Director
11
12 Mr. Shigetoshi Torii Director (Production)
Notes:

1) Mr. Ravindra Chandra Bhargava is the Chairman and Non-Executive Director.
2) Out of the total composition of Board of Directors, 1/3rd are Independent Directors.
3) Out of the total composition of Board of Directors more than 50% are Non-Executive Directors.

Annexure - II

Maruti Suzuki India Limited

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to 

For RMG & Associates

CS Manish Gupta 
New Delhi Partner
27th April, 2017
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Dividend Distribution Policy

th 

rd March, 2017.

time. 

Board

Dividend guidelines

Board approval

 

investments. 
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Corporate Governance Philosophy

practising sound corporate governance and upholding the highest 

Management Structure and Shared 
Leadership

Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors
Composition of the board
As on 31st

independent directors. Their composition is given in Table 1. 

Table 1: Composition of the Board as on 31st March, 2017

Sl. No. Name

Private
chairpersonship) 

Chairman

1 1  1

2 1 2

3 Mr. Shigetoshi Torii 1 1

Mr. Toshiaki Hasuike  2

1

6 Mr. Osamu Suzuki 1
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Sl. No. Name

Private
chairpersonship) 

Chairman

7 Mr. Toshihiro Suzuki 1

1

9 Mr. Amal Ganguli Independent  10 2 10  3

10 Independent 2  2 1

11 Mr. Davinder Singh Brar Independent  12  7  1

12 Independent 11 2

In terms of Regulation 26(1) of Listing Regulations:

•  Foreign companies, private limited companies and companies Board Meetings
th April, 2016, 

26th th th rd 

Table 2
meetings as well as the last annual general meeting (AGM).

Table 2: Board Meeting and AGM Attendance Record of the Directors in 2016-2017

Name
attended  

last AGM

Yes
Yes

 Mr. Shigetoshi Torii Yes
 Mr. Toshiaki Hasuike Yes

2 Yes
 Mr. Osamu Suzuki No
 Mr. Toshihiro Suzuki Yes

Yes
 Mr. Amal Ganguli 3 Yes
 Mr. Davinder Singh Brar Yes

Yes
Yes

Information Supplied to the Board
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Table 3: Composition as on 31st March, 2017 and Attendance 

Name Designation No. of meetings attended in 
2016-2017 (Total meetings 

held: 7 )

Mr. Amal Ganguli Independent Chairman
7

Mr. Davinder Singh Brar Independent 6
Independent

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the audit committee. Wherever required, other directors and members of the management are also invited. 
Mr. D.S. Brar chaired two meetings owing to absence of Mr. Amal Ganguli.

Committees of the Board
I. Audit Committee
Composition and Meetings
Table 3

th April, 2016, 26th th 
th th th 
rd

The Chairman attended the last annual general meeting to answer 

Role 

recommendations to the Board to take steps in this matter.



Corporate Governance Report

Statutory Reports

61

the candidate.

II. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Composition 
Table 4 

Table 4: Composition as on 31st March, 2017

Name Designation

Chairman
Mr. Davinder Singh Brar Independent 

The Company Secretary is the compliance officer and acts as the secretary 
to the committee.

Objective

Investor Grievance Redressal

st March, 2017.

III.  Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
Composition and Meetings 
Table 5

Table 5: Composition as on 31st March, 2017 and 
Attendance

Name Designation
attended in  

 
(Total meetings 

Mr. Amal Ganguli Independent Chairman 2
2

Mr. Davinder Singh Brar Independent 2
Mr. Toshihiro Suzuki 2

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee.

Terms of Reference
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and its goals.

Performance Evaluation Criteria for 
Independent Directors & Remuneration 
Policy

Remuneration of Directors
Table 6
ended 31st

st March, 2017

Name

(in `) (in `)

Sitting Fees
 

(in `)

Commission
 

(in `) 

Total
 

(in `)

99,00,000

Mr. Toshiaki Hasuike 1,00,000
 2,00,000 2,00,000

Mr. Shigetoshi Torii 1,07,62,000

Mr. Toshihiro Suzuki 6,00,000 6,00,000
Mr. Osamu Suzuki
Mr. Amal Ganguli  9,00,000
Mr. Davinder Singh Brar 11,00,000

9,00,000 27,10,000  36,10,000
6,00,000 23,30,000 29,30,000

st

st

Remuneration of the Non-Executive 
Directors

`

IV. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR)
Composition and Meetings
Table 7

Table 7: Composition as on 31st March, 2017 and 
Attendance 

Name Designation
attended in 

Chairman 2
2

Independent 2

Committee.

Terms of reference
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3.  To ensure compliance with the law, rules and regulations 

directors.

V. Risk Management Committee (RMC)
Composition and Meetings
Table 8

Table 8: Composition as on 31st March, 2017 and Attendance

Name Designation
attended in 

(Total meetings 

Chairman 1
1

Mr. Toshiaki Hasuike
(till 19th 

2016)

1

Mr. Shigetoshi Torii 20th 

2016)

1

Sales)

1

Vice President (Corporate Planning) coordinates its activities.

Roles and Responsibilities of the RMC

minimisation and mitigation process.

3.  Monitoring and reviewing risk management and mitigation plan. 

top management. 

General Body Meetings
Table 9: Details of the last three AGMs of the Company

Financial Year Location Date Time

Air Force 
Auditorium, 

 
New Delhi

th

th

th

th 

Management
Management Discussion and Analysis Report
The annual report has a detailed report on management 

Disclosures made by the management to the Board

with the promoters, the directors or the management, their 

such matters. 

Related Party Transactions

Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors 
and Senior Management Personnel

www.marutisuzuki.com

st March, 2017. A declaration to this 

Annexure - A. 
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assessment process were presented to the auditors and the audit 

its meeting held on 27th April, 2017. 

Legal Compliance Reporting

has developed comprehensive legal compliance scheduling and 

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading 
Practices

Enabling controls self-assessments through the “Controls Manager”

Identify 
Controls

Circulate 
online control 
feedback

Seek and report
inputs from
control owners

Key Steps Process for reporting

RACM Control 
Questionnaires

Control 
DashBoard

Survey 
Inputs

Approving 
Authority

Reviewing 

Fl
ow

 to
 U

pp
er

 H
ie

ra
rc

hy

Authority

Control 
Owners

RACM RACM*

* RACM: Risk & Control Matrix
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Shareholders’ Information 
Means of Communication

Financial results

Monthly sales/production
www.marutisuzuki.com.

News releases
www.marutisuzuki.com.

Website www.marutisuzuki.com contains a dedicated segment called 

Annual report

BSE Listing Centre & NEAPS  
(NSE Electronic Application Processing System)

Scores (SEBI Complaints Redressal System)

Exclusive e-mail Id’s for investors
investor@maruti.co.in 

investor@maruti.co.in

Request to members

Familiarization Programme/ Policy on 
Related Party Transactions/ Policy on 
Material Subsidiaries

Whistle Blower Mechanism

Details of Non-Compliance

Subsidiary Companies
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Additional Information
Annual General Meeting

th 

Financial Year
Financial Year: 1st April to 31st March

st

Book Closure
th August, 2017 

th 

Dividend Payment

` ` 
th 

th August, 2017.

Listing on Stock Exchanges

Table 10

Table 10: Stock Code

ISIN 

Stock Market Data
Table 11

Chart A 

Table 11: Monthly High & Low Quotation of the Company’s Equity Share

Month

High (`) Low (`) High (`)) Low (`)

Apr 16  3932  3930

Aug 16

Sept 16

Oct 16

Nov 16

Dec 16

 6233  6230

Mar 17  6226  6222
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Registrar and Transfer Agent
Karvy Computershare Private Limited

 

Share Transfer System

Shareholding Pattern
Table 12

st March, 2017.

Table 12: Distribution Schedule as on 31st March, 2017

Sl. 

No.  shareholders 

1
2 0.32  0.27
3  366 0.21

0.11  0.30
 116 0.07 0.27

6  763203
7 1.19

669
Total 175076 100.00 302080060 100.00

Chart A

2300

3300

6300

Maruti Suzuki Stock

M
ar

ut
i S

uz
uk

i S
ha

re
 P

ric
e

31000

30000

29000

22000

23000

26000
27000

10000

11000
12000

13000

16000

17000

19000

20000

21000
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Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity
As on 31st

Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange 
Risk and Hedging Activities

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any 
Convertible Instruments, Conversion Date 
and likely impact on Equity

Details of Public Funding Obtained in the 
last three years

Plant Location

Adoption of Non-Mandatory 
Requirements

Other Disclosures

Address for correspondence

I. Shares held in dematerialised form
Their Depository Participant(s) 

Karvy Computershare Private Limited

II.  Shares held in physical form
Karvy Computershare Pvt. Limited 

 or

Maruti Suzuki India Limited

investor@maruti.co.in
www.marutisuzuki.com

Table 13:

 Securities

shareholders who 

account

shareholders to 

whom shares 

account

1000 7  7 600



Corporate Governance Report

Statutory Reports

69

Annexure-A 
Declaration of the Managing Director & CEO

 www.marutisuzuki.com. 

st March, 2017.

26th April, 2017 Kenichi Ayukawa

New Delhi
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Regarding Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

Jitendra Agarwal 
Gurgaon Partner
29th 

To 
The Members of  
Maruti Suzuki India Limited

Corporate Governance

on 31st March, 2017, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 

Managements’ Responsibility

internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Opinion

Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 

31st March, 2017.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Overview
Economy

th 

India's GDP Growth Rate (%)

7.1

FY’17

Source: CSO, Estimates

th

 

1.3 (6.1) 7.23.9

Domestic Passenger Vehicle Industry Growth (%)

9.2

FY’17

Source: SIAM

Industry Petrol Diesel Mix (%)

FY’17

Petrol Diesel

Source: SIAM
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Brezza, continued to receive an unprecedented market response. 

MSIL Sales (Domestic + Exports) (Units)

FY’17

Source: Company

 
 

light commercial vehicles. 

` 73,377 million, 

TOTAL PASSENGER 
VEHICLES (PVS)

3,046,727

1,443,641

UTILITY VEHICLES (UVS)PASSENGER CARS

MSIL

2,102,996 761,997

1,095,891 195,741 152,009

181,734

VANS

PASSENGER  
VEHICLES

Source: SIAM
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1,310

252

MSIL Sales Network

FY’17

Commercial Channel

1,619

127

Source: Company

helped restore consumer demand within weeks and ensured 

Parts and Accessories

Exports

Domestic Sales

vehicle segment in the domestic market. The domestic passenger 

was the leader in almost all the segments in which it is present. 

 

MSIL Finance Penetration (% of Domestic Sales)

77

72

FY’17

Source: Company
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during car washing. 

Operations

tools was introduced. 

`

Safety

 
three principles

121,713

Export Sales (Units)

FY’17

72,622

Source: Company

Fluctuations in local currencies had an adverse impact on the 

other markets. 

Service
For a record 17th

among customers. 
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supplier plants causing disruption. Following these incidents, the 

Energy Conservation and Environment 
Sensitivity 

`

2 2

Logistics

Quality of Business 

across the value chain is critical to sustain leadership in the 

Bi-annual 
review

Quarterly 
review

Monthly 
review

Vertical/Locational 
Safety Committee

 
Location Leader

 
Division Heads

Central Safety 
Leadership

Committee (CSLC)

 
Director (Production)

 
Business Vertical Heads

 
strategic decisions and 

the organisation

Divisional Safety 
Committee

 
Division Heads

 
Department Managers,

*Union is also represented in the committee

Safety Committee  
Organisation

and take proactive actions

support implementation and 

6
Months Days
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Management Discussion & Analysis

 
 

higher volumes.

 

People development for Quality

0

700

2100 1,073

FY’17

Supplier Personnels

 
Source: Company

customer complaints.

Supply Chain

 

 
and monitored.

Human Resources
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health awareness sessions are conducted. 

 

Research and Development

 

th generation), which 

 

also helps in testing and validating products to meet regulations. 

Moreover, various models were made compliant with new 

Speed Limiting Device.

markets as well. 

Financial Performance
` 

` 
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Management Discussion & Analysis

` million)

 Parameters 2016-17 Change

1 Volume (Nos.)

Domestic

Total 1,568,603 1,429,248
2

Vehicles 

3

Net sales 

Other operating revenue 10,969

6 Other income

7 Total revenue 703,146 589,991

9 23,310

10 Finance costs

11 Depreciation and amortisation 26,021

12

13 Total expenses 603,733 515,554

14 99,413 74,437

23,317

16 2,719

17 73,377 53,643

Table 2: Financial Performance – Ratios (As a Percentage of Net Sales)

Parameters 2016-17 Change

Material cost (1.2)

Depreciation and amortisation 1.1

1.2

1.7

Treasury Operations 
 

 

 

Table 3: Investment of surplus funds (` million) 

 31-03-17

Debt Mutual Fund 273,658 193,048

Table 4: Income from investment of surplus fund (` million)

 2016-17

12
 612

21,203 12,019
Total 21,827 12,993
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approval process.

Risk Management

Outlook

there is optimism with regard to economic growth. Although there 

 

Disclaimer

Foreign exchange risk management

Internal controls and adequacy

procedures.

Information Technology

correction. 

Realty acquisition 
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Business Responsibility Report

Section A

 Sl. No. Details

1
2 Maruti Suzuki India Limited
3

www.marutisuzuki.com
investor@maruti.co.in

6
7

  

9  

 

Nil 

across India
10

America

Section B

 Sl. No. Details

1 Paid up capital (` million)

2 Total turnover (` million)

3 ` million) 73,377

` million)

6

7  
• Skill development 

Section C

 Sl. No. Other details Details

1 Yes
2 D No

3 No
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Section D: Br Information 
1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR
i. Details of the Director/Director responsible for implementation of the BR policy/policies

 Sl. No. Particulars Details

1
2 Name 
3 Designation

ii. Details of the BR head

 Sl. No. Particulars Details

1 NA
2 Name Mr. Kanwaldeep Singh
3 Designation Sr. Vice President, Corporate Planning 

kanwaldeep.singh@maruti.co.in

2.  Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies
(a) Details of compliance (Reply in Y/N)

 Sl. No. Principle1

1 2 3 6 7 9

1 Y Y Y Y N Y N Y Y
2 Y Y Y Y N Y N Y Y
3 Y Y Y Y N Y N Y Y

± ± ± ± ± ± ±

Y Y Y Y N Y N Y Y

List of Principles
Principle 1:  Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability
Principle 2:  Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle
Principle 3:  Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees
Principle 4:  Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised
Principle 5:  Businesses should respect and promote human rights
Principle 6:  Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment
Principle 7:  Businesses when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner
Principle 8:  Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development
Principle 9:  Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner
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 Sl. No. Principle1

1 2 3 6 7 9

Y N Y Y N Y N Y Y

6 Y Y Y Y N Y N Y Y

7 Y Y Y Y N Y N Y Y
Y Y Y Y N Y N Y Y

9 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

10 N N N N N Y N Y Y

± Policies have been formulated over time taking into consideration national environmental & safety norms for vehicles, and international standards such as 
Global Reporting Initiative Framework, ISO standards on Quality & Environmental Management Systems, British Standard for Occupational Health & Safety, and 
ILO Standards on labour practices. 
*  Policies available on internal portal which are accessible only to employees
**  Policies available on Company website - http://www.marutisuzuki.com/code-of-conduct.aspx; http://www.marutisuzuki.com/code-of-conduct.aspx
 + Although standalone policies are currently not in place, grievance redressal mechanism is in place to address stakeholder concerns regarding human rights 
and policy advocacy.

(b) If answer to the question at serial number 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options)

 Sl. No. P P P P P P P P P

1 2 3 6 7 9

1

2

3

6

* The Company does not have a standalone Human Rights policy. Aspects of human rights, such as child labour, occupational health and safety and non-
discrimination are covered in its various Human Resource policies. 
** The Company does not have a standalone advocacy policy. For advocacy on policies related to the automobile industry, the Company engages with industry 
associations and expert agencies.

3. Governance related to BR
i.   Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, 

Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR 
performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 
months, Annually, More than 1 year.

 

Act 2013.

ii.  Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability 
Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? 
How frequently it is published? 

Section E: 
Principle wise Performance 
Principle 1: Businesses Should Conduct and Govern 
Themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability
1.  Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption 

cover only the Company? Yes/ No. Does it extend to the 
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Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs /Others?

independent entities. 

2.  How many stakeholder complaints have been received 
in the past financial year and what percentage was 
satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide 
details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

complaint, received in March 2017, is under investigation.

Principle 2: Businesses Should Provide Goods and Services 
That are Safe and Contribute to Sustainability Throughout 
Their Life Cycle
1.  List up to 3 of your products or services whose design 

has incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks 
and/or opportunities. 

cars, resulting in lower emissions. Five vehicle models Ignis, 

  Ignis

  Baleno RS

2 

service operations through initiatives such as automated 

2.  For each such product, provide the following details in 
respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.) 
per unit of product (optional): 

 (a)  Reduction during sourcing/production/distribution achieved 
since the previous year throughout the value chain? 

(b)  Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) has 
been achieved since the previous year? 

to determine the reduction in resource consumption during 

3.  Does the Company have procedures in place for 
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? 

(a)  If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced 
sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 
words or so.

suppliers. As on 31st 

components. As on 31st

4.  Has the Company taken any steps to procure goods 
and services from local & small producers, including 
communities surrounding their place of work? 

(a)  If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their 
capacity and capability of local and small venders? 
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learning and improvement. 

5.  Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle 
products and waste? If yes what is the percentage of 
recycling of products and waste (separately as <5%, 
5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 
words or so. 

Principle 3: Businesses Should Promote The Wellbeing of 
all Employees
1. Please indicate the total number of employees. 

Sl. No. 2016-17

Total Male Female

1 Regular manpower

6617 7193 390

Total Regular manpower (a+b+c) 12785 13259 14178 13716 462

2 Apprentice 1276 0

3 10626

Total manpower 22476 25161 29369 - -

*Data on Student Trainees is being additionally reported from reporting period 2016-17. 

5.  Do you have an employee association that is 
recognised by management?

Manesar Powertrain plant.

6.  What percentage of your permanent employees is 
members of this recognised employee association? 

2.  Please indicate the total number of employees hired on 
temporary/contractual/casual basis. 

st

3.  Please indicate the number of permanent women 
employees.

 
31st

4.  Please indicate the number of permanent employees 
with disabilities. 

31st
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7.  Please indicate the number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment 

March 31, 2017

Nil Nil

Two One

Nil Nil

8.  What percentage of your under mentioned employees 
were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the 
last year? 

(a)  Permanent Employees 

(b)  Permanent Women Employees 

(c)  Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees 

(d)  Employees with Disabilities

Presentation, time management, communication, negotiation, 

Associates

_

calendar. 

Principle 4: Businesses Should Respect the Interests of, 
and be Responsive Towards all Stakeholders, Especially 
Those who are Disadvantaged, Vulnerable and Marginalised
1.  Has the Company mapped its internal and external 

stakeholders? Yes/No 

stakeholders.

 Internal stakeholders:

 • Shareholders and investors

 External stakeholders:

2.  Out of the above, has the Company identified the 
disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalised stakeholders?

3.  Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company 
to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and 
marginalised stakeholders? If so, provide details thereof, 
in about 50 words or so. 

Principle 5: Businesses Should Respect and Promote 
Human Rights
1.  Does the policy of the Company on human rights cover 

only the Company or extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others? 
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2.  How many stakeholder complaints have been received 
in the past financial year and what percent was 
satisfactorily resolved by the management? 

regarding human rights during the reporting period. 

Principe 6: Business Should Respect, Protect, and Make 
Efforts to Restore the Environment
1.  Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the 

Company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others. 

2.  Does the Company have strategies/ initiatives to address 
global environmental issues such as climate change, 
global warming, etc.? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink 
for webpage etc. 

3.  Does the Company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks? Y/N 

   Through internal processes, potential environmental risks are 

4.  Does the Company have any project related to Clean 
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, 
in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any 
environmental compliance report is filed? 

5.  Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives on – 

  Maruti Suzuki has introduced innovative technologies such as 

 

6.  Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the Company 
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the 
financial year being reported? 

7.  Number of show cause/ legal notices received from 
CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to 
satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year. 

   As on 31st 

Public and Regulatory Policy, Should Do So In a 
Responsible Manner 
1.  Is your Company a member of any trade and chamber 

or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that 
your business deals with: 

2.  Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations 
for the advancement or improvement of public good? 
Yes/No; if yes specify the broad areas ( drop box: 
Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms, 
Inclusive Development Policies, Energy security, Water, 
Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others) 
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Principle 8: Businesses Should Support Inclusive Growth 
and Equitable Development
1.  Does the Company have specified programmes/

initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to 
Principle 8? If yes details thereof. 

2.  Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-
house team/own foundation/external NGO/government 
structures/any other organisation?

competencies.

3. Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative? 

development.

4.  What is your Company’s direct contribution to community 
development projects- Amount in INR and the details of 
the projects undertaken? 

`
activities, which includes `

5.  Have you taken steps to ensure that this community 
development initiative is successfully adopted by the 
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so. 

Principe 9: Businesses Should Engage with and Provide 
Value to Their Customers and Consumers in a Responsible 
Manner
1.  What percentage of customer complaints/consumer 

cases are pending as on the end of financial year. 

till date are pending. 

2.  Does the Company display product information on 
the product label, over and above what is mandated 
as per local laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks (additional 
information) 

3.  Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the 
Company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible 
advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the 
last five years and pending as on end of financial year? If 
so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so. 

4.  Did your Company carry out any consumer survey/ 
consumer satisfaction trends? 
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Company Profile
Maruti Suzuki India Limited is the leading passenger vehicle 
manufacturer in India with 47.4% of domestic market share.  
The Company was established in 1981 as a joint venture between 
Government of India and Suzuki Motor Corporation (SMC), 
Japan. Today, it is SMC’s largest subsidiary in terms of volume of 
production and sales. Suzuki Motor Corporation owns 56.21% 
equity stake in the Company. The Company is listed on BSE and 
NSE of India.

Facilities in India

Facility Location

Corporate office New Delhi 

Manufacturing sites •	 Gurugram, Haryana 

•	 Manesar, Haryana

R&D centre Rohtak, Haryana

Sales & Distribution Facility Hansalpur, Gujarat

Offices in India

Office Existing Channel New channel (NEXA)

Zonal offices 4 4

Regional offices 18 6

Area offices 20 8

Top 5 Countries for Exports

Country Units exported

Chile 12,931

Indonesia 8,508

Nepal 7,960

Sri Lanka 7,771

Bolivia 5,583

Sales and Service Outlets

Outlet No. of outlets No. of cities

Sales 2,020 1,652

NEXA 252 152

True Value 1,184 932

Commercial 40 38

Service 3,305 1,570

Management Systems Implemented

S. No. Management System Adoption year Coverage

1 OHSAS 18001 2012 Head Office, Gurugram and Manesar facilities

2 ISO 14001 1999 Gurugram and Manesar facilities

3 ISO 9001 1995 Gurugram and Manesar facilities

4 ISO 27001 2006 Head Office, Zonal Regional, Area Offices, Gurugram and 

Manesar facilities

Commitment to External Principles and Initiatives

Industry Body Memberships

S. No. CII Committee Position

1 IT & ITeS and CII National CIO Forum Member

2 CII National Committee on Bio Energy Member

3 CII National Committee on Design Member

4 Regional Committee on CSR, CII Northern Region Member

5 Committee on Affirmative Action, CII Northern Region Member

Scale of Organisation 
The Company’s operational structure consists of manufacturing 
sites at Gurugram and Manesar with an installed capacity of  
1.55 million vehicles per year. The Company achieved its highest 
ever sales of 1,568,603 vehicles in 2016-17. There were no 
changes in the Company ownership during the year and there was 
no significant change in the size of the Company during the year.
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The Company is committed to practising good corporate governance and upholding 
the highest business standards. The Company nurtures a culture which promotes high 
standards of ethical behaviour, individual accountability and transparent disclosures across 
its business operations. Robust governance practices have been implemented at all 
levels of the organisation. The details of governance structure are given under Corporate 
Governance Report section.

Corporate Governance Structure

Following services are offered 
to customers in association 
with the Company’s business 
partners:

Vehicle Servicing 

Maruti Finance 

True Value 

Maruti Genuine Parts 

Maruti Genuine Accessories 

Maruti Suzuki Auto Card 

Maruti Driving School

ServicesS. No. SIAM body Position

1 SIAM Treasurer

2 National and International Regulation Council Co-Chairman

3 International Relations and Trade Policy Co-Chairman

4 Trade Fairs Co-Chairman

5 Service Heads Chairman

6 Taxation Procedural Chairman

7 Finance and Leasing and Insurance Chairman

8 Human Capital Co-Chairman

9 Frontier Technology, EV and HEV Chairman

10 Styling and Design Co-Chairman

11 Emission and Conservation  Chairman

12 Central Motor Vehicles Rules and Safety  Co-Chairman

Shareholders

Audit 
Committee

Audit 
Team

Internal Auditors 
External Auditors 

Cost Auditors

Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee

CSR 
Committee

Nomination & 
Remuneration 

Committee

Risk 
Management 
Committee

Executive Risk 
Management 
Committee

Managing 
Director

Board of Directors

Company Profile
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Sustainability Report is assured as per AA 1000 AS (2008) 
standards (type 2, moderate level) by an independent assurance 
provider, DNV GL Business Assurance India Pvt. Ltd. There is 
an internal approval system in the Company for appointment 
of external assurance provider for Sustainability Report. The 
assurance statement is given at the end of this section.

Report Scope and Aspect Boundary

the Scope and Aspect Boundaries except setting up of a Sales & 

Distribution facility at Hansalpur, Gujarat. The restated data has 
been indicated throughout Sustainability Report.

Materiality Matrix 

content of Sustainability Report. Materiality matrix was jointly 
created by a cross-functional team with the help of an external 
sustainability expert. For reporting period, the materiality matrix 

internal and external both.

This is the Company’s 9th Sustainability Report which is for the 
period, 1st April, 2016 to 31st March, 2017. This report has been 
prepared as per GRI G4 guidelines, ‘in accordance’ with Core 
reporting option. The Company publishes its Sustainability Report 

annually and the most recent report was published for year  
 

boundaries for report preparation. 

• Stakeholder  

• Stakeholder  
 engagement  
 (on-going and focused)

Validation
•  Ensuring correctness 

of material aspects and 
boundaries 

•  Ensuring data 
correctness and 
completeness

Report review
Holistic analysis of previous report for improvement 

in reporting and operation of the Company

Stakeholder Inclusiveness

Com
pl

et
en

es
s

S
ustainability context

     Materiality

Prioritisation
•  Prioritisation of aspects as per 

 
on the basis of following:
• Impact area of an aspect
• Direct control of the Company
• Availability of system for data capturing

Maruti Suzuki’s  
Sustainability Report 
Preparation Process
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Material aspects for Maruti Suzuki India Limited

1

M
ed

iu
m

4

3

2

4

1

12

10

11
3

6

9

1

7
8

5

2

4

3

7

6

1
9

28

5

4

3

10

5

1
4

3
2

6
7

Lo
w

Low Medium

H
ig

h

High

5

6

7

1

24

5

15

3

2
8

Economic

1 Economic performance
2 Market presence (Wage ratio)
3 Indirect economic impacts
4 Procurement practices

Product responsibility

1 Customer health & safety
2 Product & service labelling
3 Marketing communications
4 Customer privacy
5 Compliance

Environment

1 Materials
2 Energy
3 Water
4 Biodiversity
5 Emissions
6
7 Products & services
8 Compliance
9 Transport
10 Overall (Environmental expenditure)
11 Supplier environmental assessment
12 Environmental grievance mechanisms

Human rights

1 Investment
2 Non-discrimination
3 Freedom of association & collective bargaining
4 Child labour
5 Forced or compulsory labour
6 Security practices
7 Indigenous rights
8 Assessment
9 Supplier human rights assessment
10 Human rights grievance mechanisms

Labour practices and decent work

1 Employment

2 Labour/ management relations

3 Occupational health & safety

4 Training & education

5 Diversity & equal opportunity

6 Equal remuneration for women & men

7 Supplier assessment for labour practices

8 Labour practices grievance mechanisms

Society

1 Local communities
2 Anti-corruption
3 Public policy
4 Anti-competitive behaviour
5 Compliance
6 Supplier assessment for impacts on society
7 Grievance mechanisms for impacts on society
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Boundaries
Aspect boundary includes operations and businesses that fall 
under the direct control of the Company.  Subsidiaries, joint 

ventures and associate companies where the Company has no 
operational control, have been excluded from report boundary. 

Maruti Suzuki’s 
circle of control 

U
nder direct control

Gurugram facility

Manesar facility

Rohtak R&D centre

Maruti Sales and 

 
 

Stockyards

Subsidiaries

Joint ventures

Outsourced services

Value chain

Suppliers Transporters Dealers 
(Sales & Service)

Under in
dire

ct
 c

on
tr

ol

Aspect Boundary for Sustainability Report

Material aspect Gurugram Manesar Rohtak Other facility/ Supply chain

Economic performance

Procurement practices 

Materials

Energy 

Water 

Emission 

Products & services

Supply chain

Employment

Labour/management relations

Training and education

Occupational health & safety

Freedom of association & collective bargaining

Child labour

Forced or compulsory labour

Local community*

Customer health & safety

Marketing communications

Compliance

*Includes Gujarat (Sales & Distribution) facility
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Mitigation Strategy

Unfavourable economic 
conditions

•
of sales and service network

• Focus on semi-urban and rural markets

Regulatory changes • Expansion of R&D capabilities, incorporation of advance safety features
•

Competition and changing of 

customer preferences

•
• Strengthening after sales service and attractive vehicle pricing
•  Introduction of advance technologies to ensure safety, lesser fuel consumption, lower carbon 

emissions and use of recyclable material in manufacturing

Talent migration • Employee motivation, career growth, high focus on training and development
• Employee satisfaction survey and action on the outcome of the survey
• Regular engagement with workers and ensuring safe working environment
• Direct communication between top management and workers

High level of dependency  

on value chain

•  Suppliers’ capacity building in different areas of business, establishment of supplier base close to 
manufacturing facilities

•  Working with transporters on subjects like health and welfare, road safety and driving training for 
drivers, accident data monitoring, equipping trailers with GPS devices

•
executives and service technicians

Quality issues •
manufacturing processes and capacity building for quality management

Breach of information security •
information, creation of information security champions

Corruption •  Mandatory adherence to code of business conduct by all employees and focus on  awareness 
among middle and senior management

Water scarcity •  Meeting most of the water requirement from canal water, taking up rainwater harvesting, recycling 
and reuse of water, and system improvement for reducing water consumption

Emissions •  Designing low carbon emitting vehicles, promoting CNG vehicles, undertaking process 
enhancement and use of solar energy and cleaner fuel for electricity production

Negative social impact •  Planning the Company’s operations to minimise disturbance to local communities, assessing 
Company’s impact on society and addressing concerns of local communities

Risk Management
Risk management process of the Company is driven by the Risk 
Management Committee, which is an integral part of corporate 
governance structure. The committee monitors and reviews 
risk management plan of the Company as per requirements of 
Companies Act, 2013. The Company has a Risk Management 

Policy approved by the Board. The Risk Management process 
consists of an Enterprise Risk Management Committee. 

stakeholder interviews, workshops and surveys, and their 
mitigation. Further, ownership of each risk is taken by respective 
verticals followed by mitigation plan and implementation.



98 Maruti Suzuki India Limited

Applying the Precautionary Approach
The Company undertakes Environmental Impact Assessments 
to identify potential impact of new manufacturing projects and 
expansion of existing facilities on environment. The Company 

assessment.

Stakeholder Engagement 
Organisations and individuals that are impacted by the 
Company’s operations and those who can potentially impact 

stakeholders. Stakeholder engagement is a continuous process 
and the Company has well established processes for the same. 
Since, this is a continuous process, engagement happens naturally. 
The Company engages with entire stakeholder groups during its 

group. Engagement approach to address concerns of stakeholder 
groups is similar to the approach adopted in preceding year. Details 
can be referred in last year's Sustainability Report. 
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Disclosure on Management Approach 
In the reporting period, economic performance of the Company 
continued to attain new heights. This was yet another year of 
highest ever sales. Further, the Company achieved highest ever 
annual production of 1.58 million vehicles. Customers’ trust in the 
Company and united efforts of Maruti Suzuki family are primary 
reasons for this accomplishment. 

Huge volume of vehicles produced and sold, make aspects of 
economic performance and procurement practices material 

Economic Performance

for the Company. For managing economic performance, 
the Company closely monitors external environment and 

Company responds accordingly with its products, expansion 
of manufacturing facilities, and sales and service network. The 
suppliers are also advised to build capacities and capabilities to 
meet current and future business requirements. Further, future 
plans are made considering long-term interests of the Company 
and its various stakeholders.

State of the art technology for manufacturing

Direct Economic Value Distributed
(` million)

Item 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

16,066 19,887   23,310
Shareholders’ fund 237,042 298,842 361,711
CSR spend 372.5 784.6 895

(` million)

Item 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

Leave encashment/compensated absence 1,830 2,101 2,540
Employees’ gratuity fund 1,715 1,967 2,371
Retirement  allowance 54 58 66
Provident fund 9,563 11,590 13,938
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Environmental Performance

Disclosure on Management Approach 
Maruti Suzuki, as a responsible corporate, has responded to 
environmental risks and opportunities with initiatives aimed at 
reducing the environmental footprint of its products and facilities. 
This approach is driven by the philosophy of ‘Smaller, Fewer, 
Lighter, Shorter and Neater’ of the parent Company, Suzuki 
Motor Corporation (SMC), and the Company’s well laid out 
Environmental Policy.

The nature and enormity of operations make material, energy, 

the Company. Environmental parameters are regulated by 
government rules and guidelines. The Company conducts Aspect-
Impact Analysis and Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) to 
identify and manage potential environmental impacts. The Company 
avoids adoption of any process, equipment or strategy which can 
cause environment, health and safety risks. If the risks are inevitable, 
mitigation plans are prepared and implemented. The Company has 
dedicated departments to manage different aspects of environmental 
performance and annual targets for key environmental performance 
which are set at the beginning of the year.

In 2016-17, the Company has continued to focus on 
incorporating environmental considerations during the different 
vehicle life cycle stages while preparing for future changes in 

national policies and regulations, evolving customer requirements 
and emerging sustainability challenges.

Vehicular emission: Vehicular pollution is a major environmental 

concern leading to stringent environment regulations by the government. 

The Company has invested in building R&D capabilities to design and 

develop environment friendly technologies. The Company has been able 

technologies, such as ‘Mild Hybrid: SHVS’ and ‘Boosterjet’.

Automobile manufacturers face the challenge of 

securing energy from cleaner sources at reasonable cost as compared to 

more polluting source of energy, such as coal. Recognising the challenge, 

the Company continues to use energy from cleaner fuel (Natural Gas, LPG/

Propane) and renewable (solar) through in-house generation of electricity. 

consumption per vehicle manufactured) this year, despite the increase in 

volume of vehicles produced.

Key environmental risks and 
opportunities
Maruti Suzuki acknowledges that 

environmental risks are an integral part 

of business, and recognises the need to 

address risks appropriately and leverage 

opportunities. Key risks and opportunities 

are mentioned here:

Environmental considerations during vehicle life cycle

Post production stage
Dispatch, sales & service

End of life stage

Material 
conservation

Emissions  
intensity reduction

Energy  
conservation

Green  
supply chain

Route rationallsation

Multimodal dispatch

Resource conservation

No substance of concern

and reuse

Waste  
reduction

Design stage
Research & Development

Production stage
Manufacturing, supply chain

Weight reduction

Customer safety

No substance of concern

Vehicle  
life cycle

1

2 3

4
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in improving the emission and safety performance of its vehicles. 
The Company’s Research & Development (R&D) facility at Rohtak, 
Haryana, has helped in launching new models and refresh 
existing ones at a fast pace. The Rohtak facility has state-of-
the-art vehicle design, development, testing and evaluation labs, 
besides unique test tracks that replicate real life terrains. Another 
critical factor for the Company’s success is the capability of the 
R&D engineers, who have been systematically trained on new 
product development and technology projects at SMC, Japan. 

Maruti Suzuki’s innovative R&D efforts over the years have 

engine, Smart Hybrid Vehicle from Suzuki (SHVS), 1.0 litre direct 
injection turbo engine and Boosterjet. The global research and 
development team at SMC and Maruti Suzuki has developed a 
new 5th generation vehicle platform called Suzuki’s Total Effective 
Control Technology. This has led to development of a portfolio 

such as Vitara Brezza and Ignis, leading to enhanced customer 
satisfaction.  The Company is currently gearing up to meet BS-VI 
vehicle emission norms by the year 2020, as mandated by the 
government.  

Maruti Suzuki’s product and services have extensive geographical 
reach in the country and abroad. This makes customer health 
and safety and product and services material aspects for the 
Company. The active and passive safety devices provided in the 
cars ensure passengers’ safety in the event of an accident. The 
Company continuously improves the products and services to 
minimise their environmental impact. Maruti Suzuki cars comply 

initiatives help in improving the performance and safety aspects of 
vehicles based on customers’ feedback and new regulations.

Maruti Suzuki strengthened the Environment Management 
Systems (EMS) at its manufacturing facilities for improvement 
in resource optimisation, emissions reduction and waste 
management. The Company continued to generate power mainly 
from captive natural gas and solar plants. There was reduction 
in energy consumption, fresh water usage and emissions per 
vehicle manufactured in 2016-17 compared to the previous year. 

reduced during the year.   

Extending responsibility beyond its own facilities to the upward 
and downward business linkages, the Company continued to 
encourage and handhold its suppliers, dealers and authorised 
service workshops to adopt environment-friendly practices. 

Maruti Suzuki ensures compliance to applicable legal 
requirements, including those on environment, occupational 
health and safety, social responsibility and product responsibility, 
through an online Legal Management System. The compliance 
report is submitted to the Board on a quarterly basis. In  
2016-17, there were no non-compliances to environmental laws 
and regulations and no sanctions (monetary and non-monetary) 
were imposed on the Company by the regulatory authorities.

I. Design Stage: Research & Development
Resource optimisation
The use of Suzuki’s Total Effective Control Technology (TECT) in 
Maruti Suzuki’s new vehicle platforms has optimised automotive 
body structures, thereby leading to pruning of kerb weight. 
The technology has made the vehicles up to 15% lighter, while 
also making them stronger and safer. Reduction of weight has 

RS and Ignis, built on the TECT platform, were launched in 
2016-17. Baleno RS, for example, is nearly 90 kg lighter than a 

the Company’s ‘One Gram One Component’ weight reduction 
programme has continued to reduce the raw material used in 
manufacturing of vehicles. 

Emissions reduction
Innovative engine technologies such as i-GPI CNG engine, SHVS, 
direct injection turbo engine and Boosterjet have led to reduction of 
CO2 emissions by vehicles during their usage phase. As of  
31st March, 2017, the Company sold 763,351 alternative fuel (LPG, 
CNG and SHVS) vehicles which helped save 696,756 tonnes of 
CO2 (tCO2) emissions. There has been a steady reduction in CO2 

Alternative fuel (LPG, CNG and SHVS) vehicles sold by the 
Company helped save 696,756 tonnes of CO2 (tCO2) emissions. 
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100 99.2 97.2 80.098.5 96.0 84.885.589.491.992.8 80.8

Weighted average CO2 

FY'06 FY'07 FY'08 FY'09 FY'10 FY'11 FY'12 FY'13 FY'14 FY'15 FY'16 FY'17

Note: Calculation methodology has been revised with respect to previous years’ report

FY'07 FY'08 FY'09 FY'10 FY'11 FY'12 FY'13 FY'14 FY'15 FY'16 FY'17

61,829 167,920113,190 219,004 260,100 322,347 382,258 437,382 502,218 604,210 763,351 

671,034 

521,656 

393,325 

285,594 

197,087 

127,525

78,956 
46,906 

23,405 8,6031,420 

Cumulative tCO2 avoidance from usage of alternate fuel vehicles 

Cumulative tCO2 reduction due to hybrids

Cumulative tCO2 reduction due to LPG & CNG vehicles

Cumulative sales (nos.)
2,827 

25,722 

Smart Hybrid Vehicle by Suzuki (SHVS): The mild hybrid diesel vehicle introduced by Maruti Suzuki in 2015, offers 

2 emissions. The basic mild hybrid engine runs on a combination of an 

internal combustion engine and an electric motor. The electric motor gets its energy from the high capacity battery, while the 

engine gets its energy from the fuel. Some models with this new mild hybrid technology include the Ertiga and Ciaz. The key 

features of SHVS are:

•  Power assist uses the 

stored energy in the high 

capacity battery to augment 

engine power during 

acceleration. This results in 

and prevents unnecessary 

fuel consumption.

•  An Integrated Starter 

Generator (ISG) which turns 

off the engine automatically 

when the car is idling, 

thereby saving fuel and 

reducing CO2 emissions.

•  A gear-shift indicator 

prompts the driver to 

change gears at correct 

speeds, resulting in 

•  Regenerative braking 

system facilitates the 

recovery and reuse of the 

kinetic energy captured 

from braking which is stored 

in the high capacity battery.
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II. Production Stage: Manufacturing & 
Supply Chain
Manufacturing
Material use optimisation
The key raw materials used in vehicle manufacturing are steel 
coils, ferrous and non-ferrous castings and paints. Details on 
consumption of these materials in 2016-17 are given under  
'Raw material and components consumed' section of this  
Annual Report.

The Company facilitates the recycling of scrap generated during 
vehicle manufacturing.  The aluminium and trim (very small pieces) 
scrap are recycled by suppliers into ingots and steel scrap is used 
for making smaller sheet metal parts (child parts).

Materials recycled (t)

Material 2015-16 2016-17

Aluminium scrap 3,485 3,892
Steel scrap 30,484 35,050
Trim scrap 68,013 79,170

Energy consumption by type (GJ) 

Direct / Indirect energy Source 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

Direct energy Natural Gas 6,106,698 6,379,212 6,752,438
Diesel (HSD) 88,704 84,940 176,237
LPG & Propane 22,946 20,709 22,959*
Gasoline 31,936 29,759 31,477
Solar 4,750 4,924 4,797

Indirect energy Grid electricity 101,215 126,100 142,401

Total

*Conversion factor has been taken from GRI G3.1 guidelines. In 2016-17, manufacturing of LPG vehicles were discontinued and the figure represents only the 
propane consumption.

Energy conservation
The Company generates energy required for manufacturing 
activities through natural gas based power plants at its Gurugram 
and Manesar facilities. The captive power production is 
supplemented with grid supply. The facilities continue to source 
a major share (95%) of energy requirements from cleaner (natural 
gas) and renewable (solar) fuel sources.

Percentage energy consumption by type  (%)

Energy from cleaner sources 
(natural gas, solar)

Energy from other sources  
(grid, diesel, gasoline)

95

5

Boosterjet
The 1.0 litre Direct Injection Turbo is a combination of the Direct Injection System and a Turbo Charger, and is able to deliver 

The turbo charger is driven on exhausts gases and spins to 217,000 rpm to supply more air into the engine, resulting in 

improved fuel combustion, and therefore, greater power. It uses a waste-gate valve that opens at low and mid-speed to reduce 

The direct-injection technology ensures fuel is being injected directly into the combustion chamber at high pressure aiding in 

combustion and giving better performance and reduced CO2 emissions.

Working together, the direct injection and turbo-charging, ensure good fuel economy at the low and mid-range speed and 

performance at high speeds. Currently, this engine is being deployed in the new Baleno RS.

Environmental Performance
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The Company’s overall energy consumption increased by 7.3% over 
the last reporting period, in line with this year’s production growth.  
However, the energy intensity ratio (i.e. energy consumption per 
vehicle manufactured) has reduced by 0.12 GJ over the same period. 

In 2016-17, the Company continued its energy conservation 
drive. Some of the energy saving initiatives are given below.

motors in air conditioning system and use of special coating 

•  Interconnection of cooling system of different boilers to 
reduce operation of power plant auxiliaries. 

•  Use of single chemical in place of multiple chemicals for water 
treatment to reduce dosing pump operations. 

Water conservation
The Company is striving to reduce its dependence on scarce 
groundwater resources as well as conserve fresh water at its 
manufacturing locations through recycling and reuse. 

In 2016-17, an overall reduction of 35% in groundwater consumption 
was achieved, compared to the previous year. The Gurugram facility 
was able to completely shift from ground water to canal water source.

Energy intensity ratio (GJ)

4.86

FY'15

4.67

FY'16

4.55

FY'17

36,071

13,945

21,747

Groundwater consumption (m3)

FY'15 FY'16 FY'17

Compared to 2015-16, the overall fresh water consumption has 
reduced by 3.4% and the water intensity (water consumption per 
vehicle manufactured) has reduced by approximately 200 litres.

Fresh water consumption by source (m3)

Water source 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

Surface water  
(canal water)

2,352,632 2,346,326 2,287,073

Ground water  
(tube well water)

36,071 21,747 13,945

Rainwater 6,871 39,668 25,691

Total

Water conservation initiatives during the year included the 
following:

•  Installation of air washers and closed cycle type cooling 
towers for paint shops. 

•  Increased recycling of water by augmenting tertiary treatment 

•  Enhanced use of condensate recovery from steam distribution 
system. 

•  Use of solenoid for interlocking of water supply in casting shop.

•  Construction of 40 groundwater recharge wells within facility 
premises.

The Company continued to recycle and reuse water treated 

plants (STP) installed at the facilities. A portion (917,948 m3) of 
the treated water was used for development and maintenance 
of green areas inside the facilities and rest was used as industrial 
water and demineralised water for shops. There was no 
wastewater discharge outside the facility premises.

Water consumption intensity (m3)

1.85

FY'15

1.68

FY'16

1.48

FY'17
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In the reporting period, a new effort was made to collect 
rainwater from storm-water drains across the plant. From 18 such 
locations, rainwater was pumped and channelled to the STP. As a 

this led to a greater amount of recycled water than total fresh 
water intake. Further, recycled water was used in horticulture, 

shops. Total volume of reused water after recycling constitutes 
60% of total water (fresh water consumption + reused water).  

Recycled water (m3)

1,751,278

FY'16

2,191,079

FY'16

2,554,026

FY'17

Waste management
The Company follows the 3R principle for management of all 
types of wastes and special precaution is taken for handling, 
storage and disposal of hazardous wastes. All hazardous waste 
generated during operations are categorised, inventorised and 
either sent to the cement industry for co-processing (waste-
to-resource initiative) or to authorised recyclers. There was no 

Weight of hazardous waste by disposal method (t)

Disposal method 2015-16 2016-17

Sent to cement industry for co-processing 12,153 11,639

Sent to authorised recyclers 2,881 3,462

Note: In 2015-16, hazardous waste sent for co-processing included previous 
year's stock as well.

Emissions 
In 2016-17, total Scope-1 (direct) and Scope-2 (indirect) 
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions from manufacturing facilities 
were 394,052 tCO2e (tonnes of CO2 equivalent) and 30,848 
tCO2e respectively. The emissions were calculated on the basis 
of the IPCC 2006 guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas 
Inventories and User Guide (Version 8.0) of Central Electricity 
Authority (Ministry of Power).

The overall GHG emissions of the Company, comprising Scope 
1 (direct) and Scope 2 (indirect) emissions have increased by 
8% over the last reporting period. However, the GHG emissions 
intensity (total Scope 1 & Scope 2 emissions per vehicle 
manufactured) reduced marginally over the last reporting period.

GHG emissions by type (tCO2e)

Type 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

Direct (Scope 1) emissions 351,377 366,233 394,052
Indirect (Scope 2) emissions 21,926 27,317 30,848

Total

GHG intensity ratio (GJ)

0.28

FY'14

0.29

FY'15

0.28

FY'16

0.27

FY'17

Environmental Performance

Effluent treatment plant at Gurugram facility
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manufacturing locations are cooled by air washers. Therefore, 
the use of refrigerants with potential Ozone Depleting Potential 
is limited. The refrigerant used in the air-conditioning system in 
vehicles is R134a, which has no Ozone Depleting Potential (ODP).

Supply chain
The Company has one of the largest supply chain networks in 
the country with around 444 direct suppliers. Supply chain has 
two elements, in-bound and out-bound. In-bound supply chain 
includes sourcing of components for its vehicles and major value 
generation occurs at the suppliers’ end. Out-bound supply chain 
includes transportation of vehicles to dealerships across country. 
However, on a smaller scale, transportation is also done through 
specially designed railway wagons.

Local sourcing
The Company regularly aims to increase local sourcing of auto 
components. This reduces environmental impact, particularly from 
logistics, saves transportation time and boosts local economic 
growth. As on 31st March, 2017, 87% of the Company’s tier-I 
suppliers are located within a 100 km radius of its main operating 
facilities. 

Greening of supply chain
The Company promotes adoption of Green Procurement 
Guidelines (GPG) by tier-I suppliers. The Guidelines require 
suppliers to mandatorily avoid use of Substances of Concern (such 
as lead, cadmium, mercury, hexavalent chromium and asbestos) in 
their manufacturing process and products, establish EMS at their 
facilities and promote these practices among tier-II suppliers. As on 
31st March, 2017, all tier-I suppliers have signed the GPG.

The Company continues to monitor its supply chain operations 
through regular audits on parameters such as environment, 
safety management system, general working conditions, hazard 

Recognition for environmental management 
The Company regularly holds conferences and meetings to 
encourage sharing of good practices among suppliers. At 
these fora, suppliers are recognised for excellent/outstanding 
results in each aspect of quality, cost, delivery, development and 
management (QCDDM). In 2016-17, the Company instituted 
Environment Awards for outstanding efforts by suppliers in 
environmental management.

III. Post Production Stage: Dealers and 
Service Workshops
Environment-friendly systems in service network  
The Company is encouraging all its authorised service 
workshops, comprising 1,862 dealer workshops and 1,443 
Authorised Service Stations, to embrace systems and practices 

consumption. Notable progress was made in these areas during 
the year. 

Authorised service workshops are encouraged to embrace systems and 

consumption

263

FY'12

281

FY'13

300

FY'14

352

FY'15

400

FY'16

436 

FY'17

Vendor participation in yield improement activities

41

FY'11

45

FY'12

57

FY'13

69

FY'14

71

FY'15

75

FY'16

77

FY'17

Yield improvement
The Company is focused on yield improvement activities to 
conserve key raw materials used in manufacturing vehicles such 
as sheet metal, plastics, electrical and casting items.
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Systems implemented Workshops covered

Automated Oil management system 
Protects against oil spills during vehicle servicing, prevents spillage, prevents 
wastage of oil and improves productivity

609

597

595

567

Paint-less dent repair system
Avoids stripping of paint during dent repairing, which saves resource  
use and time

509

400

340

323

Automatic car and underbody washing system  
Reduces up to 20% of water consumption, delivers better washing quality and 
faster washing

880

779

610

245

Dry wash systems  
Special dry chemical wash for cars, reduced 216 million litres water use during 
the year while washing  2.28 million vehicles

1130

622

488

373

Paper conservation in service operations
•  76% of all job cards were opened through tablets at dealer 

workshops

•  Customer feedback was captured through telephonic surveys 
and E-feedback cards as well as through the Interactive 
Feedback System (Kiosk) placed at reception 

Service manuals for old as well as new models made available 
in CD-ROM (with objective of phasing out paper manuals in the 
near-term).

Environment Day 
On World Environment Day (5th June) 2016, the Company organised Environment Camps across 1322 authorised 

workshops to encourage customers to adopt environment conservation practices and effective use of resources.

Highlights
• Conducted free pollution check-up for 24,406 vehicles 

• Educated customers on fuel saving techniques and car maintenance

• Promoted water-less washing and dry wash

• Distributed plant saplings to customers

Route rationalisation and multimodal dispatch
The Company has continued to focus on multimodal dispatch, 
consolidation of stockyards and route rationalisation efforts 
towards reducing Scope 3 CO2 emissions from transportation.

Since the introduction of rail transport of manufactured vehicles 
using the double-deck merchandise train in 2009, the Company 
has attempted to increase transportation by railways and currently 
owns three rakes. In 2016-17, 87,747 vehicles were transported 
through the rail route as compared to 76,443 in 2015-16. 

The Company is also exploring ways to dispatch new cars through inland 
waterways in collaboration with Inland Waterways Authority of India (IWAI), 
Ministry of Shipping. A trial run was undertaken in August 2016.

IV. End of Life Vehicle (ELV) Stage 
The Company pioneered the adoption of European Union’s 
ELV standards for vehicles by ensuring that no potentially toxic 
substances are used in vehicles. This allows vehicles to be recycled 
in the most environment friendly manner at the end of their life cycle. 
Since 2015-16, all vehicles meet this standard after the Company 
was able to upgrade relevant suppliers to comply with ELV norms. 

FY’17 FY’16 FY’15 FY’14

Environmental Performance
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Disclosure on Management Approach 
Maruti Suzuki believes that employees are its greatest asset. It 
strives to create a conducive and safe work environment for them 

enhance their capabilities and grow in the organisation.

The Company promotes gender diversity and upholds the 
principles of human rights, especially those that relate to  
non-discrimination and freedom of association. 

The Company undertakes a wide range of social projects directed 
at making a difference to the lives of communities around its 
facilities and society at large. As part of its Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) programme, it focuses on three broad areas, 
namely Community Development, Skill Development and  
Road Safety. 

The Company has set up a CSR Committee of the Board and has 
a duly approved CSR policy. The Committee met twice in 2016-17 
to review implementation of approved projects, approve the CSR 
Annexure for the Annual Report and provide direction on social 
projects. In addition to the review by the CSR Committee, all CSR 
projects are centrally reviewed and monitored every month at the 
corporate level. Further, all CSR projects are audited by internal as 
well as external statutory auditors for compliance as per the law 
and CSR policy of the Company. 

Suzuki Foundation’ which began  operations in 2016-17. Going 
forward, the Company intends to undertake all its CSR activities 
through the Maruti Suzuki Foundation.

surveys and stakeholder interviews which  help the Company 
identify short-and long-term projects. Depending on the nature 

2016-17, the Company undertook a community satisfaction survey 
to gauge the satisfaction level of communities and identify gaps for 
further action. The Company also engaged with expert agencies 

revealed high satisfaction level of communities and improvement in 
their quality of life post implementation of the social initiatives.

Occupational Health and Safety
Maruti Suzuki has been steadfast in ensuring health and safety of 
every employee, assigning it utmost priority. All employees take 
a safety pledge to enhance sensitivity and commitment. Maruti 

Committee under the Factories Act, 1948 (India), having equal 
representation of workers and managers allows all aspects of 
production and non-production through a decentralised model that 
operates at a central, locational and divisional level.  In pursuance 
of the ‘zero accident’ goal, safety drills, trainings and awareness 

sessions are conducted on a regular basis. All employees, at the 

extinguishers. A recent innovation has been the development of a 

The ‘Safety Basic Principles’ guide has been formulated, based 
on the premise that all accidents are preventable and that safety 
is everyone’s responsibility. Following these principles has helped 
the Company to reduce accidents and injury rate. Unfortunately, in 
2016-17, two employees of an outsourced service company lost 
their lives in a fatal accident within the Company premises while 
undertaking sewage maintenance work. 

To prevent unsafe conditions and occupational disease, the 
Company has introduced engineering controls like automation, 
better ventilation, barriers between man and machine and 
administrative controls like rotation of manpower. Regular 
awareness sessions are conducted on hazards and use of 
personal protection equipment (PPE). These preventive measures 
and quality controls have contributed in ensuring that  no case  of 
occupational disease is recorded in the reporting year. 

Injury and injury rate           

FY'13 FY'14 FY'15 FY'16 FY'17

0.026

0.016

0.033 0.031

0.010

Injuries (nos) Injury rate (per 100 employees)

Social Performance

Accident and lost days rate

FY'13 FY'14 FY'15 FY'16 FY'17

0.00390.0075 0.1040 0.0394

41.4

Man hours worked (million hrs.) Lost day rate* (per 100 employees)

55.59 55.66 51.78 55.14 62.74
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Corporate Social Responsibility
In 2016-17, the Company’s CSR spend went up by 14% to  
` 894.5 million. The Company spent over 2% of its average  

Community Development

Maruti Suzuki is committed to improving the quality of life 
of people residing in local communities. It is working closely 
with communities, involving them in all aspects of project 
implementation, such as needs assessment, project design, 
monitoring and mid-course correction. Water, Sanitation and 
Education have emerged as the three most critical needs of the 
community. Ongoing efforts of the Company are transforming 
the lives of people residing in 24 villages in Haryana (Gurugram, 
Manesar and Rohtak) and Gujarat (Hansalpur). 

Water & Sanitation
The Company has a dedicated team working with communities, 
sarpanches and ward members to improve the water and 
sanitation condition in their villages. The programmes are 

Swachh 
Bharat Abhiyan. Overall, standards of sanitation and hygiene 
have improved with laying of sewer lines, construction of 
household toilets and undertaking of solid waste management. 
Simultaneously, behavioural change projects and awareness 
drives on health and hygiene are carried out with NGO partners 
on an ongoing basis. 

Waste collection vans and sweepers deputed for daily cleaning of the village

Social Performance

(` million)

189.4

FY'13

232.8

FY'14

372.5

FY'15

784.6

FY'16

894.5

FY'17
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Water and Sanitation Programmes Till 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Cumulative

No. of villages for intervention 10 11 3 24
2 villages

(6.4 km)

2 villages

(4.9 km)

2 villages

(10 km)

6 villages

21.3 km
Deployment of sweepers in Gurugram, Manesar and Rohtak villages 25 40 8 73
Waste collection trolleys - 13 5 18
Waste collection vans 2 7 - 9
Individual household toilets in Manesar, Rohtak, Gujarat and Bengaluru 106 1,401 1,100 2,607
Sanitation awareness (villages covered) - 2 3 5
Water ATMs in Manesar - - 4 4
Borewell, 3.75 lakh litres overhead and underground water reservoir in  
Hansalpur village (Gujarat)

- - 1 1

Water pipeline project in Aliyar village (Manesar) & Hansalpur village (Gujarat) - 800 m 5,940 m 6,740 m 

Partnered India Green Services

Distribute dustbins and guide households on waste segregation

Collect waste in segregated form in trolleys

Mobilise stakeholders on sanitation

Provide platforms for panchayat/ward 
members

Form mahila sangathans

 Motivate students and shopkeepers 
to adopt sanitation issues

Conduct 3rd party impact assessments

Review projects for improvement

Use good practices to scale-up and 
replicate in other settings

Sweepers clean streets and drains

Waste collection vans collect waste from every house

Construct garbage collection areas for disposal

Lay sewer lines

Repair and reconstruct 
open drains

Lay streets and pathways

Partnered Sulabh International to 
construct toilets

Make villages open defecation free

Restore dignity and privacy, especially  
for women

 Guide toilet owners on use and 
importance of maintenance

Provide 100% toilet coverage
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Comprehensive sanitation programme looks at all dimensions of sanitation, following a holistic approach
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Providing Safe Water through  
a Public-Private Initiative

Savita Chauhan 

Sarpanch, Village Bas Hariya in Manesar, Haryana

Pashupati Mishra is a pavement 
seller and one of many migrants 
who earn a livelihood in 
industrialised villages that dot 
Manesar in Haryana. For years, he 
drank untreated tap water leading 
to frequent diarroheal infections. 
The Water ATM installed right 
behind his ‘shop’ in Bas Hariya 
village now sees him start his day 
by buying two litres of clean and 
safe drinking water dispensed 
from a machine for as little as 35 
paise a litre. His is one of 7,000 

The Water ATM is a good 
example of a successful Public 
Private Partnership. The initiative 
was launched at the behest of 
Sarpanches in the area who 
were battling complaints of poor 
drinking water. They approached 

their woes. Water Life, a private 
company, provided technical 
expertise and the panchayat 
brainstormed on where the 
installation would be. Land was 
donated by the village along with 
an electricity connection for the 
borewell. Residents were made 

register for the service. While it 
is voluntary, number of users is 
increasing as word spreads. The 
community takes pride in their 
latest acquisition which also has 
eco-friendly aspects like recycling 
reject water for gardening and 

private enterprise with community 
involvement has helped create a 
win-win  situation for all.

Water is life and over 1,000-odd homes in our village 
were deprived of pure drinking water. We feel a sense 

of ownership towards the Water ATM, since it has 
brought together different agencies and has been 

installed in consultation with the community. Our village 
is a recipient of the Government’s Nirmal Gram Award 

and with initiatives like Water ATM, we hope to soon be 
declared an Adarsh Gram (ideal village).

Water ATM in Manesar village

the groom; or a pregnant woman with her frequent need to 

urinate having to  beg  someone in the family to accompany 

her; or a woman who has just delivered a baby, braving the 

stitches and discomfort and dragging herself to what could 

be a half to one kilometre walk one way. Each day was an 

ordeal for these women. Many more girls and women in the 

village had their share of toilet stories to tell, till the time Maruti 

Suzuki came and constructed household toilets helping 

Rekha Devi 

Mother of a one year old in Bas Hariya village, Manesar

Impact Assessment
The Company conducted a third party impact assessment 

of its Individual Household Toilet project under its Water and 

Sanitation programme in 2016-17. The key objective of the 

assessment was to assess the usage pattern and consumer 

feedback related to toilet construction that had been 

completed in the previous years. Findings of the assessment:

•  of  surveyed toilets were used regularly

•  of  surveyed toilets were found to be clean

•   households felt positive impact of toilets on their 

overall lives

•  Villagers reported reduction in frequency of water-borne 

diseases

•  Elderly reported ease of access and convenience with 

use of their newly constructed toilets

Social Performance
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Education
In 2006-07, the Company embarked on a two-fold plan for 
government schools: improve school infrastructure and also 
bring about a qualitative difference to academic learning levels.  
Working closely with the school administration, projects were 

st March, 2017, 
infrastructure in 47 schools has been upgraded, making them into 
a happy and safe place to be for over 25,000 students.  

Students learning through audio-visual training tool

Improving learning levels of students

Impact Assessment
The impact assessments undertaken in 2016-17 suggested 

an increase in ownership aspect and practice of hygiene 

among school students. 

 students 

during a focus 

group discussion 

they practice 

hand washing 

before and after 

their meals.  

  students 

interviewed were 

making efforts to 

keep their school 

environment 

clean by  using 

dustbins. 

 students 

attributed their 

increase in 

concentration  

to improved    

environment in 

classrooms.

School Infrastructure Upgradation: Constructing separate 
toilet blocks for boys and girls guaranteed privacy and 
convenience, sparing many from having to rush home to relieve 
themselves. Constructing water tanks along with providing 
furniture, lights and fans, whitewashing walls and repairing 
blackboards made in-classroom teaching more effective. The 
overall objective of infrastructure upgradation project is to create 
an enabling environment in the schools for learning. 
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Improving learning levels of students: While school 
infrastructure upgradation motivated students and faculty on 
a physical level, it was important to address the intellectual 
and academic aspects as well. The Company undertook a 
comprehensive survey of learning levels and the various forms of 
support required to improve academic performance. In line with 

School Infrastructure Development Projects Till 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Cumulative

Construction of separate toilet blocks for boys & girls 24 14 9 47
Creating drinking water facilities 12 18 6 36
Constructing mid-day meal utensil cleaning areas  8 18 6 32
Widening of windows and  ventilators for natural light  in classrooms 292 1,051 887 2,230
Improving Learning Levels
Recruiting supplementary teachers - 30 8 38
Introducing audio-visual training device - 16 11 27
Training school principals, government teachers and supplementary teachers  
(No. of teachers)

- - 109 109

Distributing Academic Excellence Awards - 152 728 880
Distributing scholarships for students in ITIs, Diploma & Engineering streams - 185 179 364

Rural Development Programme Till 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 Cumulative

Laying  of  ‘pukka’ streets  inside villages - 699 m 828 m 1,527 m
Construction/ repair of bitumen/ concrete road - 4,608.5 m 4,360 m 8,968.5
Construction of community hall 1 1 1 3

Rural Development Programme
Committed to improving overall quality of life of community 
members, the Company facilitates repair  work and revamping 
of existing infrastructure and creation of new facilities. Projects 

Company undertook projects like construction of community 
halls, crematorium repair and construction of roads. 

that study, the Company offers support through subject teachers, 
institutionalised academic scholarships for meritorious students, 
tuitions in special cases and teaching aids such as projectors. 
The learning level of students has shown a marked improvement. 
There is a yearning to learn among students.

Community hall in Manesar

Community Satisfaction Survey

In 2016-17, the Company sought to understand whether its Community 

Development programmes are in line with community expectations. To 

understand this, the Company appointed a third party to conduct a pilot 

survey to assess the satisfaction level of people living in the two adopted 

villages of Manesar. 

•  

infrastructure.

•  Over 
environment around their village.

• 

drinking water, sanitation facilities and the drainage facility available 

in the village.

•   community members
village streets and the roads. 

Social Performance
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Skill Development

With the world’s largest youth demography, India’s biggest challenge 
is to equip them with skills that are employable and to offer them 
avenues for sustainable growth. For long, the industry has lamented 
a mismatch between industry requirements and the technical training 
imparted, especially in Industrial Training Institutes (ITI). The Company 
has aligned itself with the Government’s vision of Skill India. As of 
31st March, 2017, it is working closely with 141 ITIs across 27 states 
and running three major programmes under its skill development 
initiatives.

• Upgradation of Government ITIs (covering all trades)
• Skill Enhancement in Automobile Trade at Government ITIs
• Japan India Institute for Manufacturing (JIM)

Upgradation of Government ITIs: In partnership with state 
governments, the Company is adopting ITIs and through its various 
interventions and upgrading physical infrastructure and workshops, 
training faculty while providing exposure to students on Japanese 

Trainers in Rohtak where on-the-job sessions on updated equipment 
and technology are provided for ITI faculty. 

Skill Enhancement in Automobile Trade: The automobile sector is 
evolving rapidly in terms of product technology, convenience features 
and customer expectations. To adapt to these changes, training 

this need, the Company has set up Automobile Skill Enhancement 
Centres (ASEC) at 60 ITIs. Each of these centres is equipped with a 
model workshop on which practical training is imparted by full-time 
trainers provided by the Company.

The Company has also introduced specialised courses on Auto Body 

with limited training facilities. Students get a feel of real work conditions 
by visiting workshops of partner dealers. The hands-on experience 
gives them access to latest information and technology, building their 
capacity to undertake quality service and repair of vehicles besides 
providing exposure on client interaction. 

In 2016-17, the Company  invited a Japanese expert through 
a Japan-based Human Resources and Industry Development 
Association (HIDA) to train teachers/students on latest technologies 
for a period of two weeks at ITI Pusa, Delhi. Students were imparted 
training on global best practices in vehicle service and repair and latest 
automobile technologies along with training in soft skills like discipline, 

Girl Students getting trained on the training vehicle provided to ITIs

HIDA trainer training students in ASEC. Students are trained on 
Japanese Best Practices along with latest technology and tools

Trainers are provided by Maruti Suzuki in Automobile Skill 
Enhancement Centres to train students with updated course
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Japan-India Institute for Manufacturing (JIM): In 2016-17, the 
Governments of Japan and India signed an agreement to create 
a pool of skilled manpower for manufacturing in India. To translate 
the vision of this partnership, the Company embarked on setting 

Patel (Pvt.) ITI, in Ganpat University, Mehsana, Gujarat.

Upgradation of Government ITIs (all trades) Till 2014 -15 2015-16 2016-17 Cumulative

Supported ITIs 27 4 10 41
No. of workshops upgraded - 9 71 80
Training of students (Nos.) 3,248 8,966 10,353 22,567
Training the teachers (Nos.) 483 709 869 2,061
Students visiting factories for industry exposure 2,578 2,546 2,901 8,025
Skill Enhancement in Automobile Trade
New tie-ups 85 15 10 110
No. of Automobile Skill Enhancement Centres 22 28 10 60
No. of Automobile Skill Enhancement Centres  - Body & Paint - 2 4 6

5,250 5,900 6,408 17,558
Total number of students recruited in dealer networks from supported ITIs 724 1,100 2,205 4,209

Signing of MoA between India and Japan for setting up Japan-India Institute for Manufacturing (JIM)

In addition to the technical curriculum, the JIM will impart training 

Quality Circles, based on curricula developed in Japan. The 
JIM will offer eight technical courses relevant for automobile 
manufacturing and servicing, and will begin in August 2017. 

Social Performance
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Finding Mentors and Gearing for an Industry Job

Jitender Kumar  

ITI Pusa Trainer

A big surprise awaited for 17-year old 
Shubham Maurya the day he walked 
into Pusa ITI’s automobile trade course 
section. Having visited two ITIs where 
his friends were studying to get course 
information, he did not know what a 
"company supported ITI" meant till 
he enrolled here. It was only when 

and practicals that he realised the 
edge he had over his contemporaries 
elsewhere. A meticulous curriculum 
with relevant lesson plans was backed 
by demos in the workshop where  

state-of-the-art equipment and 
guidance by trained faculty on latest 
car models and spare parts, ensured 
every student got ample time to 
practice. Ongoing sessions on soft 
skills, how to sit for job interviews 
and trainings by organisations like 
HIDA from Japan prepared him and 
his batchmates for the upcoming 
placement season. Additional time 
spent in company dealer workshops 
provided relevant exposure to service, 
management and practical side of 
automobile repair and maintenance. 

I feel students and trainers of ITI Pusa are very enthusiastic and motivated. Professionally run with 
Maruti Suzuki support, there is constant effort to upgrade equipment and bring to students the latest in automobile 

technology and engineering. The ASEC is a unique addition that gives students  
hands-on knowledge of the functioning of auto parts and machines preparing them for a job in the industry  

and for entrepreneurship.

Road Safety

Maruti Suzuki is committed to improving safety on Indian roads 
by imparting quality driving training and education. Providing 
skills, knowledge and attitudinal inputs to both road users and 
road drivers, the Company has strategically reached out to key 
segments of society since the year 2000.

Scientifically designed tracks at IDTR

Institute of Driving and Traffic Research (IDTR): Established 
in partnership with state governments, IDTRs offer training 

designed tracks and simulators. In keeping with the Company’s 
philosophy of making continuous improvement, Aritra, an  
app-based technology has been developed to make driving 

driving skills. 
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Maruti Driving Schools (MDS): Maruti Driving Schools go 
beyond just providing quality training to enhance driving skills. 
Through an updated curriculum that combines exposure to 
simulators and on-road practical training, the Company is trying 
to build a safe driving culture in the country. All MDS trainers are 

A special employment oriented driving training programme, 

corporates are partnering with the Company to train their company 
drivers and employees. The Company has partnered with Punjab 
government to set up driving schools within RTO premises. So far, 
22 schools have been set up in various RTOs of Punjab.  Following 

trained drivers, setting an example for other states.

Road Safety Knowledge Centres (RSKC): In an effort to curb 
road accidents and create a generation of safe and responsible 
road drivers, RSKCs have been set up in partnership with the 

for learner licenses.

Train the Trainer Programme: Investing in training faculty at 
Maruti Suzuki’s driving schools is both a priority and an ongoing 
effort. Updating trainers on latest technologies and standardised 
training delivery modules helps strengthen their level of dedication 
and expertise. These inputs play an important part in positioning 
them as a new generation of driving training professionals who 
in turn are responsible for providing state-of-the-art lessons to 
drivers of light and heavy motor vehicles.

Road Safety for Truck Drivers: As a community, truck drivers 
remain underserved. The Company works with truck drivers 
throughout the year. They provide driving training facilities that 

week-long road safety campaign for truck drivers, which includes 
competitions, mock sessions, guest lectures, quizzes and 
interactive activities that reinforce safe driving, provide information 

for HIV/AIDS are also part of  Jagriti. Every year, the programme 
sees a new value addition. In 2016-17, a lung and pulmonary test 
and session on nutrition and healthy diet were added much to the 
joy of the truckers who participated in the programme. 

Road Safety Education: The Company’s constant endeavour 
is to promote road safety through campaigns designed to suit 
different target groups aiming at behaviour change amongst 

Training provided on simulators in IDTR

Training on simulators with professional trainers Gurugram school children participate in Gurugram Road Safety Mega 
Festival, a joint initiative by Maruti Suzuki and Gurugram Police

Social Performance
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road users. It acquaints them with information on road safety, 
expanding the network of well informed and careful drivers and 
pedestrians who are taking responsibility for their safety and of 
other road users. A new addition to the training curriculum has 
been a set of animation videos with messages for advocacy 
and wider dissemination. The Company has partnered with TV 
and radio channels to further promote messages on road safety. 
Special programmes reach out to school students, in an effort to 
prepare the next generation of road users with correct information 
on road safety and driving.

City Specific Road Safety Programme: Launched in 

Bhavya Gurugram’ initiative has grown to gain acceptance and 

where it is currently in its second year of implementation. A study 
was conducted with an expert agency NATPAC to understand 

various events have been held to promote safe driving, reading 

rules. Special pedestrian drills are organised in partnership with 

Road Safety Programmes Till 2014 -15 2015-16 2016-17 Cumulative

Activation of Maruti Driving Schools 340 31 39 403
Sponsored training of drivers (new) 5,267 13,721 6,323 25,311
Sponsored training of drivers (existing) 14,327 21,851 31,009 67,187

Train the Trainers (new) 176 258 379 813
Train the Trainers (existing) 449 287 377 1,113
Support Punjab Government in setting up 32 Driving Training Centres - 1 22 23

- 1 1 1
60 40 100 100

- 5 15 20

Sandeep Malhotra 

Standing erect, taking the form of a human 

vehicles and people on a 45 km stretch 

points in Gurugram. Getting people to 
not talk on the phone while driving and 
crossing roads, making co-passengers 
assume responsibility for their lives by 
not jumping  lights, wearing helmets and  
strapping on their seat belts. This and 
more is done by 35-year old Rai Singh, 

with Maruti Suzuki, as part of the ‘Sabhya 

Road Safety programme. Three  busy 

fundamentals of road safety and human 
behaviour. Singh, apart from navigating 

found that lighting up dark streets with 

creating special cuts to facilitate vehicle 
movement, in consultation with Gurugram 

management. Commuters, pedestrians 
and vehicle drivers are appreciating this 
effort as they have turned more vigilant 
during their daily commute, making 

rules. These small steps have helped 
decongest the pile-up of vehicles and  
pushing and jostling of human bodies as 

improve their skills and get many a pat 
on the back for being do-gooders on 

Initially being mocked by commuters who questioned our authority was disheartening. With training, more 
information and mock demos we got better at managing pedestrians, commuters and vehicle drivers. We also 

began to feel a sense of pride and achievement as we played our part in saving precious lives.
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General Standard Disclosures

Page Number

Omission

Reason for 

Omission

Explanation for 

Omission

External 

Assurance

Strategy and Analysis
G4-1 16-17 NA NA NA

G4-3 56 NA NA NA
G4-4 22-23, 57 NA NA NA
G4-5 56 NA NA NA
G4-6 56 NA NA NA
G4-7 56 NA NA NA
G4-8 82 NA NA NA
G4-9 56 NA NA NA
G4-10 86-87 NA NA NA
G4-11 86 NA NA NA
G4-12 106 NA NA NA
G4-13 94 NA NA NA
G4-14 78 NA NA NA
G4-15 56-57 NA NA NA
G4-16 56-57 NA NA NA

 
G4-17 96 NA NA NA
G4-18 94-97 NA NA NA
G4-19 96 NA NA NA
G4-20 96 NA NA NA
G4-21 96 NA NA NA
G4-22 94 NA NA NA
G4-23 94 NA NA NA

Stakeholder Engagement    
G4-24 98 NA NA NA
G4-25 98 NA NA NA
G4-26 98 NA NA NA
G4-27 98 NA NA NA

G4-28 94 NA NA NA
G4-29 94 NA NA NA
G4-30 94 NA NA NA
G4-31 125 NA NA NA
G4-32 94 NA NA NA
G4-33 94 NA NA NA

Governance
G4-34 57, 58-68 NA NA NA

Ethics and Integrity     
G4-56 58-68 NA NA NA

GRI G4 (Core) Content Index
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Page Number

Omission

Reason for 

Omission

Explanation for 

Omission

External 

Assurance

Category: Economic
Material Aspect: Economic Performance
G4-DMA 99 122
G4-EC1 99 122
G4-EC3 99 122

Material Aspect: Procurement Practices
G4-DMA 99 122
G4-EC9 106-107 122

Category: Environmental    
Material Aspect: Materials
G4-DMA 103 122
G4-EN1 101-102 122
G4-EN2 103 122

Material Aspect: Energy
G4-DMA 103 122
G4-EN3 103 122
G4-EN5 104 122
G4-EN7 101-103 122

Material Aspect: Water
G4-DMA 104 122
G4-EN8 104 122

Material Aspect: Emissions
G4-DMA 101, 105 122
G4-EN15 105 122
G4-EN16 105 122

G4-DMA 105 122
G4-EN22 103 122

Material Aspect: Products and Services
G4-DMA 101 122
G4-EN27 101, 107 122

Material Aspect: Compliance
G4-DMA 101 122
G4-EN29 86-101 122

Material Aspect: Transport
G4-DMA 107 122
G4-EN30 107 122

Material Aspect: Supplier Environmental Assessment
G4-DMA 106 122
G4-EN32 106 122

Category: Social
Sub-Category: Labour Practices and Decent Work
Material Aspect: Employment
G4-DMA 77-78 122
G4-LA1 86 122
G4-LA2 86 122
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Page Number

Omission

Reason for 

Omission

Explanation for 

Omission

External 

Assurance

Material Aspect: Labour/Management Relations
G4-DMA 86 122
G4-LA4 86 122

Material Aspect: Occupational Health and Safety
G4-DMA 108 122
G4-LA5 75-76, 108 122
G4-LA6 108 122

Material Aspect: Training and Education
G4-DMA 108 122
G4-LA9 87 122
G4-LA10 87 122
G4-LA11 86 122

Material Aspect: Labour Practices Grievance Mechanisms
G4-DMA 86, 108 122
G4-LA16 86 122

Sub-Category: Human Rights   
Material Aspect: Freedom of Association and Collective Bargaining
G4-DMA 108 122
G4-HR4 86-87 122

Material Aspect: Child Labour
G4-DMA 108 122
G4-HR5 87 122

Material Aspect: Forced or Compulsory Labour
G4-DMA 108 122
G4-HR6 87 122

Sub-Category: Society
Material Aspect: Local Communities
G4-DMA 108 122
G4-SO1 47-49 122

Material Aspect: Anti-Corruption
G4-DMA 78 122
G4-SO3 85 122
G4-SO4 85 122
G4-SO5 85 122

Material Aspect: Anti-Competitive Behaviour
G4-DMA 78 122
G4-SO7 85 122

Material Aspect: Compliance
G4-DMA 101 122
G4-SO8 101 122

Sub-Category: Product Responsibility
Aspect: Customer Health and Safety
G4-DMA 100 122
G4-PR1 100 122

Material Aspect: Marketing Communications
G4-DMA 89 122
G4-PR7 89 122

Material Aspect: Compliance
G4-DMA 101 122
G4-PR9 101 122
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Independent Assurance Statement

Scope and approach 
DNV GL represented by DNV GL Business Assurance 
India Private Limited (‘DNV GL’) has been commissioned by 
the management of Maruti Suzuki India Limited (MSIL or 
Company) to undertake independent assurance of the Company’s 
Sustainability Report 2016 -17 in its printed format (the ‘Report’) 
for the Financial year ended 31st March, 2017. Our responsibility 

performance disclosed in the Report and in accordance with the 
scope of work agreed with the management of the Company. The 
intended users of this assurance statement are the management 
of the Company. Our assurance engagement was planned and 
carried out during June and July, 2017.

We performed our work using AA1000AS (2008) and DNV GL’s 
assurance methodology VeriSustainTM. DNV GL Verisustain is 
based on our professional experience, international assurance 
best practice including International Standard on Assurance 
Engagements (ISAE) 3000 Revised*, along with AccountAbility’s 
AA1000 Assurance Standard 2008 (AA1000AS (2008)) and 
the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Sustainability Reporting 
Guidelines Version 4 (GRI G4).

and quantitative information on sustainability performance 
disclosed in the Report covering Economic, Environmental and 
Social performance of the activities undertaken by the Company 
over the reporting period 1st April, 2016 to 31st March, 2017 and 
based on the GRI G4. We are providing a Type 2 Moderate Level 
of assurance based on AA1000AS 2008.

are based on data from Company’s Report and Accounts for 
year ending 31st March, 2017, which are subject to a separate 

expenditure data taken from the Company’s Annual Report and 
Accounts is not within the scope of our work.

We planned and performed our work to obtain the evidence 
we considered necessary to provide a basis for our assurance 
opinion and no external stakeholders were interviewed as part of 
this assurance engagement. 

Responsibilities of the Management of 
MSIL and of the Assurance Providers
The management team of Company has sole responsibility for 
the preparation of the Report and is responsible for all information 
provided in the Report as well as the processes for collecting, 
analysing and reporting the information presented in the printed 
Report. 

In performing our assurance work, our responsibility is to the 
management of Company; however, our statement represents 
our independent opinion and is intended to inform outcome of our 
assurance to the stakeholders of Company.  DNV GL provides 
a range of other services to MSIL, none of which, in our opinion, 

DNV GL’s assurance engagements are based on the assumption 
that the data and information provided by MSIL to us as part of our 
review have been provided in good faith. DNV GL was not involved 
in the preparation of any statements or data included in the Report 
except for this Assurance Statement. DNV GL expressly disclaims 
any liability or co-responsibility for any decision a person or an 
entity may make based on this Assurance Statement.

Basis of our opinion
A multi-disciplinary team of sustainability and assurance 

and sampled one of the two operational site of Company at 
Gurugram, Haryana, India. We undertook the following activities: 

•  Review of the current sustainability issues that could affect 
Company’s sustainability performance and are of interest to 

•  Review of MSIL's approach to stakeholder engagement and 
recent outputs, although we have no direct engagement with 
external stakeholders;

•  Review of information provided to us by the Company on its 
reporting and management processes relating to the GRI G4 
content Principles;

•  Interviews with selected senior managers responsible 
for management of sustainability issues and review of 
selected evidence to support issues discussed - we were 

1The VeriSustain protocol is available on dnvgl.com.

* Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical 
Financial Information.
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free to choose interviewees and interviewed those with 
overall responsibility for the programmes to deliver MSIL’s 
sustainability aspirations.

•  The sites we visited were selected based on their materiality 
to the Company for sustainability impacts as well as to 
give a geographical and divisional spread - site visit to the 

New Delhi to review processes and systems for preparing 
site level sustainability disclosures and implementation of 
management approach and sustainability strategies.

•  Review of supporting evidence for key claims and data in the 
Report. Our checking processes were prioritised according to 
materiality and we based our prioritisation on the materiality of 
issues at a consolidated corporate level;

•  Review of the processes for gathering and consolidating the 

•  An independent assessment of the Company's reporting 
against the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) G4 Guidelines  
‘in accordance’ Core option of reporting.

During the assurance process, we did not come across limitations 
to the scope of the agreed assurance engagement, except 
disclosures related to joint ventures, subsidiaries, outsourced 
operations, and other entities which are out of the reporting 
boundary as set out in the Report.

Opinion
On the basis of the work undertaken, nothing came to our 
attention to suggest that the Report does not properly describe 
MSIL's adherence to GRI G4 content Principles, General 

 
‘in accordance’ Core option of reporting as below:

a.  General Standard Disclosures: The reported information 
on General Standard Disclosures along with the referenced 
information generally meets the disclosure requirements for  
‘in accordance’ Core option of reporting. 

b.  Specific Standard Disclosures: The Report describes the 
Generic Disclosures on Management Approach (DMA) and 

below:

Economic

Environmental

• Transport - G4-EN30;

Social Labour Practices and Decent Work

Human Rights

Society

Product Responsibility 
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Observations 
Without affecting our assurance opinion we also provide 
the following observations. We have evaluated the Report’s 
adherence to the following principles on a scale of ‘Good’, 
‘Acceptable’ and ‘Needs Improvement’:

AA1000AS (2008) Principles
Inclusivity
The participation of stakeholders in developing and achieving 
an accountable and strategic response to sustainability.

The stakeholder engagement process is well established 
to identify sustainability challenges and concerns of diverse 
stakeholder groups considering the operations and the Report 
brings out key concerns of diverse stakeholders and its impact on 
stakeholders. In our opinion, the level at which the Report adheres 
to this principle is ‘Good’.

Materiality
The process of determining the issues that are most relevant to 
an organisation and its stakeholders.

The materiality determination process was revalidated based 
on inputs from key stakeholders and senior management of 

issues. The management of the Company has established internal 
assessment process for monitoring and management on a 
continual basis for their long term organisational sustainability. In 
our opinion, the level at which the Report adheres to this principle 
is ‘Good’.

Responsiveness
The extent to which an organisation responds to stakeholder 
issues.

The Report has brought out key responses to the materiality 
aspects and disclosed the strategies and management approach 

overall sustainability context of the automotive sector, within the 

Report adheres to this principle is ‘Good’.

Reliability
The accuracy and comparability of information presented in the 
report, as well as the quality of underlying data management 
systems.

and sampled operational site at Gurugram were found to be accurate 
and nothing came to our attention based on the sampling approach 

to suggest that reported data have not been properly collated from 
information reported from operational level, nor that the assumptions 

across some of the data inaccuracies and those were attributable to 
transcription, interpretation and aggregation errors and the errors have 
been communicated for correction. In our opinion, the level at which the 
Report adheres to this principle is ‘Good’.  

performance
We consider the methodology and process for gathering information 
developed by the Company for its sustainability performance reporting 
to be appropriate and the qualitative and quantitative data included in 

responsible were able to demonstrate the origin and interpretation 
of the data and its reliability. We observed that the Report presents a 
faithful description of the Company’s sustainability activities.

Additional principles as per DNVGL’s VeriSustain Protocol
Completeness
How much of all the information that has been identified as 
material to the organisation and its stakeholders is reported.

The Report has fairly attempted to disclose the General 

on management approach and performance indicators for 

and excludes other entities which are part of its consolidated 

adheres to this principle within the chosen reporting boundary is 
‘Acceptable’.

Neutrality
The extent to which a report provides a balanced account of an 
organisation’s performance, delivered in a neutral tone.

The disclosures related to sustainability issues and performances 
are reported in a neutral tone, in terms of content and presentation, 
however Report could further bring out responses related to the 
challenges faced during the reporting period at various geographical 

aspects, sustainability goals and targets etc.  In our opinion, the level 
at which the Report adheres to this principle is ‘Acceptable’.

Opportunities for Improvement
The following is an excerpt from the observations and 
opportunities for improvement reported to the management of 
the Company and are not considered for drawing our conclusions 
on the Report; however they are generally consistent with the 
management’s objectives: 
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For and on behalf of DNV GL

Vadakepatth Nandkumar Prasun Kundu
Assurance Reviewer,

Bengaluru, India, 29th July, 2017

www.dnvgl.com

•  Future reports may re-evaluate materiality for all entities 

boundary and bring out the impacts of material aspects 
related to Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries and disclose related 
sustainability performances;  

•  A system for periodic communication of sustainability 
performance may be evolved to disclose key sustainability 

performance disclosures in the Company’s website for the 

•  Adoption of sustainability best practices based on auto 
industry peers for further strengthening the existing 
sustainability practices and its associated business impacts 
may be explored.

Contact person for details: Mr. Ranjit Singh, General Manager (CSR & Sustainability) 
Maruti Suzuki India Limited, 1, Nelson Mandela Road, Vasant Kunj, New Delhi 110070 

Tel: 011-46781123, E-mail: ranjit.s@maruti.co.in
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of MARUTI SUZUKI INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements 

statements of Maruti Suzuki India Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017, and 

Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the 

Management’s Responsibility for the 
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 
stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

Auditor’s Responsibility

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account the 
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards 
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report 

statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 

depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind 

making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 

and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 

evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made 
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 

the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2017, and its 

Other Matters

year ended 31 March, 2016 and the transition date opening 
balance sheet as at 1 April 2015 included in these standalone 

statements prepared in accordance with the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor 
auditor whose report for the year ended 31 March, 2016 and 31 
March, 2015 dated 26 April, 2016 and 27 April, 2015 respectively 
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information prepared in accordance with the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS have 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this 

statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 

directors as on 31st March, 2017 taken on record by the Board 

2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and 

applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 

to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 

representations provided to us by the management we report 
that the disclosures are in accordance with the books of account 
maintained by the Company and as produced to us by the 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

Jitendra Agarwal

Partner

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Annexure “A” to The Independent 
Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even 
date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

reporting of Maruti Suzuki India Limited (“the Company”) as of 
31 March, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 

the Company considering the essential components of internal 

the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting

a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 

procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting

or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

Jitendra Agarwal

Partner

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Annexure B to The Independent Auditor’s 
Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, 

plant and equipment having a carrying value of ` 1890 million, 

provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the 
immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, 
are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet 

Particulars of buildings Amount as on 31-03-2017 
(` in million)

Remarks

located in Mundra Port
Title deeds 
are yet to be 

Ranchi
Title deeds 
are yet to be 

In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken 
on lease and disclosed as property, plant and equipment in the 

name of the Company, where the Company is the lessee in the 

Particulars of buildings Amount as on 31-03-2017 
(` in million)

Remarks

Land situated in 
Kolkatta

under litigation

during the year by the management at reasonable intervals other 
than for stock lying with third parties and tools and machinery 

inventories as compared to book records were not material and 

the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, 

covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and 

provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing 

the Company has not accepted any deposit during the year in 
terms of the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant 

by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records 
and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central 

Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, 

records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ 

Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 

cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March, 
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Forum where Dispute is pending Period to which the 
amount relates (various 

years covering the period)

Amount* (` In 
million)

Amount unpaid 
(` In million)

Supreme Court 2004-2006 1,098 1,098
High Court 1991-2007 11,368 8,919

2002-2012 45,147 42,428
Upto Commissioner (Appeals) 2007-2017 16 16

High Court 1997-1998 1 -
Supreme Court 2000-2006 323 323

High Court 1986-1994 517 517

Tribunal (CESTAT)
2002-2016 12,392 10,317

Upto Commissioner (Appeals) 2004-2016 66 62
The Finance Act, 1994 High Court 2009-2012 84 62

Tribunal (CESTAT)
2003-2015 3,357 3,182

Upto Commissioner (Appeals) 2010-2016 50 47
Customs Act, 1962 Customs Duty High Court 2004-2005 27 3

Commissioner Customs 1991-2014 51 51
2009-2010 16 -

Assessing Authority 1984-1989 4 4
Assessing Authority 1987-1991 47 45

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and 

offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term 

managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 

Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, for all 
transactions with the related parties and the details of related 

party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone 

allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 

not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors 
or directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or 
persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

Jitendra Agarwal

Partner

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Particulars  As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4  129,162  121,631  117,199 
Capital work-in-progress 4  12,523  10,069  18,169 
Intangible assets 5  3,730  3,469  2,923 
Financial assets
 Investments 6  262,147  188,754  106,554 
 Loans 7  3  4  6 

9  238  231  607 
12  16,031  16,782  16,446 

Total non-current assets  423,834  340,940  261,904 
Current assets
Inventories 10  32,622  31,321  26,859 
Financial assets
 Investments 6  20,137  10,568  32,960 
 Trade receivables 8  11,992  13,222  11,157 
 Cash and bank balances 11  131  391  183 
 Loans 7  25  31  21 

9  950  1,478  2,005 
21  4,854  4,854  4,916 
12  15,388  16,595  12,609 

Total current assets  86,099  78,460  90,710 
Total assets  509,933  419,400  352,614 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
 Equity share capital 13  1,510  1,510  1,510 

14  360,201  297,332  252,709 
Total Equity  361,711  298,842  254,219 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
 Borrowings 15  -    -    1,448 
Provisions 17  219  148  203 

18  4,640  1,943  884 
19  11,050  8,075  6,248 

Total non-current liabilities  15,909  10,166  8,783 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
 Borrowings 15  4,836  774  354 
 Trade payables
     Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 20  832  533  590 
       Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises
20

 82,841  73,540  56,217 

16  13,027  11,971  11,309 
Provisions 17  4,490  3,989  4,089 

21  8,036  7,956  7,311 
19  18,251  11,629  9,742 

Total current liabilities  132,313  110,392  89,612 
Total liabilities  148,222  120,558  98,395 
Total equity and liabilities  509,933  419,400  352,614 

In terms of our report attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP KENICHI AYUKAWA         SHIGETOSHI TORII
Chartered Accountants         Director

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Partner AJAY SETH         S. RAVI AIYAR

th April 2017

Balance Sheet
As at March 31, 2017
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In terms of our report attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP KENICHI AYUKAWA         SHIGETOSHI TORII
Chartered Accountants         Director

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Partner AJAY SETH         S. RAVI AIYAR

th April 2017

for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Particulars  For the Year 
ended 31.03.2017

For the Year 

I Revenue from operations 22  772,662  650,546 

II  23  22,798  14,610 

III Total Income (I+II)  795,460  665,156 

IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24.1  426,296  3,54,839 
Purchases of stock-in-trade 53  44,821  32,066 

24.2  (3,801)  69 
 92,314  75,165 

25  23,310  19,788 
Finance costs 26  894  815 

27  26,021  28,202 
28  87,228  80,377 

 (1,036)  (602)

Total expenses (IV)  696,047  590,719 

V  99,413  74,437 

VI Tax expense
29 23,317 20,414
29 2,719 380

 26,036  20,794 

VII  73,377  53,643 
VIII Other Comprehensive Income

14.4  (158)  (99)
14.5  2,361  99 

 2,203  -   
 61  44 

14.6  (72)  40 
 (72)  40 
 25  (14)

Total Other Comprehensive Income (A (i+ii)+B(i+ii))  2,217  70 

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII + VIII)  75,594  53,713 
Earnings per equity share 31

Basic
Diluted

Balance Sheet
Statement of Profit and Loss 
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(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended March 31, 2017 

a. Equity share capital
Amount

Balance at 1st April, 2015  1,510 
Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   
Balance at 31st March, 2016  1,510 
Changes in equity share capital during the year  -   
Balance at 31st March, 2017  1,510 

b. Other equity             

 

Reserves and Surplus Items of other comprehensive income
Reserves 

created on 
amalgamation

Securities 
premium 

reserve
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Equity instrument 
through other 

comprehensive 
income

Effective 
portion of 

hedge 

Total

Balance at April 1, 2015  9,153  4,241  24,738  210,116  4,440  21  252,709 
 -    -    -    53,643  -    -    53,643 
 -    -    -    (61)  105  26  70 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    53,582  105  26  53,713 
Payment of dividend  
(` 25 per share)

 -    -    -    (7,552)  -    -    (7,552)

 -    -    -    (1,538)  -    -    (1,538)
Transfer from retained earnings  -    -    4,571  (4,571)  -    -    -   
Balance at March 31, 2016  9,153  4,241  29,309  250,037  4,545  47  297,332 

 -    -    -    73,377  -    -    73,377 
 -    -    -    (100)  2,364  (47)  2,217 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    73,277  2,364  (47)  75,594 
Payment of dividend 
(` 35 per share)

 -    -    -    (10,573)  -    -    (10,573)

 -    -    -    (2,152)  -    -    (2,152)
Transfer from retained earnings  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Balance at March 31, 2017  9,153  4,241  29,309  310,589  6,909  -    360,201 

In terms of our report attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP KENICHI AYUKAWA         SHIGETOSHI TORII
Chartered Accountants         Director

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Partner AJAY SETH         S. RAVI AIYAR

th April 2017
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Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended March 31, 2017 

     

Particulars   For the year 
ended 31.03.2017  

 For the year 

A.
 99,413  74,437 

27  26,021  28,202 
Finance costs 26  894  815 
Interest income 23  (372)  (1,510)
Dividend income 23  (129)  (107)

28  632  1,353 
23  (209)  -   
23  (612)  (974)

Fair valuation gain on investment in debt mutual funds 23  (21,203)  (12,019)
Liabilities no longer required written back 22  (35)  (694)

 (320)  (190)
 104,080  89,313 

7  1  2 
9  (7)  376 

12  (320)  66 
10  (1,301)  (4,462)
8  1,237  (2,053)
7  6  (10)
9  635  258 

12  1,049  (3,200)
17  71  (55)
19  2,975  1,827 
20  9,785  17,916 
16  686  2,078 
17  501  (100)
19  6,622  1,988 

Cash generated from Operating Activities  126,020  103,944 
 (23,173)  (19,099)

Net Cash from Operating Activities  102,847  84,845 

Statement of Changes in Equity
Cash Flow Statement
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Particulars   For the year 
ended 31.03.2017  

 For the year 

B.
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress 4  (32,498)  (24,663)
Payments for purchase of intangible assets 5  (1,388)  (1,787)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4  163  123 
Proceeds from sale of investment in associate company 6  219  -   
Proceeds from sale of debt mutual funds 6  118,359  73,335 
Payments for purchase of debt mutual funds 6  (177,155)  (120,050)
Interest received 23  356  661 
Dividend received 23  129  107 

Net Cash from / (used in ) Investing Activities  (91,815)  (72,274)

C.
Proceeds from short term borrowings 15  4,836  774 
Repayment of short term borrowings 15  (774)  (354)
Repayment of long term borrowings 15  (1,535)  (2,773)
Finance cost paid 26  (1,095)  (921)
Payment of dividend on equity shares 14.4  (10,573)  (7,552)

14.4  (2,152)  (1,538)

Net Cash from  / (used in) Financing Activities  (11,293)  (12,364)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents  (261)  207 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  384  177 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  123  384 

Cash and cheques in hand 11  6  15 
Balance with Banks 11  117  369 

 123  384 

In terms of our report attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP KENICHI AYUKAWA         SHIGETOSHI TORII
Chartered Accountants         Director

JITENDRA AGARWAL
Partner AJAY SETH         S. RAVI AIYAR

th April 2017

Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended March 31, 2017 
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1 General Information 

Maruti Suzuki India Limited ("The Company") is a public limited 
company incorporated and domiciled in India, listed on the 

activities of the Company are manufacturing, purchase and 

activities of the Company comprise facilitation of pre-owned car 

2

2.1 Statement of compliance

under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 

 Upto the year ended 31st March, 2016, the Company prepared 

Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and other 
 

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of 

the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and 
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose 

2.3 Going concern

well as planned cost and cash improvement actions, and believe 
 

 The board of directors have taken actions to ensure that 
appropriate long-term cash resources are in place at the date of 

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and 

disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each 

recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and 

uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting 

 
 

2.5 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue 
and its related cost can be reliably measured and it is probable 

managerial involvement associated with ownership or effective 

results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of 

2.5.1 Sale of goods

Cash Flow Statement
Notes

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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continuing involvement of management to the degree associated 
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold which 
takes place on dispatch of goods from the factory and the port 

2.5.2 Income from services
Income from services are accounted over the period of rendering 

2.5.3 Income from royalty
Revenue from royalty is recognised on an accrual basis in 

2.5.4 Dividend and interest income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the 

to the Company and the amount of income can be measured 

2.6 Leasing

lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 

2.6.1 The Company as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-

cost increases, such increases are recognised in the period in 

2.6.2 The Company as lessee

of the Company at their fair value at the inception of the lease 

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance 

and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant 

are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are 

increases, such increases are recognised in the period in which 

Upfront amount paid for land taken on lease is amortised over the 

2.7 Foreign currencies
2.7.1 Functional and presentation currency

the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 

2.7.2 Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional 

the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 

2.8 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, 
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their 

2.9.1 Short-term obligations

the end of the period in which the employees render the related 
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services are recognised in the period in which the related services 
are rendered and are measured at the undiscounted amount 

Liabilities for leave encashment and compensated absences 

cycle after the end of the period in which the employees 
render the related service are measured at the present value 

discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting 

2.9.3 Post-employment obligations
Defined benefit plans

Any shortfall in the size of the fund maintained by the trust is 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of 

market yields at the end of the reporting period on government 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to 

adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other 

resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised 

Defined contribution plans

administered through a trust set up by the Company and the 

insurance policy to fund a post-employment medical assistance 

contribution to State Plans namely Employees’ State Insurance 
Fund and Employees’ Pension Scheme are charged to the 

Termination benefits

of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of the 

2.10 Taxation

2.10.1 Current tax

2.10.2 Deferred tax

assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and 

are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the 
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets 
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that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 

2.10.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the 

2.11 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition 
or construction less accumulated depreciation less accumulated 

property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for 

or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 

accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when 

Transition to Ind AS

with the carrying value of its property, plant and equipment 
recognised as at 1st April 2015, measured as per the previous 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual 
value
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method on a 
pro-rata basis from the month in which each asset is put to use to 
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated 

Estimated useful life of assets are as follows which is based on 

Building                                                           3-60 years
Plant and machinery other than Dies and Jigs  8-11 years
Dies and jigs                                                         5 years
Electronic data processing equipment                   3 years

          10 years
5 years
8 years

depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for 

All assets, the individual written down value of which at the 
beginning of the year is ` 5,000 or less, are depreciated at the 

` 5,000 

2.12 Intangible assets
2.12.1 Intangible assets acquired separately
Lump sum royalty and engineering support fee is carried at cost 
which is incurred and stated in the relevant licence agreement 

Amortisation is recognised on a straight line basis over their 

method are reviewed at end of each reporting period, with the 
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a 

2.12.2 Amortisation methods and useful lives
Lump sum royalty and engineering support fee is amortised on 

2.12.3 Deemed cost on transition to Ind AS
For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue 
with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as 
of 1st April, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous 
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2.13 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews 
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets 

the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs 

2.14 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost, determined on the 

raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and appropriate 

of inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing 

of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates 

in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 

tools valued at ` 5,000 or less individually which are charged to 

Machinery spares (other than those supplied along with main 
plant and machinery, which are capitalised and depreciated 

those valued at ` 5,000 or less individually, which are charged to 

2.15 Provisions and contingencies

obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that 

required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate 

there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the 

non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Company or a present obligation that 
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an 

2.16 Financial instruments

recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 

2.17 Financial assets

delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation 

entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the 

2.17.1 Classification of financial assets

•  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through 

•  those measured at amortised cost
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measured at amortised cost unless the asset is designated at fair 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

2.17.2 Investments in equity instrument at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

election (on an instrument by instrument basis) to present the 
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income 

elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus 

The Company has equity investments in certain entities which 

through other comprehensive income irrevocable option for all 

2.17.3 Equity investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint 
ventures
Investments representing equity interest in subsidiaries, 

associates and joint ventures are carried at cost less any 

if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 

2.17.4 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL)

recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other 
comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments 

Financial assets that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or fair 
value through other comprehensive income criteria are measured 

amortised cost criteria or fair value through other comprehensive 

or loss upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or 

that would arise from measuring assets and liabilities or 

Investments in debt based mutual funds are measured at fair 

measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with 

2.17.5 Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for 

2.17.6 Cash and cash equivalents

cash in hand, cheques and drafts in hand, balances with bank 

highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months 
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities 

2.17.7 Impairment of financial assets
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comprehensive income

instruments that are possible within twelve months after the 
reporting date); or 

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or 

the scope of Ind AS 18, the Company always measures the loss 

2.17.8 Derecognition of financial assets

2.17.9 Foreign exchange gains and losses

currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated 

Further change in the carrying amount of investments in equity 
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income 
relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in 

2.18 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
2.18.1 Classification of debt or equity

2.18.2 Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual 
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its  

2.18.3 Financial liabilities

cost using the effective interest rate method or at fair value 

2.18.3.1 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods or services 

2.18.3.2 Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction 

transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in 

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the 

party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets 

2.18.3.3 Foreign exchange gains or losses

and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting 

based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are 

currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at 

2.18.3.4 Derecognition of financial liabilities
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Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the 
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting 

immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a 
hedging instrument which is recognised in other comprehensive 

2.19.1 Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within 

with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when 

Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated 
only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded 
derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics 
and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through 

2.20 Hedge accounting
The Company designates certain hedging instruments, in respect 

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents 
the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged 
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy 

inception of the hedge and on an on-going basis, the Company 
documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in 

Changes in the fair value of these contracts that are designated 

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument 

gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in other equity 

2.21 Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is 
reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable 
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the 

be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the 
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency 

2.22 Earning Per Share
Basic earning per share has been computed by dividing the net 
income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding 

using the weighted average number of shares and diluted 

2.23 Dividends
Final dividends on shares are recorded on the date of approval by 

2.24 Royalty

2.25 Rounding of amounts

accompanying notes have been rounded off to the nearest million 
as per the requirement of Schedule III of the Companies Act 

3 Applicability of New and Revised Ind AS
 
Ind AS 7 has been amended in March 2017 to require an entity 

evaluating the requirements of the amendment and its effect on 

Further, the amendment to Ind AS 102 provides guidance to 

and awards that include a net settlement feature in respect 
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4

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Carrying amount of
   Freehold Land  19,039  18,452  17,852 
   Leasehold Land *  525  525  525 
   Buildings  16,574  14,314  13,252 

 90,389  86,065  83,804 
   Electronic Data Processing (EDP) Equipment  608  483  484 

 975  888  569 
 1,052  904  713 

 129,162  121,631  117,199 
 12,523  10,069  18,169 

 141,685  131,700  135,368 

* In the nature of perpetual lease               

` 5,139 million for which trial production commenced during the 

 

Freehold 

Land

Leasehold 

Land

Buildings

Machinery

EDP 

Equipment

Furniture, 

Appliances

Total

Cost or deemed cost
Deemed cost at 1st April, 2015  17,852  525  13,252  83,804  484  569  713  117,199 
Addition  600  -    1,776  28,243  343  531  594  32,087 

 -    -    -    (459)  -    (18)  (273)  (750)
Balance at 31st March, 2016  18,452  525  15,028  111,588  827  1,082  1,034  148,536 
Addition  587  -    3,257  28,210  518  307  523  33,402 

 -    -    (42)  (965)  (1)  2  (262)  (1,268)
Balance at 31st March, 2017  19,039  525  18,243  138,833  1,344  1,391  1,295  180,670 
Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment as at 1st April, 2015

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    714  25,590  344  194  147  26,989 
 -    -    -    (67)  -    -    (17)  (84)

Balance at 31st March, 2016  -    -    714  25,523  344  194  130  26,905 
 -    956  23,341  392  224  163  25,076 
 -    (1)  (420)  -    (2)  (50)  (473)

Balance at 31st March, 2017  -    -    1,669  48,444  736  416  243  51,508 
Carrying amount
Deemed cost at 1st April, 2015  17,852  525  13,252  83,804  484  569  713  117,199 
Addition  600  -    1,776  28,243  343  531  594  32,087 

 -    -    -    (392)  -    (18)  (256)  (666)
 -    -    (714)  (25,590)  (344)  (194)  (147)  (26,989)

Balance at 31st March, 2016  18,452  525  14,314  86,065  483  888  904  121,631 
Addition  587  -    3,257  28,210  518  307  523  33,402 

 -    -    (41)  (545)  (1)  4  (212)  (795)
 -    -    (956)  (23,341)  (392)  (224)  (163)  (25,076)

Balance at 31st March, 2017  19,039  525  16,574  90,389  608  975  1,052  129,162 
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4.1 Notes on property, plant and equipment
1 Immovable properties having carrying value of ` ` ` 14 million) are not yet 

rata cost amounting to `

4 Based on technical evaluation and market considerations, the Company has, with effect from 1st April 2016, revised the estimated 

current year being lower by `

5 Intangible Assets

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Carrying amount of
Lumpsum royalty and engineering support fee  3,730  3,469  2,923 

 3,730  3,469  2,923 

Lumpsum royalty 
and engineering 

support fee

Cost or deemed cost
Deemed cost at 1st April, 2015  2,923 
Addition  1,759 
Balance at 31st March, 2016  4,682 
Addition  1,206 
Balance at 31st March, 2017  5,888 
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
as at 1st April, 2015  -   

 1,213 
Balance at 31st March, 2016  1,213 

 945 
Balance at 31st March, 2017  2,158 
Carrying amount
Deemed cost at 1st April, 2015  2,923 
Addition  1,759 

 (1,213)
Balance at 31st March, 2016  3,469 
Addition  1,206 

 (945)
Balance at 31st March, 2017  3,730 

5.1 Notes on intangible assets               
1 Based on technical evaluation and market considerations, the Company has, with effect from 1st April 2016, revised the estimated useful life of intangible asset 

`
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6 Investments

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non-current
Investment in equity instruments
       - Subsidiary companies  91  91  91 
       - Associate companies  1,082  1,092  1,092 
       - Joint venture companies  152  152  152 

 7,301  4,939  4,839 
Investment in preference shares  -    -    -   
Investment in debt mutual funds  253,521  182,480  100,380 

 262,147  188,754  106,554 

Current
Investment in debt mutual funds  20,137  10,568  32,960 

 20,137  10,568  32,960 
Aggregate value of unquoted investments  275,324  194,614  134,932 
Aggregate value of quoted investments  7,010  4,758  4,632 
Market value of quoted investments  10,274  5,839  5,624 
Aggregate value of diminition other than temporary in value of investments  50  50  50 

6.1 Investment in subsidiaries               
 Break-up of investment in subsidiaries (carrying amount at cost)

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Unquoted investment (fully paid up)

 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 4,476,250  4,476,250  4,476,250 

 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 50,000  50,000  50,000 

Maruti Insurance Business Agency Limited
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 150,000  150,000  150,000 

Maruti Insurance Distribution Services Limited  
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 150,000  150,000  150,000 

 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 150,000  150,000  150,000 

Maruti Insurance Agency Solutions Limited 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 150,000  150,000  150,000 

Maruti Insurance Agency Services Limited 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 150,000  150,000  150,000 

Maruti Insurance Agency Logistic Limited 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 150,000  150,000  150,000 

Maruti Insurance Broker Limited 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 500,000  500,000  500,000 

Total aggregate unquoted investment  91  91  91 
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6.2 Investment in associates               
 Break-up of investment in associates (carrying amount at cost)

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Quoted investment (fully paid up)
Bharat Seats Limited
(Face value of ` 2 each)

 4,650,000  5  4,650,000  5  4,650,000  5 

Jay Bharat Maruti Limited
(Face value of ` 5 each)

 6,340,000  16  6,340,000  16  6,340,000  16 

Machino Plastics Limited
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 941,700  5  941,700  5  941,700  5 

Total aggregate quoted investment (A)  26  26  26 
 3,290  1,107  1,018 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Unquoted investment (fully paid up)
Caparo Maruti Limited 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 2,500,000  25  2,500,000  25  2,500,000  25 

Hanon Climate Systems India Private Limited 
(Face value of ` 100 each)

 518,700  52  518,700  52  518,700  52 

Krishna Maruti Limited 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 670,000  7  670,000  7  670,000  7 

SKH Metals Limited
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 2,645,000  49  2,645,000  49  2,645,000  49 

 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 125,000  1  125,000  1  125,000  1 

 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 4,437,465  57  4,437,465  57  4,437,465  57 

Bellsonica Auto Components India Private Limited 
(Face value of ` 100 each)

 3,540,000  354  3,540,000  354  3,540,000  354 

FMI Automotive Components Private Limited 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 44,100,000  441  44,100,000  441  44,100,000  441 

Krishna Ishizaki Auto Limited 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 -    -    734,880  10  734,880  10 

Manesar Steel Processing India Private Limited 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 6,840,000  68  6,840,000  68  6,840,000  68 

Maruti Insurance Broking Private Limited 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 231,275  2  231,275  2  231,275  2 

Total aggregate unquoted investment (B)  1,056  1,066  1,066 
Total investments carrying value (A) + (B)  1,082  1,092  1,092 
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6.3 Investment in joint ventures               
 Break-up of investment in joint ventures (carrying amount at cost)

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Unquoted investment (fully paid up)

 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 6,656,000  67  6,656,000  67  6,656,000  67 

Magneti Marelli Powertrain India Limited 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 8,550,000  85  8,550,000  85  8,550,000  85 

Total aggregate unquoted investment  152  152  152 

6.4 Other equity instruments              
  Investment in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Quoted investment (fully paid up)

 
(Face value of ` 1 each)

 26,995,200  5,857  26,995,200  4,090  26,995,200  3,913 

Sona Koyo Steering Systems Limited 
(Face value of ` 1 each)

 13,800,000  1,127  13,800,000  642  13,800,000  693 

Total aggregate quoted investment (i)   6,984    4,732   4,606 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Unquoted investment (fully paid up)
Denso India Private Limited 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 2,862,758  316  2,862,758  206  2,862,758  233 

Total aggregate unquoted investment (ii)  316  206  233 
Investment in equity shares of Section 8 Company

 
(Face value of ` 10 each)

 100,000  1  100,000  1  -   

Investment in equity shares of Section 8 Company (iii)  1  1  -   
Investment in other equity instruments [i+ii+iii]  7,301  4,939  4,839 

6.5 Investment in preference share              

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Western Paques (India) Limited  
(Face value of ` 100 each)

 500,000  50  500,000  50  500,000  50 

 (50)  (50)  (50)
 -    -    -   

6.6 Investment in debt mutual funds             

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

 253,521  182,480  100,380 
Current investment in debts mutual funds  20,137  10,568  32,960 
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Schemewise comparative investment for Balance Sheet Disclosure.

Description  Face  As at 

 `  31.03.2017  31.03.2017 
 Current Non  

Current 
 Current  

Current 
 Current  

Current 

  1,000  683,014  683,014  255,691  -    1,030  -    952  -    328 

 10  -    -    25,000,000  -    -    -    -    279  -   
 10 333,002,109  74,879,353  42,568,240  -    6,128  -    1,257  -    655 
 10  -    -    15,000,000  -    -    -    -    164  -   
 10  -    -    25,000,000  -    -    -    -    312  -   
 10  -    20,000,000  20,000,000  -    -    243  -    -    224 
 10  -    60,000,000  60,000,000  -    -    726  -    -    668 
 10  -    20,000,000  20,000,000  -    -    241  -    -    222 
 10  -    20,000,000  20,000,000  -    -    241  -    -    222 
 10  11,596,220  11,596,220  11,596,220  -    579  -    519  -    487 
 10  60,000,000  60,000,000  80,000,000  766  -    -    708  869  -   
 10  20,000,000  20,000,000  20,000,000  251  -    -    232  -    213 
 10  20,000,000  20,000,000  20,000,000  248  -    -    229  -    210 
 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  50,000,000  613  -    -    563  -    518 

 10  40,000,000  40,000,000  -    -    457  -    418  -    -   
 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  -    -    565  -    516  -    -   

Birla Sunlife Dynamic Bond Fund   10  234,032,609  234,032,609 234,032,609  -    6,955  -    6,268  -    5,773 
Birla Sunlife Income Plus   10  35,314,419  35,314,419  35,314,419  -    2,668  -    2,384  -    2,257 
Birla Sunlife Saving Fund   100  6,332,053  6,332,053  6,332,053  -    2,027  -    1,860  -    1,707 
Birla Sunlife Short Term Fund   10  336,711,177  213,663,534  40,441,709  -    21,059  -    12,193  -    2,121 

 100  1,141,130  1,141,130  -    -    240  -    217  -    -   
DSP Black Rock Strategic Bond Fund   10  1,705,807  1,705,807  1,407,588  -    3,395  -    3,064  -    2,371 

 -    -    25,000,000  -    -    -    -    272  -   
DSP Black Rock Short Term Fund  10  122,966,814  -    -    -    3,521  -    -    -    -   
DSP Black Rock Ultra Short Term Fund  10  168,710,431  -    -    -    2,009  -    -    -    -   

  10  68,382,816  68,382,816  -    -    984  -    904  -    -   

 10  -    -    50,000,000  -    -    -    -    549  -   
DHFL Pramerica Premier Bond Fund 
(Earlier name DWS Premier Bond Fund) 

 10  -    25,923,526  25,923,526  -    -    -    643  -    597 

  10  38,515,757  38,515,757  38,515,757  -    705  -    638  -    593 

DHFL Pramerica Short Term Floating Rate Fund 
(Earlier name DWS Treasury Fund Investment Plan) 

 10  45,187,833  45,187,833  45,187,833  -    821  -    759  -    700 

DHFL Pramerica Ultra Short Term Fund 
(Earlier name DWS Ultra Short Term Fund) 

 10  55,129,962  55,129,962  55,129,962  -    653  -    604  -    553 

 DWS Interval Fund Annual Plan Series 1   10  -    -    24,205,730  -    -    -    -    280  -   
  10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  306  -    -    281  -    258 

  10  30,000,000  30,000,000  30,000,000  359  -    -    328  -    301 

  10  50,000,000  50,000,000  50,000,000  -    596  -    545  -    501 

  10  30,000,000  30,000,000  -    -    352  -    321  -    -   

 Franklin India Treasury Management Account   1,000  -    -    550,871  -    -    -    -    -    1,151 
 10  30,000,000  30,000,000  30,000,000  390  -    -    361  -    332 
 10  -    -    37,000,000  -    -    -    -    405  -   
 10  -    -    40,000,000  -    -    -    -    439  -   

HDFC FMP 1198 Days Feb 2013 (1) Series 24   10  -    5,000,000  5,000,000  -    -    65  -    -    60 
 10  -    45,000,000  45,000,000  -    -    543  -    -    500 
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  324  -    -    300  -    276 
 10  -    32,000,000  32,000,000  -    -    389  -    -    358 

HDFC Floating Rate Income Fund Long Term Plan   10  65,075,825  72,897,491  72,897,491  -    1,872  -    1,926  -    1,777 
 10  92,433,479  92,433,479  -    -    2,621  -    2,413  -    -   
 10  641,119,719  386,703,159 146,402,254  -    11,654  -    6,395  -    2,229 
 10  20,000,000  20,000,000  20,000,000  255  -    -    236  218  -   
 10  40,000,000  40,000,000  60,000,000  510  -    -    472  653  -   
 10  40,000,000  40,000,000  -    -    449  -    410  -    -   
 10  250,000,000  250,000,000  -    -    2,750  -    2,507  -    -   
 10  180,000,000  180,000,000  -    -    2,007  -    1,831  -    -   
 10  -    -    25,000,000  -    -    -    -    267  -   

HDFC Floating Rate Income Fund Short Term Plan   10  -    -    92,433,479  -    -    -    -    -    2,217 
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Description  Face  As at 

 `  31.03.2017  31.03.2017 
 Current Non  

Current 
 Current  

Current 
 Current  

Current 

HDFC High Interest Fund - Dynamic Plan   10  27,381,267  27,381,267  27,381,267  -    1,604  -    1,435  -    1,345 
HDFC Income Fund   10  73,743,649  73,743,649  73,743,649  -    2,853  -    2,564  -    2,405 

 10  726,177,638  472,665,120 132,564,742  -    13,144  -    7,845  -    2,026 
HSBC Income Fund Short Term Plan   10  51,140,380  51,140,380  36,386,144  -    1,428  -    1,307  -    857 

 10  -    -    50,000,000  -    -    -    -    546  -   
 10  -    35,000,000  40,000,000  -    -    441  -    467  -   
 10  -    -    38,000,000  -    -    -    -    415  -   
 10  10,760,176  10,760,176  22,854,844  151  -    141  -    276  -   

ICICI Prudential Blended Plan B   10  -    17,130,523  17,130,523  -    -    -    387  -    357 
 10  -    -    35,000,000  -    -    -    -    382  -   
 10  -    -    45,000,000  -    -    -    -    492  -   
 10  60,000,000  60,000,000  85,000,000  768  -    -    710  923  -   
 10  40,000,000  40,000,000  50,000,000  511  -    -    473  543  -   
 10  -    -    20,000,000  -    -    -    -    213  -   
 10  -    -    25,000,000  -    -    -    -    269  -   
 10  15,000,000  15,000,000  15,000,000  188  -    -    174  -    160 
 10  15,000,000  15,000,000  15,000,000  186  -    -    171  -    157 
 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  50,000,000  614  -    -    565  -    518 
 10  35,000,000  35,000,000  35,000,000  429  -    -    395  -    363 
 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  50,000,000  599  -    -    551  -    507 
 10  35,000,000  35,000,000  35,000,000  417  -    -    382  -    351 
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  300  -    -    276  -    254 
 10  30,000,000  30,000,000  30,000,000  -    361  -    331  -    304 

ICICI Prudential Banking and PSU Debt Fund   10  141,291,460  141,291,460  70,952,678  -    2,675  -    2,403  -    1,107 
 100  11,858,050  11,858,050  9,596,222  -    3,707  -    3,403  -    2,529 

 ICICI Prudential Income Fund   10  48,662,288  48,662,288  48,662,288  -    2,653  -    2,334  -    2,186 
 10  103,095,285  103,095,285  82,661,789  -    2,405  -    2,172  -    1,616 

 ICICI Prudential Saving Fund   100  -    -    3,792,553  -    -    -    -    -    797 
 ICICI Prudential Ultra Short Term Direct Plan   10  713,250,632  551,079,506  -    -    12,205  -    8,600  -    -   
 IDFC Dynamic Bond Fund   10  200,427,616  200,427,616 200,427,616  -    4,199  -    3,680  -    3,469 

 10  20,690,838  20,690,838  20,690,838  -    423  -    370  -    350 
 IDFC Super Saver Income Fund Medium Term Plan   10  -    -    37,686,075  -    -    -    -    -    903 
 IDFC Super Saver Income Fund Short Term Plan   10  -    -    76,757,984  -    -    -    -    -    2,228 
 IDFC Money Manager Fund Investment Plan   10  125,124,014  105,056,990  62,901,943  -    3,221  -    2,480  -    1,368 
 IDFC Banking Debt Fund   10  91,140,256  91,140,256  91,140,256  -    1,275  -    1,189  -    1,095 
 IDFC Corporate Bond Fund   10  681,053,726  -    -    -    7,639  -    -    -    -   
 IDFC Super Saver Income Fund Short Term Plan   10  134,579,249  134,579,249  -    -    4,619  -    4,244  -    -   
 IDFC Super Saver Income Fund Medium Term Plan   10  37,686,075  37,686,075  -    -    1,076  -    977  -    -   
 IDFC Yearly Series Interval Fund Direct Plan Series I   10  -    41,835,157  44,154,984  -    -    550  -    534  -   
 IDFC Yearly Series Interval Fund Direct Plan Series II   10  -    21,079,644  21,079,644  -    -    279  -    256  -   

 10  -    -    21,000,000  -    -    -    -    230  -   
 10  37,591,347  37,591,347  -    -    876  -    809  -    -   
 10  -    8,000,000  8,000,000  -    -    102  -    -    94 

 JP Morgan Income Fund Series 301   10  -    -    85,121,701  -    -    -    -    1,057  -   
Edelweiss Bond Fund   10  63,048,829  93,948,790  93,948,790  -    1,141  -    1,560  -    1,458 

Edelweiss Liquid Fund  10  52,935,460  99,231,756  197,154,896  -    644  -    1,131  -    2,083 

 10  84,088,525  84,088,525  84,088,525  -    4,016  -    3,618  -    3,407 
Kotak Bond Short Term   10  268,906,154  20,779,182  -    -    8,508  -    597  -    -   
Kotak Treasury Advantage Fund   10  144,239,928  144,239,928  80,748,992  3,802  -    3,513  -    1,808 

 10  -    35,000,000  35,000,000  -    -    422  -    -    389 
 10  35,000,000  35,000,000  50,000,000  453  -    -    420  553  -   
 10  -    -    40,000,000  -    -    -    -    439  -   
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  328  -    -    302  -    279 
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  40,000,000  319  -    -    296  437  -   
 10  -    -    40,000,000  -    -    -    -    437  -   
 10  18,000,000  18,000,000  55,000,000  229  -    -    212  599  -   
 10  -    -    60,000,000  -    -    -    -    653  -   
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  40,000,000  318  -    -    295  435  -   
 10  20,000,000  20,000,000  30,000,000  254  -    -    236  326  -   
 10  20,000,000  20,000,000  20,000,000  240  -    -    220  -    203 
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  -    -    290  -    265  -    -   
 10  45,000,000  45,000,000  -    -    517  -    473  -    -   
 10  -    -    25,000,000  -    -    -    -    273  -   
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Description  Face  As at 

 `  31.03.2017  31.03.2017 
 Current Non  

Current 
 Current  

Current 
 Current  

Current 

 10  -    -    43,000,000  -    -    -    -    470  -   
 10  55,748,239  55,748,239 122,646,125  -    818  -    755  -    1,526 

 1,000  -    -    263,266  -    -    -    -    -    505 
 10  180,948,268  154,350,401  -    -    2,884  -    2,259  -    -   
 10  -    -    20,000,000  -    -    -    -    218  -   
 10  -    -    20,000,000  -    -    -    -    218  -   
 10  -    -    25,000,000  -    -    -    -    272  -   
 10  -    -    15,000,000  -    -    -    -    160  -   
 10  275,291,993  173,988,866  -    -    3,257  -    1,880  -    -   

Reliance Yearly Interval Fund Series 2   10  81,392,880  128,329,697 128,329,697  1,157  -    1,696  -    1,559  -   
 Reliance Yearly Interval Fund Series 3   10  -    36,525,011  36,525,011  -    -    483  -    444  -   
 Reliance Yearly Interval Fund Series I   10  220,616,623  220,616,623 220,616,623  3,123  -    2,905  -    2,672  -   

 10  -    -    5,000,000  -    -    -    -    61  -   
 10  -    -    80,000,000  -    -    -    -    879  -   
 10  -    -    20,000,000  -    -    -    -    219  -   
 10  34,000,000  34,000,000  34,000,000  435  -    -    402  369  -   
 10  -    -    50,000,000  -    -    -    -    542  -   
 10  -    -   175,000,000  -    -    -    -    1,909  -   
 10  45,000,000  45,000,000  45,000,000  552  -    -    506  -    466 
 10  45,000,000  45,000,000  45,000,000  -    539  -    493  -    452 
 10  30,000,000  30,000,000  -    -    339  -    310  -    -   
 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  -    -    563  -    514  -    -   
 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  -    -    572  -    522  -    -   
 10  60,000,000  60,000,000  -    -    681  -    622  -    -   
 10  85,000,000  85,000,000  -    -    947  -    864  -    -   

 Reliance Yearly Interval Fund Series 6   10  22,964,644  22,964,644  22,964,644  318  -    295  -    272  -   
 Reliance Yearly Interval Fund Series 8   10  33,812,627  33,812,627  46,058,753  460  -    426  -    535  -   
 Reliance Dynamic Bond Fund   10  132,568,584  132,568,584 132,568,584  -    3,049  -    2,718  -    2,558 
 Reliance Floating Rate Fund Short Term   10  307,631,477  277,895,589  72,977,200  -    8,088  -    6,717  -    1,626 
 Reliance Income Fund   10  9,712,908  9,712,908  9,712,908  -    536  -    479  -    451 
 Reliance Money Manager Fund   10  517,148  517,148  -    -    1,177  -    1,086  -    -   
 Reliance Short Term Fund   10  712,835,497  116,240,942  -    -    22,526  -    3,350  -    -   
Invesco India Ultra Short Term Fund   1,000  1,254,342  1,254,342  2,822,269  -    1,593  -    1,469  -    3,044 

Invesco India FMP Sr 23 Plan H (370 Days)  10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  319  -    -    295  273  -   

 10  -    -    30,000,000  -    -    -    -    327  -   
 10  -    -    17,821,656  -    -    -    -    193  -   
 10  -    -    10,000,000  -    -    -    -    107  -   

Invesco India FMP Sr 25 Plan A (1098 Days)  10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  302  -    -    277  -    255 

Invesco India FMP Sr 25 Plan F (1126Days)  10  30,000,000  30,000,000  30,000,000  -    357  -    327  -    300 

Invesco India FMP Sr 26 Plan C (1098 Days)  10  30,000,000  30,000,000  -    -    348  -    318  -    -   

Invesco India Short Term Fund  1,000  1,622,460  751,980  751,980  -    3,635  -    1,543  -    1,434 

 10  -    -    25,000,000  -    -    -    -    273  -   
 10  -    -    30,000,000  -    -    -    -    334  -   

Invesco India FMP Sr 22 Plan H (427 Days)  10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  329  -    -    301  -    278 

 10  -    -    10,000,000  -    -    -    -    111  -   
 SBI Debt Fund Series A-14 380 Days   10  -    -    30,000,000  -    -    -    -    328  -   
 SBI Debt Fund Series A-35 369 Days   10  -    -    25,000,000  -    -    -    -    266  -   
 SBI Debt Fund Series A-17 366 Days   10  -    -    65,000,000  -    -    -    -    706  -   
 SBI Debt Fund Series A-19 366 Days   10  -    -    19,500,000  -    -    -    -    212  -   
 SBI Debt Fund Series A-20 366 Days   10  -    -    40,000,000  -    -    -    -    434  -   
 SBI Debt Fund Series B-8 (1105 Days)   10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  -    297  -    272  -    250 
 SBI Debt Fund Series B-18 (1100 Days)   10  30,000,000  30,000,000  -    -    351  -    322  -    -   
 SBI Debt Fund Series B-26 (1100 Days )  10  30,000,000  30,000,000  -    -    339  -    309  -    -   
 SBI Debt Fund Series B-27 (1100 Days)   10  30,000,000  30,000,000  -    -    337  -    308  -    -   
 SBI Dynamic Bond Fund   10 160,943,391  160,943,391 160,943,391  -    3,405  -    2,978  -    2,803 
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Description  Face  As at 

 `  31.03.2017  31.03.2017 
 Current Non  

Current 
 Current  

Current 
 Current  

Current 

 SBI Premier Liquid Fund   1,000  -    -    1,325,633  -    -    -    -    -    2,915 
 SBI Short Term Debt Fund   10 150,936,462  150,936,462 123,538,537  -    2,903  -    2,646  -    1,995 
 SBI Ultra Short Term Debt Fund   1,000  1,529,671  1,529,671  920,996  -    3,224  -    2,986  -    1,656 

 10  65,000,000  65,000,000  -    -    755  -    691  -    -   
 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  -    -    561  -    512  -    -   

 Sundaram Money Fund   10  183,330,755  183,330,755 183,330,755  -    2,250  -    2,096  -    1,937 
 Sundaram Ultra Short Term Fund   10  26,443,089  26,443,089  26,443,089  -    343  -    317  -    292 

 10  -    -    25,000,000  -    -    -    -    274  -   
 10  65,468,998  65,468,998  36,085,022  -    1,684  -    1,569  -    797 

 10  -    17,370,158  17,370,158  -    -    213  -    -    196 
 10  -    -    20,000,000  -    -    -    -    220  -   
 10  -    -    20,000,000  -    -    -    -    219  -   
 10  -    -    40,000,000  -    -    -    -    439  -   
 10  -    -    20,000,000  -    -    -    -    218  -   
 10  1,093,981  1,093,981  -    -    2,715  -    2,504  -    -   

 Tata Short Term Bond Fund   10  250,995,072  200,971,748  59,062,611  -    7,902  -    5,781  -    1,562 
 10  -    13,699,256  13,699,256  -    -    167  -    -    154 
 10  32,000,000  32,000,000  32,000,000  417  -    -    386  -    355 
 10  54,995,921  54,995,921  75,000,000  691  -    -    638  800  -   
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  314  -    -    291  267  -   
 10  33,039,648  33,039,648  40,000,000  414  -    -    382  426  -   
 10  -    -    25,000,000  -    -    -    -    272  -   
 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  50,000,000  613  -    -    563  -    518 
 10  30,000,000  30,000,000  30,000,000  367  -    -    337  -    309 
 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  50,000,000  -    597  -    546  -    503 
 10  45,000,000  45,000,000  -    -    518  -    473  -    -   
 10  40,000,000  40,000,000  -    -    458  -    419  -    -   
 10  35,000,000  35,000,000  -    -    395  -    361  -    -   

 UTI Treasury Advantage Fund   1,000  2,889,912  2,889,912  -    -    6,518  -    5,993  -    -   
 UTI Bond Fund   10  53,181,546  53,181,546  53,181,546  -    2,765  -    2,417  -    2,281 
 UTI Floating Rate Fund   1,000  705,166  705,166  705,166  -    1,917  -    1,757  -    1,610 

20,137 253,521 10,568 182,480 32,960 100,380 

7 Loans (unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non Current
Employee related loans and advances  2  3  4 
Inter corporate deposits- unsecured considered doubtful  125  125  125 
Provision for Intercorporate deposits  (125)  (125)  (125)

 1  1  2 
 3  4  6 

Current
Employee related loans and advances  25  31  21 

 25  31  21 
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8 Trade Receivables

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Unsecured  - considered good  11,992  13,222  11,157 
      - considered doubtful  6  6  6 
Provision for doubtful debts  (6)  (6)  (6)

 11,992  13,222  11,157 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Age of receivables
Within the credit period  11,654  12,822  10,943 
1-90 days past due  238  384  180 
91-180 days past due  69  7  9 
More than 180 days past due  31  9  25 

 11,992  13,222  11,157 

9 Other Financial Assets (unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non-current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
 Security deposits  110  103  113 

 128  128  128 

Financial assets carried at fair value
  Cross currency interest rate swap contract not qualifying or not  

designated in hedge accounting relationships
 -    -    366 

 238  231  607 

Current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Claims  -    69  69 
Interest accrued - secured  1  1  4 
       - unsecured  20  4  37 
Recoverable from related parties  624  274  846 

 142  384  497 
     - considered doubtful  4  -    -   

 (4)  -    -   

Derivatives designated and effective as hedging instruments carried at fair 
value
 Foreign currency forward contract designated in hedge accounting relationships  -    72  32 

Financial assets carried at fair value
  Foreign currency and commodity forward contract not qualifying or not designated in 

hedge accounting relationships
 163  220  154 

  Cross currency interest rate swap contract not qualifying or not designated in hedge 
accounting relationships

 -    454  366 

 950  1,478  2,005 
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10 Inventories

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials  13,681  17,343  13,212 
Work-in-progress  1,546  1,643  1,232 
Finished goods manufactured

 12,330  7,695  8,633 
 481  441  389 

Traded goods
 2,591  2,480  1,963 

Stores and spares  1,142  994  861 
Loose Tools  851  725  569 

 32,622  31,321  26,859 

Raw materials  4,897  6,860  5,186 
Stock in trade  64  43  26 

` 525,920 million (previous 
year ` 446,734 million)

` 29 million (previous year ` 33 million) in respect of write-downs of 

11

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Balances with Banks  117  369  173 
Cheques, drafts in hand  5  14  3 
Cash in hand  1  1  1 

 123  384  177 

Unclaimed dividend accounts  8  7  6 
 131  391  183 

 123  384  177 
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12 Other Assets (unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non-current
     Capital advances - considered good *  4,043  5,114  4,712 
             - considered doubtful  -    -    33 

 -    -    (33)
 3,929  3,390  3,084 
 7,950  8,151  8,523 

     Claims - unsecured considered good  79  83  68 
         - unsecured considered doubtful  27  27  27 

 (27)  (27)  (27)
 30  44  59 

 16,031  16,782  16,446 

Current
 9,917  11,668  7,554 

Claims  1,142  1,161  1,282 
 431  372  254 

     Advances to related parties  980  686  939 
 2,918  2,708  2,580 

          - considered doubtful  92  41  42 
 (92)  (41)  (42)

 15,388  16,595  12,609 

` ` ` 975 million;) 

13 Equity Share Capital

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

3,744,000,000 equity shares of `

3,744,000,000 equity shares of ` 5 each)

 18,720  18,720  18,720 

302,080,060 equity shares of `

302,080,060 equity shares of ` 5 each)

 1,510  1,510  1,510 

 1,510  1,510  1,510 

13.1 Rights, preference and restriction attached to shares 
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of `
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13.2 Reconciliation of number of shares            

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number of 

shares

Amount Number of 

shares

Amount Number of 

shares

Amount

Balance as at the beginning of the year   302,080,060  1,510  302,080,060  1,510  302,080,060  1,510 
Balance as at the end of the year   302,080,060  1,510  302,080,060  1,510  302,080,060  1,510 

13.3 Details of shares held by the holding company         

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number of 
shares

Amount Number of 
shares

Amount Number of 
shares

Amount

Suzuki Motor Corporation, Japan   169,788,440  849  169,788,440 849  169,788,440  849 
 169,788,440  849  169,788,440  849  169,788,440  849 

13.4 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares     

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number of 
shares

% 
holding

Number of 
shares

% 
holding

Number of 
shares

% 
holding

Suzuki Motor Corporation  

(the holding company)

 169,788,440  169,788,440  169,788,440 

Life Insurance Corporation of India  15,242,658  17,382,016  17,932,030 

13.5 Shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash (during 5 years 
immediately preceding 31st March 2017)
13,170,000 equity shares of ` 5 each have been allotted as fully paid up during Financial Year 2012-13 to Suzuki Motor Corporation 

14 Other Equity

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

 29,309  29,309  24,738 
Securities premium reserve  4,241  4,241  4,241 
Reserve created on amalgamation  9,153  9,153  9,153 
Retained earnings  310,589  250,037  210,116 
Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income  6,909  4,545  4,440 

 -    47  21 
 360,201  297,332  252,709 
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14.1 General reserve

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Balance at beginning of year  29,309  24,738 
Amount transferred to general reserves  -    4,571 
Balance at end of year  29,309  29,309 

from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in general reserve will not 

`

14.2 Securities premium reserve

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Balance at beginning of year  4,241  4,241 
Movement  -    -   
Balance at end of year  4,241  4,241 

14.3 Reserve created on amalgamation

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Balance at beginning of year  9,153  9,153 
Movement  -    -   
Balance at end of year  9,153  9,153 

This reserve is created on the basis of the scheme of amalgamation of erstwhile Suzuki Powertrain India Limited (SPIL) with the 

14.4 Retained earnings

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Balance at beginning of year  250,037  210,116 
 73,377  53,643 

 (100)  (61)
Amount transferred to general reserves  -    (4,571)
Payment of dividend on equity shares  (10,573)  (7,552)

 (2,152)  (1,538)
Balance at end of year  310,589  250,037 

During the year, a dividend of ` 35 per share, total dividend ` ` 25 per share, total dividend ` 7,552 

` 75 per share (nominal value of `

` `

` 58 million (previous year ` 38 million)
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14.5 Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Balance at beginning of year  4,545  4,440 
 2,361  99 

 3  6 

Balance at end of year  6,909  4,545 

This reserves represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through 

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Balance at beginning of year  47  21 
 (72)  40 
 25  (14)

Balance at end of year  -    47 

15 Borrowings

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non-current
     Unsecured
     Term loans from banks  -    -    869 
     Term loan from the holding company  -    -    579 

 -    -    1,448 

Current
 Unsecured
 Loans repayable on demand from banks  
     - cash credit and overdraft

 4,836  774  354 

 4,836  774  354 

15.1 Summary of borrowing arrangements
1.  Loans from banks include:
Loan amounting to ` ` `

`
`

` 921 million was paid during the 
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Loan amounting to ` ` ` 1,906 million) (USD 30 million) taken from banks at an average interest 

` ` ` 1,158 million (USD 

` ` 579 
` 614 million was 

` ` 774 million; as 
`

15.2 Breach of loan agreement 

16 Other Financial Liabilities

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Current
Current maturities of long term debts (refer to note 15)  -    1,535  3,354 
Payables to capital creditors  8,308  6,203  5,695 
Deposits from dealers, contractors and others  3,734  3,384  1,327 
Interest accrued  27  228  334 
Unclaimed dividend *  8  7  6 
Book overdraft  914  584  590 

 36  30  3 
 13,027  11,971  11,309 

* There are no amount due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125(1) of the Companies Act, 

17 Provisions                

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non-current

   Provision for retirement allowance  63  56  53 

 156  92  150 
 219  148  203 

Current

   Provision for retirement allowance  3  2  1 
   Provision for compensated absences  2,540  2,101  1,830 

 1,734  1,645  2,081 
 213  241  168 

 -    -    9 
 4,490  3,989  4,089 
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Details of other provisions         

2016-2017 2015-2016 2016-2017 2015-2016 2016-2017 2015-2016
Balance as at the beginning of the year  1,645  2,081  333  318  -    9 
Addition during the year  100  134  687  919  -    -   
Utilised during the year  -    -    651  904  -    -   
Reversed during the year  11  570  -    -    -    9 

Balance as at the end of the year  1,734  1,645  369  333  -    -   

   

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015 01.04.2015
 -    -    -    156  92  150  -   

1,734  1,645  2,081  213  241  168  9 

Total  1,734  1,645  2,081  369  333  318  9 

Provision for warranty and product recall
Provision is made for estimated warranty claims in respect of products sold which are still under warranty at the end of the reporting 

Provision for litigation / disputes

18 Deferred Tax Balances             

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

 5,978  6,262  5,529 
 10,618  8,205  6,413 

Net deferred tax liabilities  4,640  1,943  884 
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Balance

Recognised in Recognised in Adjustments* Closing 
Balance

2015-2016
Deferred tax assets
Deferred revenue  2,497  347  -    -    2,844 

 1,879  -    -    -    1,879 
 726  8  38  465  1,237 
 224  4  -    (39)  189 
 94  (25)  -    -    69 

 109  47  -    (112)  44 
 5,529  381  38  314  6,262 

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and  

Intangible assets

 5,345  (1,256)  -    606  4,695 

Investment in debt mutual funds  402  1,467  -    -    1,869 
Investment in equity instruments  37  -    (6)  -    31 

 618  550  -    417  1,585 
 11  -    14  -    25 

 6,413  761  8  1,023  8,205 

Net deferred tax liabilities  884  380  (30)  709  1,943 

2016-2017
Deferred tax assets
Deferred revenue  2,844  (752)  -    -    2,092 

 1,879  -    -    (164)  1,715 
 1,237  94  58  272  1,661 

 189  75  -    (8)  256 
 69  19  -    -    88 
 44  105  -    17  166 

 6,262  (459)  58  117  5,978 

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and  
Intangible assets

 4,695  122  -    (42)  4,775 

Investment in debt mutual funds  1,869  2,221  -    -    4,090 
Investment in equity instruments  31  -    (3)  -    28 

 1,585  (83)  -    223  1,725 
 25  -    (25)  -    -   

 8,205  2,260  (28)  181  10,618 

Net deferred tax liabilities  1,943  2,719  (86)  64  4,640 
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19 Other Liabilities

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non-current
Deferred revenue  11,050  8,075  6,248 

 11,050  8,075  6,248 

Current
Advance from customers  9,392  5,045  4,165 
Deferred revenue  3,584  2,944  2,652 
Statutory dues  5,227  3,539  2,903 

 48  101  22 
 18,251  11,629  9,742 

20 Trade Payables

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  832  533  590 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  82,841  73,540  56,217 

 83,673  74,073  56,807 

The Company pays its vendors within 30 days and no interest during the year has been paid or is payable under the terms of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

21 Current Tax 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Current tax assets
 4,854  4,854  4,916 

Current tax liabilities
 8,036  7,956  7,311 
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22 Revenue From Operations

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Sale of products (including excise duty)
 696,253  583,858 
 65,155  55,719 

 761,408  639,577 

Other operating revenues
   Income from services  3,917  3,428 
   Sale of scrap  3,830  3,564 
   Recovery of service charges  889  776 
   Liabilities no longer required written back  35  694 
   Rental income  370  313 

 2,213  2,194 
 11,254  10,969 

 772,662  650,546 

23 Other Income

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Interest income on
   Bank deposits  12  -   

 -    885 
   Receivables from dealers  343  545 
   Advance to vendors  16  3 

 1  77 
 372  1,510 

Dividend income
   Dividend from equity investments  129  107 

 129  107 

Other gains and losses
 209  -   
 612  974 

   Fair valuation gain on investment in debt mutual funds  21,203  12,019 
 273  -   

 22,297  12,993 
 22,798  14,610 
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24 Material Consumed

24.1 Cost of materials consumed 

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Raw material at the beginning of the year  17,343  13,212 
 422,634  358,970 
 13,681  17,343 

 426,296  354,839 

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Opening balances
Work in progress  1,643  1,232 
Finished goods manufactured

 7,695  8,633 
 441  389 

Traded goods
 2,480  1,963 

 12,259  12,217 

Closing balances
Work in progress  1,546  1,643 
Finished goods manufactured

 12,330  7,695 
 481  441 

Traded goods
 2,591  2,480 

 16,948  12,259 
 888  111 

 (3,801)  69 

25

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Salaries and wages  20,772  17,404 
Contribution to provident and other funds  952  873 

 1,586  1,511 
 23,310  19,788 
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26 Finance Costs

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

   Foreign currency loans  14  26 
 -    41 

   Cash credit and overdrafts  445  455 
   Deposits from dealers, contractors and others  434  290 

 893  812 
 1  3 

 894  815 

27 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  25,076  26,989 
Amortisation of intangible assets  945  1,213 

 26,021  28,202 

28 Other Expenses

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Consumption of stores (refer to note 49)  2,241  2,140 
Power and fuel [net of amount recovered ` 673 million (previous year `  5,172  6,926 
Rent (refer to note 35)  329  236 

 1,706  1,861 
 445  474 
 467  396 

Insurance  150  150 
 2,410  1,820 

Royalty  38,480  32,443 
 3,833  3,432 

 -    1,008 
Advertisement  8,324  7,265 
Sales promotion  5,508  4,570 
Warranty and product recall  687  919 

 5,182  5,416 
 632  1,353 
 895  785 

 10,767  9,183 
 87,228  80,377 
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Note on Corporate Social Responsibility           
` 892 million

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

         -   in cash  -    -   
         -   yet to be paid in cash  -    -   

 -    -   

         -   in cash  895  785 
         -   yet to be paid in cash  -    -   

 895  785 

Total        895  785 
               

29 Income Taxes

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Current tax
In respect of the current year  23,317 20,414

23,317 20,414

Deferred tax  2,719  380 
In respect of the current year 2,719 380

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year     26,036  20,794
                

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 99,413  74,437 

 34,405  25,761 
 (2,215)  (1,670)

Additional deduction on plant and machinery  (1,505)  (1,211)
 (4,632)  (1,991)

 (402)  (466)
 311  266 
 74  105 

 26,036  20,794 
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29.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)
Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income

 3  6 
 25  (14)
 58  38 

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  86  30 

 61  44 
 25  (14)
86 30

30 Segment Information

 The Company is primarily in the business of manufacturing, purchase and sale of motor vehicles, components and spare parts 

30.1 Entity wide disclosure      

Domestic Total
Revenue from operations
2016-17 711,898 60,764 772,662
2015-16 598,568 51,978 650,546

Non current segment assets
149,458               -   149,458
140,283               -   140,283
143,003               -   143,003
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31 Earnings Per Share

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Basic earnings per share (`)       
Diluted earnings per share (`)

earning per share
73,377 53,643

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of basic earning per share and diluted earning per share 
(numbers)

 302,080,060  302,080,060 

32

a) Superannuation fund

b) Post employment medical assistance scheme

c) Employers contribution to Employee State Insurance

d) Employers contribution to Employee’s Pension Scheme 1995

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Employers contribution to Superannuation Fund *        77  69 
Employers contribution on Post Employment Medical Assistance Scheme *    10  9 
Employers contribution to Employee State Insurance *        14  38 

 266  261 

 

 

c) Retirement allowance

d) Provident fund 

               

  
Investment risk               
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Interest risk               

           

Longevity risk               

    

Salary risk               

Provident 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 
Absence

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

As at 31.03.17
Discount rate(s)
Rate of increase in compensation level

25 25 25 25

As at 31.03.16
Discount rate(s)
Rate of increase in compensation level

26  26  26 26

As at 01.04.15
Discount rate(s)
Rate of increase in compensation level

22 22 22 22

Provident 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 
Absence

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

Year ended 31.03.17
Current service cost  468  220  117  12 
Past service cost  -    -    -    -   

 -    456  -    -   
 -    162  -    5 

 468  838  117  17 

Year ended 31.03.16
Current service cost  403  200  93  10 
Past service cost  -    -    -    -   

 -    211  -    -   

(asset)
 -    142  -    5 

 403  553  93  15 
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Provident 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 
Absence

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

Year ended 31.03.17

 - changes in demographic assumptions  -    -    -    -   
 -    -    108  4 
 -    -    151  (12)

 - others  -    -    -    -   
 -    -    (93)  -   

asset ceiling
 -    -    -    -   

comprehensive income 
 -    -    166  (8)

Year ended 31.03.16

 - changes in demographic assumptions  -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -   
 -    -    107  (11)

 - others  -    -    -    -   
 -    -    3  -   

asset ceiling
 -    -    -    -   

comprehensive income
 -    -    110  (11)

Provident 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 
Absence

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

As at 31.03.17
Present value of obligation  13,938  2,540  2,371  66 
Fair value of plan assets  14,247  -    2,371  -   

 309  (2,540)  -    (66)
Effects of asset ceiling, if any *  309  -    -    -   
Net asset / (liability)  -    (2,540)  -    (66)
As at 31.03.16
Present value of obligation  11,590  2,101  1,967  58 
Fair value of plan assets  11,684  -    1,967  -   

 94  (2,101)  -    (58)
Effects of asset ceiling, if any *  94  -    -    -   
Net asset / (liability)  -    (2,101)  -    (58)
As at 01.04.15
Present value of obligation  9,563  1,830  1,715  54 
Fair value of plan assets  9,632  -    1,715  -   

 69  (1,830)  -    (54)
Effects of asset ceiling, if any *  69  -    -    -   
Net asset / (liability)  -    (1,830)  -    (54)
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Provident 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 
Absence

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

As at 31.03.17
 -    -    -    63 
 -    2,540  -    3 

Total  -    2,540  -    66 

As at 31.03.16
 -    -    -    56 
 -    2,101  -    2 

Total  -    2,101  -    58 

As at 01.04.15
 -    -    -    53 
 -    1,830  -    1 

Total  -    1,830  -    54 

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 

Provident 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 
Absence

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

Year ended 31.03.17
Present value of obligation as at the beginning  11,590  2,101  1,967  58 
Current service cost  468  220  117  12 

 1,075  162  158  4 
 1,325  -    -    -   

Transfer in  18  -    -    -   

 - change in demographic assumptions  -    -    -    -   
 -    60  108  4 
 -    396  151  (12)

 - others  -    -    -    -   
Past service cost  -    -    -    -   

 (538)  (399)  (130)  -   

Present value of obligation as at the end  13,938  2,540  2,371  66 

 

Provident 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 
Absence

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

Year ended 31.03.16
Present value of obligation as at the beginning  9,563  1,830  1,715  54 
Current service cost  403  200  93  10 

 870  142  138  5 
 1,137  -    -    -   

 - change in demographic assumptions  -    -    -    -   
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Provident 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 
Absence

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

 -    -    -    -   
 (10)  211  107  (11)

 - others  -    -    -    -   
Past service cost  -    -    -    -   

 (373)  (282)  (86)  -   

Present value of obligation as at the end  11,590  2,101  1,967  58 

Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows: 

Provident 
Fund

Employees 
 

Fund

Year ended 31.03.17
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning  11,684  1,967 
Interest income  1,028  157 

 468  284 
 1,325  -   

Transfer in  234  -   
 (538)  (130)

 46  93 

Fair value of plan assets as at the end  14,247  2,371 

Year ended 31.03.16
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning  9,632  1,715 
Interest income  870  155 

 403  203 
 1,137  -   
 (373)  (86)

 15  (20)

Fair value of plan assets as at the end  11,684  1,967 

Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets) 

Provident 
Fund

Employees 
 

Fund

As at 31.03.17
Government of India securities 16% 0%

29% 0%
High quality corporate bonds 49% 0%
Equity shares of listed companies 4% 0%
Fund managed by insurer 0% 94%
Special deposit scheme 2% 0%

0% 6%

Total 100% 100%
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Provident 
Fund

Employees 
 

Fund

As at 31.03.16
Government of India securities 21% 0%

26% 0%
High quality corporate bonds 49% 0%
Equity shares of listed companies 1% 0%
Fund managed by insurer 0% 92%
Special deposit scheme 3% 0%

0% 8%

Total 100% 100%

As at 01.04.15
26% 0%
19% 0%

High quality corporate bonds 51% 0%
Equity shares of listed companies 0% 0%
Fund managed by insurer 0% 87%
Special deposit scheme 4% 0%

0% 13%

Total 100% 100%

` ` `
 

Sensitivity analysis

` 410 million (increase by ` 485 
` 313 million (increase by ` ` 269 million (increase by  

`

` 436 million (decrease 
by ` ` 315 million (decrease by ` ` 270 million 
(decrease by `

` 20 million (decrease by ` 21 million) 
` 19 million (decrease by ` ` 16 million (decrease by `

` 5 million (decrease by ` 5 million) 
` 4 million (decrease by ` ` 4 million (decrease by `
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33

33.1 Financial instruments by category

As at 31.03.2017
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 

cost
Amortised 

cost

Amortised 

cost

Financial assets
Investments *
 - in equity instruments  -    7,301  -    -    4,939  -    -    4,839  -   
 - in debt mutual funds  273,658  -    -    193,048  -    -    133,340  -    -   
Trade Receivable  -    -    11,992  -    -    13,222  -    -    11,157 
Cash and bank balances  -    -    131  -    -    391  -    -    183 
Loans  -    -    28  -    -    35  -    -    27 
Security deposits  -    -    110  -    -    103  -    -    113 
Claims  -    -    -    -    -    69  -    -    69 

contracts

 163  -    -    674  72  -    886  32  -   

Interest accrued  -    -    21  -    -    5  -    -    41 
Recoverable from related parties  -    -    624  -    -    274  -    -    846 

 -    -    270  -    -    512  -    -    625 
 273,821  7,301  13,176  193,722  5,011  14,611  134,226  4,871  13,061 

Financial liabilities
Borrowings  -    -    4,836  -    -    774  -    -    1,802 
Current maturities of long term debts  -    -    -    -    -    1,535  -    -    3,354 
Trade payables  -    -    83,673  -    -    74,073  -    -    56,807 
Deposits from dealers, contractors and 

others

 -    -    3,734  -    -    3,384  -    -    1,327 

Payable to capital creditors  -    -    8,308  -    -    6,203  -    -    5,695 
Interest accrued  -    -    27  -    -    228  -    -    334 
Unpaid dividend  -    -    8  -    -    7  -    -    6 
Book overdraft  -    -    914  -    -    584  -    -    590 

 -    -    36  -    -    30  -    -    3 
 -    -    101,536  -    -    86,818  -    -    69,918 

` ` ` 91 million); 
investment in joint ventures of ` ` ` 152 million) and investment in 
associates of ` ` ` 1,092 million) which are shown at cost in balance 
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Fair value hierarchy                 

As at 31.03.2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

      Investments in debt mutual funds 6  236,223  37,435  -    273,658 
9  -    163  -    163 

6  6,984  -    -    6,984 
      Unquoted equity instruments 6  -    -    317  317 

 243,207  37,598  317  281,122 

As at 31.03.2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

      Investments in debt mutual funds 6  152,916  40,132  -    193,048 
9  -    674  -    674 

6  4,732  -    -    4,732 
      Unquoted equity instruments 6  -    -    207  207 

9  -    72  -    72 
 157,648  40,878  207  198,733 

As at 01.04.2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

      Investments in debt mutual funds 6  87,898  45,442  -   133,340
9  -    886  -   886

6  4,606  -    -   4,606
      Unquoted equity instruments 6  -    -    233  233 

 -    32  -    32 
 92,504  46,360  233 139,097

assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instruments nor based on 
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Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement          

Unlisted equity 
instruments

As at 01.04.2015  233 
Acquisition  -   

         - in other comprehensive income  (26)

As at 31.03.2016  207 
Acquisition  -   

         - in other comprehensive income  110 

As at 31.03.2017  317 
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Risk Measurement    Management    

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, 

measured at amortised cost

Aging analysis  

Credit rating deposits, credit limits and 

letter of credit
Liquidity risk Business commitment and other liabilities Availability of committed 

credit lines and borrowing 

facilities
Future commercial transactions  

Sensitivity analysis contracts Foreign currency 

options
Market risk - interest rate Borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Interest rate swaps
Market risk - security prices Investments in equity instruments and debt mutual 

funds

Sensitivity analysis

        

Financial instruments that are subject to such risk, principally consist of investments, trade receivables, loans and advances and 

As at As at As at 

Loans - non current 7 125 125 125
Trade receivables 8 6 6 6

9 4  -    -   

`  
(` `
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(i) Financing arrangements 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Floating rate     
 28,450  29,650  28,880 

 -    -    -   
 28,450  29,650  28,880 

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at 31 Mar 2017
Borrowings  4,836  -    4,836 

Trade payables  83,673  -    83,673 

 13,027  -    13,027 
 101,536  -    101,536 

Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at 31 Mar 2016
Borrowings  774  -    774 

Trade payables  74,073  -    74,073 

 11,971  -    11,971 
 86,818  -    86,818 

Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at 1st April 2015
Borrowings  354  1,448  1,802 

Trade payables  56,807  -    56,807 

 11,309  -    11,309 
 68,470  1,448  69,918 

(i) Foreign currency risk
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JPY USD

As at 31st March 2017
Financial assets
Trade receivables  2,248  2,224  38  -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   
 2,248  2,224  38  -    -   

Financial liabilities
 18,564  1,392  1,647  8  -   

 (15,092)  -    (783)  -    -   
 3,472  1,392  864  8  -   

JPY USD

As at 31st March 2016
Financial assets
Trade receivables  3,454  1,093  106  -    -   

 (3,154)  -    -    -    -   
 300  1,093  106  -    -   

Financial liabilities
Borrowings  -    1,535  -    -    -   

 18,389  2,090  2,206  2  2 
 (2,045)  (1,535)  (445)  -    -   
 16,344  2,090  1,761  2  2 

JPY USD

As at 1st April 2015
Financial assets
Trade receivables  11  1,690  11  -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -   
 11  1,690  11  -    -   

Financial liabilities
Borrowings  -    4,802  -    -    -   

 14,777  2,315  1,336  5  -   
 (7,144)  (4,802)  (870)  -    -   
 7,633  2,315  466  5  -   
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(ii) Interest rate risk

(iii) Security price risk
Exposure in equity

Equity price sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on 

If the equity prices had been 5% higher / lower:

` 365 million (for the year 
` 247 million) as 

a result of the change in fair value of equity investment measured 

Exposure in mutual funds
The Company manages the surplus funds majorly through 

Mutual fund price sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on 

 
` ` 1,930 million 
as a result of the changes in fair value of mutual fund investments

33.3 Capital management
 

- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that 

for other stakeholders, and 

 - maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of 
capital   

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company 
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return 

The Company has large investments in debt mutual fund 
schemes wherein underlying portfolio is spread across securities 

credit risk of investments in debt mutual fund schemes is 

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items as tabulated above and adjusts their 

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended

INR 
strengthens 

by 10%

INR 

by 10%

INR 
strengthens 

by 10%

INR 

by 10%

   JPY impact  1,632  (1,632)  1,494  (1,494)
   USD Impact  (83)  83  253  (253)

 161  (161)  213  (213)
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As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Debt  4,836  2,309  5,156 
Cash and cash equivalents  (123)  (384)  (177)

 4,713  1,925  4,979 
Total equity  361,711  298,842  254,219 

33.4 Foreign exchange derivative contracts 

 

Outstanding Contracts Avg. Exchange Rate Foreign Currency Nominal Amount Fair value asset / (liabilities)

Sell JPY (Less than 3 months)
 -    -    -    -   

 5,398  3,274  72 
 -    -    -    -   

Sell USD (Less than 3 months)
 -    -    -    -   
 -    -    -    -   

 2,279  32 
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34 Related Party Transactions

34.1 Description of related parties

Holding Company
Suzuki Motor Corporation 

Subsidiaries
Maruti Insurance Agency Services Limited 
Maruti Insurance Agency Logistics Limited 
Maruti Insurance Distribution Services Limited 

 
Maruti Insurance Agency Solutions Limited 

Maruti Insurance Business Agency Limited 
Maruti Insurance Broker Limited

Key Management Personnel 

 

Joint Ventures
Magneti Marelli Powertrain India Private Limited

(Formerly known as Inergy Automotive Systems Manufacturing 
India Private Limited)

Associates  
Bharat Seats Limited
Caparo Maruti Limited 
Jay Bharat Maruti Limited
Krishna Maruti Limited 
Machino Plastics Limited
SKH Metals Limited

Bellsonica  Auto Component India Private Limited
 

FMI Automotive Components Private Limited
Krishna Ishizaki Auto Limited
Maruti Insurance Broking Private Limited
Manesar Steel Processing India Private Limited
Hanon Climate Systems India Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries (only with whom the Company had 
transactions during the current year)

Magyar Suzuki Coproration
 

PT Suzuki IndoMobil Motor  
(Formerly PT IndoMobil Suzuki International)

Suzuki Assemblers Malaysia Sdn Bhd 
Suzuki Australia Pty Limited

 
Suzuki Auto South Africa(Pty) Limited

Suzuki Italia Spa
Suzuki Malaysia Automobile Sdn Bhd

(Formerly Suzuki Motor Poland Limited)
Suzuki Motorcycle India Limited

 
Taiwan Suzuki Automobile Corporation 
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34.2 Transaction with related parties

For the year 
ended 

31.03.2017

For the year 
ended 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation 25,660 6,558
   - Subsidiaries  238  306 
   - Associates  5,500  5,520 
   - Fellow Subsidiaries
          - Suzuki Motorcycle India Limited  6,691  6,077 

 7,863  9,062 
 45,952  27,523 

   - Fellow Subsidiaries
 120  2,019 

          - Suzuki Motorcycle India Limited  235  -   
 355  2,019 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  15,116  11,673 
   - Associates
           - Jay Bharat Maruti Limited  12,456  10,768 
           - Krishna Maruti Limited  13,230  10,745 

 39,452  49,367 
 7,448  6,776 

   - Fellow Subsidiaries  9,490  1,458 
 97,192  90,787 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  3,036  2,478 
   - Associates
          - Jay Bharat Maruti Limited  1,192  485 

 1,372  1,963 
 156  276 

   - Fellow Subsidiaries  65  1 
 5,821  5,203 

   - Subsidiaries  -    1 
   - Associates
          - Jay Bharat Maruti Limited  13  156 

 -    23 
 13  180 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  660  584 
   - Subsidiaries  -    1 
   - Associates  67  62 

 6  5 
   - Fellow Subsidiaries  81  110 

 814  762 
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For the year 
ended 

31.03.2017

For the year 
ended 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  90  27 
   - Subsidiaries  -    12 
   - Associates
          - Bellsonica Auto Component India Private Limited  189  242 
          - Jay Bharat Maruti Limited  104  129 

 233  260 
 129  74 

   - Fellow Subsidiaries
 290  -   
 42  47 

 1,077  791 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  385  883 
   - Associates  1  -   

 386  883 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  5,943  4,245 
 5,943  4,245 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  38,480  32,443 
 38,480  32,443

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  440  155 
   - Subsidiaries  42  16 
   - Associates  41  214 
   - Fellow Subsidiaries
          -Suzuki Auto South Africa(Pty) Limited  82  65 

 70  98 
 675  548 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  2,309  3,718  283 
   - Subsidiaries  27  75  21 
   - Associates  55  22  23 
   - Fellow Subsidiaries
          - Suzuki Motorcycle India  Limited  724  582  1,045 

 426  -    12 
 549  327  320 

 4,090  4,724  1,704 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  127  117  53 
   - Associates
          -Jay Bharat Maruti Limited  189  104  203 

 318  458  677 
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As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

   - Fellow Subsidiaries
 326  -    -   

 1  1  1 
 19  6  5 

 980  686  939 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  -    -    5 
   - Associates
          - Caparo Maruti Limited  37  27  -   
          - Jay Bharat Maruti Limited  53  -    133 

 33  40  98 
          - SKH Metals Limited  76  106  320 

 74  51  256 
 3  4  4 

   - Fellow Subsidiaries
 348  -    -   

 -    46  30 
 624  274  846 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  429  334  306 
   - Associates
          - SKH Metals Limited  152  173  122 

 38  396  547 
   - Fellow Subsidiaries  3  1  -   

 622  904  975 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  3,634  2,446  1,632 
   - Fellow Subsidiaries  418  85  117 

 4,052  2,531  1,749 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  -    614  1,159 
 -    614  1,159 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  19,165  17,787  14,646 
   - Associates  10,723  11,146  6,350 

 572  692  488 
   - Fellow Subsidiaries  1,852  349  134 

 32,312  29,974  21,618 

   - Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation  1,063  1,454  11 
   - Associates
             -Jay Bharat Maruti Limited  303  19  169 
             - FMI Automotive Components Private Limited  101  46  -   

 274  236  37 
 17  -    -   

   - Fellow Subsidiaries  54  -    -   
 1,812  1,755  217 
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34.3 Key management personnel compensation

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 161  181 
5 8
1 1

Total Compensation  167  190 
 42  40 
 22  19 
 20  17 
 24  34 
 31  29 
 28  51 

Total Compensation  167  190 

35 Operating Lease Arrangements

The Company as a Lessee
Leasing arrangements

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Within one year  59  56  56 
 250  244  234 
 432  497  562 
 741  797  852 

The Company as a Lessor 
Leasing arrangements 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Within one year  88  50  -   
 422  393  -   

 1,234  1,351  -   
 1,744  1,794  -   
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36 Commitments Under Letter of Credit

` ` 1,671 
` 2,029 million) 

37 Capital Commitment

amounting to ` ` `

38 Contingent Liabilities

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

(i) Excise Duty         
(a)  Cases decided in the Company’s favour by Appellate authorities and for which the 

for other periods        

 1,585  7,123  2,965 

appeals and show cause notices for other periods       
 11,751  11,099  13,741 

(c) Show cause notices on  issues yet to be adjudicated         -  7,019  15,670 
Total         13,336  25,241  32,376 
Amount deposited under protest         1,598  1,561  383 

(ii) Service Tax         
(a) Cases decided in the Company’s favour by Appellate authorities and for which the 

for other periods        

 715  430  385 

appeals and show cause notices for other periods       
 2,602  3,318  4,912 

(c) Show cause notices on  issues yet to be adjudicated      364  486  183 
Total         3,681  4,234  5,480 
Amount deposited under protest         52  22  19 

(iii) Income Tax         
(a) Cases decided in the Company’s favour by Appellate authorities and for which the  11,572  7,778  6,033 

 44,692  32,254  21,825 

Total         56,264  40,032  27,858 
Amount deposited under protest         5,172  5,172  7,140 
(iv) Custom Duty         

appeals        
 108  108  103 

 51  43  32 
Total  159  151  135 
Amount deposited under protest  22  22  22 
(v) Sales Tax         

appeals
 67  67  53 

Amount deposited under protest  18  18  2 
(vi) Claims         
Claims against the Company lodged by various parties       730  326  339 
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(vii) In earlier years, pursuant to Court orders, the Haryana State 

("HSIIDC") had raised demands amounting to ` 10,317 million 
towards enhanced compensation to landowners for the Company’s 

made a payment of ` 3,742 million under protest and capitalised 

Haryana High Court ("High Court") set aside the above orders and 

Court has set aside the order of the High Court and has remanded 

(viii)
 

` `  
` 21 million) for LADT and ` ` 19 

`

(ix) The Competition Commission of India (“CCI”) had passed an 
order dated August 25, 2014 stating that the Company has violated 
certain sections of the Competition Act, 2002 and has imposed 
a penalty of `

B) The amounts shown in the item (A) represent the best possible 

uncertainties and possible reimbursements are dependent on the 
outcome of the different legal processes which have been invoked 
by the Company or the claimants as the case may be and therefore 
cannot be predicted accurately or relate to a present obligations 
that arise from past events where it is either not probable that an 

advisors to protect its interests and has been advised that it has 

39  

Rules, 1975 for the period from 1st August, 2001 to 31st July, 

the entitlement period is `
 

` `  
`

40  
2015 had approved a Scheme of Amalgamation (the “Scheme”) 
under Sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the 1956 
Act’)  and other applicable provisions of the 1956 Act and the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as per pooling of 
interest method, between the Company and its seven wholly owned 
subsidiaries which were authorised to engage in the business 
of acting as insurance intermediaries, by the name of Maruti 
Insurance Business Agency Limited, Maruti Insurance Distribution 

Insurance Agency Solutions Limited, Maruti Insurance Agency 
Services Limited, Maruti Insurance Agency Logistics Limited and 

The amalgamation will be effective from April 1, 2016 being the 

41  The Company entered into a ‘Contract Manufacturing 

a fellow subsidiary of Suzuki Motor Corporation (SMC) on 17th 

the initial period without any further action or documentation on 
the part of either party, unless terminated by the parties by mutual 

The Company has evaluated this arrangement with respect to 

this arrangement has been included under the purchase of stock-in-
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42 Auditors' Remuneration * #

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Statutory audit

 -   

`

 

43 First Time Adoption of Ind AS

 (i)    Transition elections               

43.1 Transition elections                
The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2015 (the transition date) by recognising all assets 
and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, 

Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets     

Leases 

Investments in subsidiaries, joint controlled entities and associates in separate financial statements   
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Designation of equity investments at FVTOCI          

               

with as reported in previous years as per previous Indian GAAP     

Reconciliation of total equity as at 31st March 2016 and 1st April 2015      

adoption
31st March  

2016
1st April  

2015

Total equity (shareholder's fund) as per previous GAAP  270,071  237,042 

Adjustments
1  16,889  6,898 
1  4,576  4,477 

Deferment of net income from services 2  (8,217)  (7,214)
3  12,725  9,090 
6  2,798  3,926 

Total adjustments  28,771  17,177 

Total equity as per Ind AS  298,842  254,219 

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March 2016    

adoption
Year ended 

 45,714 

Adjustments
Fair value gain on debt mutual funds 1  9,991 
Deferment of net income from services 2  (1,003)

4  99 
6  (1,158)

Total adjustments  7,929 
 53,643 

Other comprehensive income
4  (99)

Fair value gain on equity instruments 1  99 
5  40 
6  30 

Total other comprehensive income  70 

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS  53,713 
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Previous Adjustments Ind AS

 84,845  -    84,845 
 (72,274)  -    (72,274)
 (12,364)  -    (12,364)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  207  -    207 
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st April 2015  177  -    177 
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March 2016      384  -    384 

instruments

current investments based on the intended holding period and 

provision for other than temporary decline in the value of such 

Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at 

been recognised in retained earnings as at the date of transition 

resulting fair value gains and losses have been recognised in 

Income from services including the associated selling cost is 

income is recognised on straight line basis over the warranty 
period and the associated service claim cost is recognised as an 

directors after the balance sheet date but before the approval of 

Accordingly, provision for proposed dividend and related 

recognised when the same is approved by the shareholders 

dividend as at 1st April 2015 and 31st March 2016 included 

the total equity increased by the amount of proposed dividend 

 

Under Ind AS, effective portion of fair value gains and losses of 

is recognised in other comprehensive income and taken to 

was no such concept of other comprehensive income and all 



Notes

Standalone Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements 

195

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

44 Details of Research and Development Expenses

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 2,280  2,079 
 1,249  1,137 
 3,491  3,289 
 (616)  (570)

 6,404  5,935 

45 CIF Value of Imports

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Raw materials and components  37,254  33,632 
Capital goods  14,818  7,383 
Stores and spares  1,155  1,000 
Dies and moulds  85  168 

 116  461 

46 Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Accrual Basis)

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Fees for technical services  751  1,417 
 208  160 

Running royalty  35,827  32,443 
 1,143  1,678 

Supervision charges capitalised  931  653 
Interest  14  40 

 2,230  1,535 

47 Earning in Foreign Currency

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

55,645 47,353
646 570



Notes to the Financial Statements 

196 Maruti Suzuki India Limited

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

48 Dividend Remitted in Foreign Currency (Cash Basis)

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Dividend for the year  5,943  4,245 
 1  1 

 169,788,440  169,788,440 

49 Value of Imported and Indigenous Material Consumed

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

I) Raw material and components          
 Imported           33,221  26,158 
 Indigenous           393,075  328,681 

 426,296  354,839 

 Percentage of total consumption          
 Imported 8% 7%
 Indigenous 92% 93%

ii) Machinery spares
 Imported  503  463 
 Indigenous  2,184  1,982 

 2,687  2,445 

 Percentage of total consumption          
 Imported 19% 19%
 Indigenous 81% 81%

iii) Consumption of stores
 Imported  169  122 
 Indigenous  2,072  2,018 

 2,241  2,140 

 Percentage of total consumption          
 Imported 8% 6%
 Indigenous 92% 94%

50 Licensed Capacity, Installed Capacity And Actual Production

Product Units Licensed Capacity Installed Capacity ** Actual Production

- *  1,555,000  1,573,414 
(-)*  (1,522,000)  (1,424,330)
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51

Product   SALES Closing Stock

 1,568,603 

(1,429,248) 

696,253 

(583,858)

 19,162 

(25,564) 

 7,695 

(8,633) 

 33,156  

19,162

 12,330  

(7,695)
Spare Parts and Components *

 * 

64,741

(55,670)

*

 * 

 441 

 (389)

*

 * 

 481 

 (441)
*

 * 

414

(49)

*

 * 

 -   

 -   

*

 * 

 -   

Work in Progress *

 * 

*

 * 

 1,643 

 (1,232)

*

 * 

 1,546 

 (1,643)

 

52 Statement of Raw Material and Components Consumed

Unit 2016-17 2015-16
Amount Amount

Steel coils MT  282,397  13,496  240,933  11,434 
Ferrous castings MT  42,507  4,876  39,616  4,476 

MT  43,132  6,678  37,776  5,946 
 *  397,440  *  329,580 

Paints  11,848  10,078 
MT  11,347  3,806  10,472  3,403 

 426,296 354,839

53

2016-17 2015-16

Traded spares [includes cost related to inhouse manufactured spares  
` 4,465 million (previous year `

37,982 32,040

Traded vehicles 6,587 2
252 24

 44,821  32,066 
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54
2016 to 30th December 2016             

Amount in `

Particulars    Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016  1,969,000  181,968  2,150,968 
 -    4,552,693  4,552,693 

(-) Permitted payments  10,500  1,312,307  1,322,807 
(-) Amount deposited in Banks  1,958,500  2,176,960  4,135,460 

Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016  -    1,245,394  1,245,394 
                  

55
27th April 2017.

KENICHI AYUKAWA SHIGETOSHI TORII AJAY SETH S. RAVI AIYAR

Managing Director & CEO

DIN : 02262755

Director 
DIN : 06437336

Executive Director (Legal)  
& Company Secretary

ICSI MEMBERSHIP NO : F1734

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27th April 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of MARUTI SUZUKI INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS 
Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS 

Maruti Suzuki India Limited 

and its joint ventures, comprising the Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Loss including other comprehensive income, the Consolidated 

Management's Responsibility for the 
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Associates and Joint ventures in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 

Auditor's Responsibility

the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 

Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

Opinion

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Other Matters

` 2997 million as at 
` 1093 million and net cash 

`

`
31 March, 2017, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS 

`

March 2015 dated 26 April 2016 and 27 April 2015 respectively 

prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting 

matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements
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statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 

companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India, 

companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India is 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

Jitendra Agarwal

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Annexure “A” to The Independent 
Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even 
date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

companies and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls

companies, its associate companies and joint ventures, which are 

Auditor’s Responsibility

companies, its associate companies and its joint ventures, which 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

companies, associate companies and joint ventures, which are 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting
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assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion

associate companies and joint ventures, which are companies 

incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate 

Other Matters

companies and 2 associate companies which are companies 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants

Jitendra Agarwal

Independent Auditor’s Report
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 As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

ASSETS
Non-current assets

4  129,377  121,827 
4  12,523  10,069  18,169 
5  3,730  2,923 

Financial assets
 Investments 6  269,718 
 Loans 7  3  7 

9

12  16,033  16,796 
Total non-current assets  431,625  347,744  265,999 
Current assets
Inventories 10  32,637  31,326  26,831 
Financial assets
 Investments 6  21,788  35,195 

8  12,026  11,181 
11  235  507  283 

 Loans 7  25  31  21 
9  951  2,022 

22

Other current assets 12  16,611  12,628 
Total current assets  87,980  79,511  93,127 
Total assets  519,605  427,255  359,126 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13  1,510  1,510  1,510 
Other equity 14  258,710 
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  370,751  306,160  260,220 
Non controlling interest 15

Total Equity  370,905  306,304  260,354 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

 Borrowings 16

18  219  203 
19  5,058  2,287 
20  11,055  8,075 

Total non-current liabilities  16,332  10,510  9,064 
Current liabilities

 Borrowings 16   

21  832  533  590 

enterprises
21  82,860  73,556  56,270 

17  13,028  11,978  11,319 
18

22  8,036  7,956  7,311 
20  18,278  11,650  9,771 

Total current liabilities  132,368  110,441  89,708 
Total liabilities  148,700  120,951  98,772 
Total equity and liabilities  519,605  427,255  359,126 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP KENICHI AYUKAWA         SHIGETOSHI TORII
Chartered Accountants

JITENDRA AGARWAL
AJAY SETH         S. RAVI AIYAR

th April 2017

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at March 31, 2017
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For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP KENICHI AYUKAWA         SHIGETOSHI TORII
Chartered Accountants

JITENDRA AGARWAL
AJAY SETH         S. RAVI AIYAR

th April 2017

for the year ended March 31, 2017 

 For the Year 
ended 31.03.2017

For the Year 

I 23  651,055 
II Other income 24  22,896 
III Total Income (I+II)  796,060  665,861 
IV Expenses

25.1

 32,179 
25.2

Excise duty  75,165 
26  23,603  20,003 

Finance costs 27  817 
28  26,039  28,218 

Other expenses 29  87,280 

Total expenses (IV)  696,516  591,203 
V  998 
VI  235  191 
VII  101,272  75,847 
VIII Tax expense

Current tax 30 23,369
30 2,793

 26,162  20,875 
IX  75,110  54,972 
X Other Comprehensive Income

14.5

14.6  2,361  99 
 2,202 

30  61 

14.7

30  25 
 2,216  68 

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX + X)       77,326  55,040 

 75,099 
 11  11 

 75,110 

 2,217  69 

 2,216  68 

 77,316  55,030 
 10  10 

 77,326 
Earnings per equity share 32

Basic

Balance Sheet
Statement of Profit and Loss 
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended March 31, 2017 

a. Equity share capital
Amount

Balance at 1st April, 2015  1,510 
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2016  1,510 
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2017  1,510 

b. Other equity   

Reserves and Surplus Items of other comprehensive income
Reserves 

created on 
amalgamation

Securities 
premium 

reserve

Capital 
reserves reserve

Retained 
earnings

Equity 
instrument 

through other 
comprehensive 

income
hedge 

to owners 

company

controlling 
interest

Total

Balance at April 1, 2015  9,153  4,241  2  24,738  216,115  4,440  21  258,710  134  258,844 

 11 

 105  26  69  68 

Total comprehensive income for 
the year

 -    -    -    -    54,899  105  26  55,030  10  55,040 

 
(`

Balance at March 31, 2016  9,153  4,241  2  29,309  257,353  4,545  47  304,650  144  304,794 

 75,099  75,099  11  75,110 

 2,217  2,216 

Total comprehensive income for 
the year

 -    -    -    -    74,999  2,364  (47)  77,316  10  77,326 

 
(`

Balance at March 31, 2017  9,153  4,241  2  29,309  319,627  6,909  -    369,241  154  369,395 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP KENICHI AYUKAWA         SHIGETOSHI TORII
Chartered Accountants

JITENDRA AGARWAL
AJAY SETH         S. RAVI AIYAR

th April 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows  
for the year ended March 31, 2017 

     

  For the year 
ended 31.03.2017  

 For the year 

A.
 101,272 

28  26,039  28,218 
Finance costs 27  817 
Interest income 24

24

29  632 
24

24

24

23

 104,131  89,348
  

7  1  3 
9  390 
12

10

8  1,215 
7  6 
9  639  268 
12

18  71 
20  2,980  1,826 
21  9,788  17,888 
17  680  2,075 
18

20  6,628  1,980 

Cash generated from Operating Activities  126,049  103,943 

Net Cash from Operating Activities  102,820  84,825 

B.
4

5

4  123 
6  219 
6  118,393  73,779 
6

11  68 
Interest received 24  362  671 

24  129  107 

Net Cash from / (used in ) Investing Activities  (91,732)  (72,304)

Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows



208 Maruti Suzuki India Limited

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

  For the year 
ended 31.03.2017  

 For the year 

C.
16

16

16

Finance cost paid  27

14.5

Related income tax 14.5

Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities  (11,293)  (12,366)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents  (205)  155 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  432  277 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  227  432 

Cash and cheques in hand 11  8  16 
Balance with Banks 11  219 

 227 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP KENICHI AYUKAWA         SHIGETOSHI TORII
Chartered Accountants

JITENDRA AGARWAL
AJAY SETH         S. RAVI AIYAR

th April 2017

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows  
for the year ended March 31, 2017 
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1 General Information 

company incorporated and domiciled in India, listed on the 

 

2

2.1 Statement of compliance

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies 

2.3 Basis of consolidation and equity accounting

The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or 

 
 

 

Statement of Cash Flows
Notes

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying 

investments equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including 

 

amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income 

that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive 

2.4 Going concern

AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each 

recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and 
 

uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies 

 
 

 

2.6 Revenue recognition

2.6.1 Sale of goods
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2.6.2 Income from services

2.6.3 Income from royalty

2.6.4 Dividend and interest income

2.7 Leasing

2.7.1 The Group as lessor

are structured solely to increase in line with expected general 

increases, such increases are recognised in the period in which 

2.7.2 The Group as lessee

 

 

are structured solely to increase in line with expected general 

increases, such increases are recognised in the period in which 

2.8 Foreign currencies
2.8.1 Functional and presentation currency

presented in Indian rupee (`
 

2.8.2 Transactions and balances 

2.9 Borrowing costs

2.10.1 Short-term obligations

services are recognised in the period in which the related services 
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are rendered and are measured at the undiscounted amount 

2.10.2 Other long-term employee benefit obligations

render the related service are measured at the present value 

experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
 

2.10.3 Post-employment obligations

adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other 

 

 

2.11 Taxation

2.11.1 Current tax 

2.11.2 Deferred tax
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2.11.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

except when they relate to items that are recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the 
income taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive income 

2.12 Property, plant and equipment 

or construction less accumulated depreciation less accumulated 

recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 

On transition to Ind AS, the group has elected to continue with 

Building                                                           

5 years
Electronic data processing equipment                   3 years

          10 years
Vehicles                                                               8 years

 

` 5,000 or less, are depreciated at the 
` 5,000 

2.13 Intangible assets
2.13.1 Intangible assets acquired separately

which is incurred and stated in the relevant licence agreement 

2.13.2 Amortisation methods and useful lives 

2.13.3 Deemed cost on transition to Ind AS
For transition to Ind AS, the group has elected to continue with 

2.14 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

determine whether there is any indication that those assets 
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2.15 Inventories 

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make  

tools valued at ` 5,000 or less individually which are charged to 

Machinery spares (other than those supplied along with main 
plant and machinery, which are capitalised and depreciated 

those valued at ` 5,000 or less individually, which are charged to 

2.16 Provisions and contingencies

2.17 Financial instruments

2.18 Financial assets

2.18.1 Classification of financial assets 

•  those measured at amortised cost
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(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

 

 

 

2.18.2 Investments in equity instrument at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

The group has equity investments in certain entities which are 

2.18.3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL)

Financial assets that do not meet the amortised cost criteria 

 

2.18.4 Trade receivables

2.18.5 Cash and cash equivalents 

2.18.6 Impairment of financial assets

comprehensive income

Expected credit loss are measured through a loss allowance at 



216 Maruti Suzuki India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

•  the twelve month expected credit losses (expected credit 

2.18.7 Derecognition of financial assets

2.18.8 Foreign exchange gains and losses

2.19 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
2.19.1 Classification of debt or equity 

2.19.2 Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual 

2.19.3 Financial liabilities

2.19.3.1 Trade and other payables

2.19.3.2 Borrowings 

2.19.3.3 Foreign exchange gains or losses

 

2.19.3.4 Derecognition of financial liabilities
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(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

hedging instrument which is recognised in other comprehensive 

2.20.1 Embedded derivatives 

derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics 

2.21 Hedge accounting 
The group designates certain hedging instruments, in respect 

gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in other equity 

2.22 Offsetting Financial Instruments

2.23 Earning Per Share

2.24 Dividends

2.25 Royalty

2.26 Rounding of amounts

3 Applicability of New and Revised Ind AS

Further, the amendment to Ind AS 102 provides guidance to 

 



218 Maruti Suzuki India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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4

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Carrying amount of
   Freehold Land  19,079  17,892 
   Leasehold Land *  526  525 
   Buildings  16,672  13,352 

 86,105  83,850 
 613 
 981  895  577 

   Vehicles  1,058  910  718 
 129,377  121,827  117,400 

 12,523  10,069  18,169 
 141,900  131,896  135,569 

`

 

Freehold 

Land

Leasehold 

Land

Buildings

Machinery Equipment

Furniture, 

Fixtures 

Appliances

Vehicles Total

Cost or deemed cost
 17,892  525  13,352  83,850  577  718 

Addition  600  1  1,779  532  596  32,099 

Balance at 31st March, 2016  18,492  526  15,131  111,634  830  1,090  1,041  148,744 
Addition  587  25  3,261  28,213  521  308  525 

 2 
Balance at 31st March, 2017  19,079  551  18,349  138,882  1,350  1,400  1,303  180,914 
Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment as at 1st April, 2015

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 718  25,597  197  27,005 

Balance at 31st March, 2016  -    -    718  25,529  344  195  131  26,917 
 2  960  393  226  165 

Balance at 31st March, 2017  -    2  1,677  48,457  737  419  245  51,537 
Carrying amount

 17,892  525  13,352  83,850  577  718 
Addition  600  1  1,779  532  596  32,099 

Balance at 31st March, 2016  18,492  526  14,413  86,105  486  895  910  121,827 
Addition  587  25  3,261  28,213  521  308  525 

Balance at 31st March, 2017  19,079  549  16,672  90,425  613  981  1,058  129,377 
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4.1 Notes on property, plant and equipment
` ` `

cost amounting to `

`

5 Intangible Assets

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Carrying amount of
 3,730  2,923 
 3,730  3,469  2,923 

Lumpsum royalty 
and engineering 

Cost or deemed cost
 2,923 

Addition  1,759 
Balance at 31st March, 2016  4,682 
Addition  1,206 
Balance at 31st March, 2017  5,888 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 
as at 1st April, 2015

Amortisation expenses
Balance at 31st March, 2016  1,213 
Amortisation expenses
Balance at 31st March, 2017  2,158 

Carrying amount
 2,923 

Addition  1,759 
Amortisation expenses
Balance at 31st March, 2016  3,469 
Addition  1,206 
Amortisation expenses
Balance at 31st March, 2017  3,730 

5.1 Notes on intangible assets               

 
`
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6 Investments

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non-current
Investment in equity instruments

 6,810 
 1,197  962  771 
 7,301 

 100,380 
 269,718  195,345  110,429 

Current
 21,788  35,195 
 21,788  11,413  35,195 

 201,162 
 8,065 

 5,839 
 50  50  50 

6.1 Investment in associates              
 Break-up of investment in associates (carrying amount determined using the equity method of accounting) 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Quoted investment (fully paid up)

`  92  79 
`  892  639 

`  97  95  88 

Total aggregate quoted investment (A)  1,081  914  801 
 3,290  1,107  1,018
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As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Unquoted investment (fully paid up)

`  2,500,000  357  2,500,000  325  2,500,000  338 
 

`
 518,700  751  518,700  690  518,700  639 

Krishna Maruti Limited  
`

 670,000  670,000  363  670,000  285 

 
`

 353  156 

 
`

 125,000  125,000  125,000  5 

Mark Exhaust Systems Limited 
`

 256  235  232 

 
`

 289  171  238 

 
`

Krishna Ishizaki Auto Limited 
`

 119  87 

 
`

 
`

 231,275  2,587  231,275  1,798  231,275  1,186 

Total aggregate unquoted investment (B)  5,729  4,523  3,638 
Total investments carrying value (A) + (B)  6,810  5,437  4,439

Financial information of associates that are not individually material

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 998 
 998 

               

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

6,810
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As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Unquoted investment (fully paid up)
 

`
 6,656,000  180  6,656,000  6,656,000  121 

 
`

 8,550,000  1,017  8,550,000  820  8,550,000  650 

Total aggregate unquoted investment  1,197  962  771 

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 235  191 

The Group's share of total comprehensive income  235  191 

               

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

1,197 962 771

6.3 Other equity instruments              
  Investment in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Quoted investment (fully paid up)
`  26,995,200 5,857  26,995,200  26,995,200  3,913 

`  13,800,000 1,127  13,800,000  13,800,000  693 
Total aggregate quoted investment (i) 6,984  4,732  4,606 
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As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Unquoted investment (fully paid up)

 
`

 2,862,758  316  2,862,758  206  2,862,758  233 

Total aggregate unquoted investment (ii)  316  206  233 
Investment in equity shares of Section 8 Company

 
`

 100,000  1  100,000  1 

Investment in equity shares of Section 8 Company (iii)  1  1 
Investment in other equity instruments [i+ii+iii]  7,301  4,939  4,839 

6.4 Investment in preference share              

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

`  500,000  50  500,000  50  500,000  50 

 -    -    -   

6.5 Investment in mutual funds             

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

100,380
 21,788 35,195
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 Face 
Value  

 As at 

 `  31.03.2017  31.03.2017 
 Current Non  

Current 
 Current  

Current 
 Current  

Current 

  1,000  255,691  1,030  952  328 

 10  25,000,000  279 
Axis Short Term Fund   10  333,002,109  6,128  1,257  655 

 10  15,000,000 

 10  25,000,000  312 
 10  20,000,000  20,000,000 

 10  60,000,000  60,000,000  726  668 

 10  20,000,000  20,000,000  222 

 10  20,000,000  20,000,000  222 

 10  11,596,220  11,596,220  11,596,220  579  519 
 10  60,000,000  60,000,000  80,000,000  766  708  869 

 10  20,000,000  20,000,000  20,000,000  251  232  213 
 10  20,000,000  20,000,000  20,000,000  229  210 
 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  50,000,000  613  563  518 

 10 
 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  565  516 
 10  6,955  6,268  5,773 
 10  2,668  2,257 

 100  6,332,053  6,332,053  6,332,053  2,027  1,860  1,707 
 10  336,711,177  21,059  12,193  2,121 
 100  217 
 10  1,705,807  1,705,807  3,395  2,371 

 25,000,000  272 
 10  3,521 
 10  2,009 

  10  68,382,816  68,382,816 

 10  50,000,000 
  10  25,923,526  25,923,526  597 

  10  38,515,757  38,515,757  38,515,757  705  638  593 

  10  821  759  700 

  10  55,129,962  55,129,962  55,129,962  653  553 

 10  280 
  10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  306  281  258 

  10  30,000,000  30,000,000  30,000,000  359  328  301 

  10  50,000,000  50,000,000  50,000,000  596  501 

  10  30,000,000  30,000,000  352  321 

Franklin India Treasury Management Account   1,000  550,871  1,151 
 10  30,000,000  30,000,000  30,000,000  390  361  332 
 10  37,000,000 
 10 
 10  5,000,000  5,000,000  65  60 
 10  500 
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  300  276 

 
Series 29  

 10  32,000,000  32,000,000  389  358 

 10  65,075,825  1,872  1,926  1,777 
 10  2,621 
 10  386,703,159  6,395  2,229 
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 Face 
Value  

 As at 

 `  31.03.2017  31.03.2017 
 Current Non  

Current 
 Current  

Current 
 Current  

Current 

 10  20,000,000  20,000,000  20,000,000  255  236  218 
 10  60,000,000  510  653 

  10 

 10  250,000,000  250,000,000  2,750  2,507 
 10  180,000,000  180,000,000  2,007  1,831 
 10  25,000,000  267 
 10  2,217 
 10  27,381,267  27,381,267  27,381,267 
 10  2,853 
 10  726,177,638  2,026 
 10  1,307  857 
 10  50,000,000 
 10  35,000,000 
 10  38,000,000 
 10  10,760,176  10,760,176  151  276 
 10  17,130,523  17,130,523  387  357 
 10  35,000,000  382 
 10 
 10  60,000,000  60,000,000  85,000,000  768  710  923 
 10  50,000,000  511 
 10  20,000,000  213 
 10  25,000,000  269 
 10  15,000,000  15,000,000  15,000,000  188  160 

 10  15,000,000  15,000,000  15,000,000  186  171  157 

 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  50,000,000  565  518 
 10  35,000,000  35,000,000  35,000,000  395  363 
 10  50,000,000  50,000,000  50,000,000  599  551  507 
 10  35,000,000  35,000,000  35,000,000  382  351 
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  300  276 
 10  30,000,000  30,000,000  30,000,000  361  331 
 10  70,952,678  2,675  1,107 

 100  11,858,050  11,858,050  9,596,222  3,707  2,529 
 10  2,653  2,186 
 10  103,095,285  103,095,285  82,661,789  2,172  1,616 
 100  3,792,553  797 
 10  713,250,632  551,079,506  12,205  8,600 
 10  3,680 
 10  20,690,838  20,690,838  20,690,838  370  350 
 10  37,686,075  903 
 10  2,228 
 10  105,056,990  3,221  1,368 
 10  1,275  1,189  1,095 
 10  681,053,726  7,639 
 10 
 10  37,686,075  37,686,075  1,076  977 
 10  550 
 10  279  256 
 10  21,000,000  230 
 10  876  809 
 10  8,000,000  8,000,000  102 
 10  85,121,701  1,057 

Edelweiss Bond Fund   10  1,560 

Edelweiss Liquid Fund  10  99,231,756  1,131  2,083 

 10  3,618 
Kotak Bond Short Term   10  20,779,182  8,508  597 
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 Face 
Value  

 As at 

 `  31.03.2017  31.03.2017 
 Current Non  

Current 
 Current  

Current 
 Current  

Current 

Kotak Treasury Advantage Fund   10  3,802  3,513  1,808 
 10  35,000,000  35,000,000  389 
 10  35,000,000  35,000,000  50,000,000  553 
 10 
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  328  302  279 
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  319  296 
 10 
 10  18,000,000  18,000,000  55,000,000  229  212  599 
 10  60,000,000  653 
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  318  295 
 10  20,000,000  20,000,000  30,000,000  236  326 
 10  20,000,000  20,000,000  20,000,000  220  203 
 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  290  265 
 10  517 
 10  25,000,000  273 
 10 
10  818  755  1,526 

1,000  263,266  505 
10  2,259 
10  20,000,000  218 
10  20,000,000  218 
10  25,000,000  272 
10  15,000,000  160 
10  275,291,993  173,988,866  3,257  1,880 

Reliance Yearly Interval Fund Series 2  10  81,392,880  128,329,697 128,329,697  1,157  1,696  1,559 
Reliance Yearly Interval Fund Series 3  10  36,525,011  36,525,011 
Reliance Yearly Interval Fund Series I  10  220,616,623  220,616,623 220,616,623  3,123  2,905  2,672 

10  5,000,000  61 
10  80,000,000  879 
10  20,000,000  219 
10  369 
10  50,000,000 
10 175,000,000  1,909 
10  552  506 
10  539 
10  30,000,000  30,000,000  339  310 
10  50,000,000  50,000,000  563 
10  50,000,000  50,000,000  572  522 
10  60,000,000  60,000,000  681  622 
10  85,000,000  85,000,000 

Reliance Yearly Interval Fund Series 6  10  318  295  272 
Reliance Yearly Interval Fund Series 8  10  33,812,627  33,812,627  535 

10  2,718  2,558 
Reliance Floating Rate Fund Short Term  10  277,895,589  72,977,200  8,088  6,717  1,626 
Reliance Income Fund  10  9,712,908  9,712,908  9,712,908  536 
Reliance Money Manager Fund  10  1,177  1,086 
Reliance Short Term Fund  10  22,526  3,350 
Invesco India Ultra Short Term Fund  1,000  2,822,269  1,593 

 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  319  295  273 

10  30,000,000  327 
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 Face 
Value  

 As at 

 `  31.03.2017  31.03.2017 
 Current Non  

Current 
 Current  

Current 
 Current  

Current 

10  17,821,656  193 
10  10,000,000  107 

 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  302  277  255 

 10  30,000,000  30,000,000  30,000,000  357  327  300 

 10  30,000,000  30,000,000  318 

Invesco India Short Term Fund  1,000  751,980  751,980  3,635 

10  25,000,000  273 
10  30,000,000 

 10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  329  301  278 

10  10,000,000  111 
10  30,000,000  328 
10  25,000,000  266 
10  65,000,000  706 
10  19,500,000  212 
10
10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  297  272  250 
10  30,000,000  30,000,000  351  322 
10  30,000,000  30,000,000  339  309 
10  30,000,000  30,000,000  337  308 
10  2,978  2,803 

1,000  1,325,633  2,915 
10 123,538,537  2,903  1,995 

1,000  1,529,671  1,529,671  920,996  2,986  1,656 
10  65,000,000  65,000,000  755  691 
10  50,000,000  50,000,000  561  512 

Sundaram Money Fund  10  183,330,755  183,330,755 183,330,755  2,250  2,096  1,937 
Sundaram Ultra Short Term Fund  10  317  292 

10  25,000,000 
10  36,085,022  1,569  797 

10  17,370,158  17,370,158  213  196 
10  20,000,000  220 
10  20,000,000  219 
10
10  20,000,000  218 
10  1,093,981  1,093,981  2,715 

Tata Short Term Bond Fund  10  250,995,072  59,062,611  7,902  5,781  1,562 
10  13,699,256  13,699,256  167 
10  32,000,000  32,000,000  32,000,000  386  355 
10  75,000,000  691  638  800 
10  25,000,000  25,000,000  25,000,000  291  267 
10  382 
10  25,000,000  272 
10  50,000,000  50,000,000  50,000,000  613  563  518 
10  30,000,000  30,000,000  30,000,000  367  337  309 
10  50,000,000  50,000,000  50,000,000  597  503 
10  518 
10
10  35,000,000  35,000,000  395  361 

UTI Treasury Advantage Fund  1,000  2,889,912  2,889,912  6,518  5,993 
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 Face 
Value  

 As at 

 `  31.03.2017  31.03.2017 
 Current Non  

Current 
 Current  

Current 
 Current  

Current 

UTI Bond Fund  10  2,765  2,281 
UTI Floating Rate Fund  1,000  705,166  705,166  705,166  1,917  1,757  1,610 

10  1,250,000  1,250,000  1,250,000  16  -    -    15  14  -   
10  1,285,737  1,285,737  1,285,737  -    18  16  -    15  -   
10  1,796  1,796  -    4  4  -    9  -   
10  150,118  150,118  -    4  4  -    -    -   
10  9,576,780  9,576,780  9,576,780  122  -    -    113  104  -   

 10  922,112  922,112  922,112  12  -    -    11  10  -   

10  1,500,000  1,500,000  1,500,000  19  -    -    18  16  -   
Reliance Yearly Interval Fund 10  229,596  229,596  229,596  -    3  3  -    3  -   

10  -    12  11  -    -    -   
10  -    -    1  -    -    -   
10  22  -    -    20  19  -   
10  1,106,570  1,106,570  1,106,570  14  -    -    13  12  -   
10  1,050,000  -    -    -    -    11  -   
10  -    -    -    -    -    -   
10  689,066  993,817  -    13  16  -    -    -   
10  51  -    -    47  43  -   

Reliance Annual Interval Fund Series 6 10  1,193,898  1,193,898  1,193,898  -    17  15  -    14  -   
10  -    114  105  -    -    -   
10  -    7  6  -    -    -   

 10  24  -    -    22  20  -   

10  8,701,595  8,701,595  8,701,595  111  -    -    102  94  -   
10  56  -    -    52  48  -   
10  2,500,000  -    -    -    -    27  -   
10  9,300,000  -    -    -    -    102  -   
10  3,800,000  3,800,000  3,800,000  48  -    -    45  41  -   

Reliance Annual Interval Fund Series 6 10  -    10  9  -    9  -   
23  1,200  -    -    -    -    -    -   
10  1,229,512  1,229,512  1,229,512  16  -    -    15  13  -   
10  -    104  99  -    -    -   
10  51  -    -    47  44  -   
10  56  -    -    52  48  -   
10  9,300,000  -    -    -    -    102  -   
10  12,220,000  -    -    -    -    133  -   
10  2,150,000  2,150,000  2,150,000  27  -    -    25  23  -   

Reliance Annual Interval Fund Series 6 10  367,353  367,353  367,353  -    5  5  -    4  -   
10  -    154  140  -    -    -   
10  -    9  8  -    -    -   
10  47  -    -    43  40  -   
10  6,230,813  -    390  373  -    343  -   
10  281,561  -    -    7  -    -    -   

Reliance Annual Interval Fund Series 6 10  1,836,767  1,836,767  1,836,767  -    25  23  -    22  -   
10  535  -    -    496  457  -   
10  5,559,895  5,559,895  5,559,895  71  -    -    65  60  -   
10  28,000,000  28,000,000  28,000,000  353  -    -    326  301  -   
10  3,100,000  -    -    -    -    34  -   
10 21,788 254,410 11,413 184,007  35,195 100,380 
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7 Loans (unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non Current
Employee related loans and advances  2  3 

 125  125  125 

Others  1  1  3 
 3  4  7 

Current
Employee related loans and advances  25  31  21 

 25  31  21 

8 Trade Receivables

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

 12,026  11,181 
 6  6  7 

 12,026  13,234  11,181 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Within the credit period  11,688  10,967 
 238  180 

 69  7  9 
More than 180 days past due  31  9  25 

 12,026  13,234  11,181 
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9 Other Financial Assets (unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non-current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
     Security deposits  113  106  130 
     Others  128  128  128 
Financial assets carried at fair value

 
designated in hedge accounting relationships

 366 

 241  234  624 
Current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
 Claims  72  69 

 1  1 
 20  39 

 386  512 

Derivatives designated and effective as hedging instruments carried at fair 
value

72 32
Financial assets carried at fair value

hedge accounting relationships
 163  220 

accounting relationships
 366 

 951  1,483  2,022 

10 Inventories

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials  13,650  17,295  13,158 

 1,232 

 Vehicle  12,330  7,695  8,633 
 Vehicle spares and components  389 
Traded goods
 Vehicle spares and components  2,629  2,526  1,988 
Stores and spares  861 
Loose Tools  859  732  570 

 32,637  31,326  26,831 

     Raw materials  6,860  5,186 
     Stock in trade  26 
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` 525,920 million (previous 
year `

` 29 million (previous year `

11

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Balances with Banks  205 
 6  3 

 85  66 
Cash in hand  2  2  3 

 227  432  277 

 37 
 31 

Unclaimed dividend accounts  8  7  6 
 8  75  6 

 235  507  283
 227   432   277  

12 Other Assets (unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non-current
 5,126 

 33 

 3,929  3,390 
 7,950  8,151  8,523 

 79  83  68 
 27  27  27 

 Others  32  59 
 16,033  16,796  16,447 
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Current
 Balance with customs, port trust and other government authorities  9,917  11,668  7,557 
 Claims  1,161  1,282 

 256 
 Advances to related parties  980  686  939 

 2,936  2,722 
 92 

 15,408  16,611  12,628 

* Includes capital advance given to related parties ` ` `

13 Equity Share Capital

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

`

`

 18,720  18,720  18,720 

`

`

 1,510  1,510  1,510 

 1,510  1,510  1,510 

13.1 Rights, preference and restriction attached to shares 
`

 

13.2 Reconciliation of number of shares            

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number of 
shares

Amount Number of 
shares

Amount Number of 
shares

Amount

 302,080,060  1,510  302,080,060  1,510  302,080,060  1,510 
 302,080,060  1,510  302,080,060  1,510  302,080,060  1,510 
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13.3 Details of shares held by the holding company         

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number of 
shares

Amount Number of 
shares

Amount Number of 
shares

Amount

Suzuki Motor Corporation, Japan  
 169,788,440  849  169,788,440  849  169,788,440  849 

13.4 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares     

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Number of 
shares

% 
holding

Number of 
shares

% 
holding

Number of 
shares

% 
holding

Suzuki Motor Corporation  

 17,382,016  17,932,030 

13.5 Shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash (during 5 years 
immediately preceding 31st March 2017)

`

14 Other Equity

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Capital reserve  2  2  2 
 29,309  29,309 

Securities premium reserve
Reserve created on amalgamation  9,153  9,153  9,153 
Retained earnings  319,627  257,353  216,115 

 6,909 
 21 

 369,241  304,650  258,710 
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14.1 Capital reserves

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 2  2 

Movement
Balance at end of year  2  2 

14.2 General reserve

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 29,309 

Balance at end of year  29,309  29,309 

14.3 Securities premium reserve

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Movement
Balance at end of year  4,241  4,241 

14.4 Reserve created on amalgamation

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 9,153  9,153 
Movement
Balance at end of year  9,153  9,153 
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14.5 Retained earnings

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 257,353  216,115 
 75,099 

 

Related income tax

Balance at end of year  319,627  257,353 

` 35 per share, total dividend ` ` 25 per share, total dividend ` 7,552 

` `

` `

`

14.6 Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income     

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 2,361  99 
 3  6 

Balance at end of year  6,909  4,545 

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 21 

 25 
Balance at end of year  -    47 
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15 Non-Controlling Interests

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 10  10 

Balance at the end of the year  154  144 

incorporation 

and principal interest

 India  10  10 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

 192  180  172 
Current assets  168 

 161  150  138 

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Revenue  890  837 
Expenses  867 

 23  23 
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income  21  21 

 12  12 
 11  11 
 23  23 

Other comprehensive income for the year  (2)  (2)
 11  11 
 10  10 

Total comprehensive income for the year  21  21 
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16 Borrowings

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non-current
     Unsecured

 869 
 579 

 -    -    1,448 
Current
 Unsecured

 

 4,836  774  354 

16.1 Summary of borrowing arrangements
1. Loans from banks include:
Loan amounting to ` ` `

`
`

`

Loan amounting to ` ` `

` ` `

` ` 579 
`

` `
`

16.2 Breach of loan agreement 
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17 Other Financial Liabilities

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Current
 1,535 

 8,308  6,203  5,695 
 1,333 

Interest accrued  27  228 
Unclaimed dividend *  8  7  6 

 590 
Others  37  37  7 

 13,028  11,978  11,319 

18 Provisions                

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non-current

 63  56  53 
Other provisions

 156  92  150 
 219  148  203 

Current

 3  2  1 
 2,106 

Other provisions
 2,081 

 213  168 
   Others  9 

 4,498  3,994  4,093 

Details of other provisions         

Others

2016-2017 2015-2016 2016-2017 2015-2016 2016-2017 2015-2016
 2,081  333  318  9 

Addition during the year  100  687  919 
Utilised during the year  651 
Reversed during the year  11  570  9 

Balance as at the end of the year  1,734  1,645  369  333  -    -   
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Others

31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015 01.04.2015
 156  92  150 

 2,081  213  168  9 
Total  1,734  1,645  2,081  369  333  318  9 

Provision for warranty and product recall

Provision for litigation / disputes

19 Deferred Tax Balances             

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

 6,038  6,322  5,589 
 11,096  8,609  6,753 

Net deferred tax liabilities  5,058  2,287  1,164 

Opening 
Balance

Recognised in Recognised in 
OCI

Adjustments* Closing 
Balance

2015-2016
Deferred tax assets

 1,936  1,936 
 726  8  38  1,237 

 189 
 69 

Others  112 
 5,589  381  38  314  6,322 
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Opening 
Balance

Recognised in Recognised in 
OCI

Adjustments* Closing 
Balance

Deferred tax liabilities
  5,355  606 

 1,500  1,927 
Investment in equity instruments  37  31 

 618  550  1,585 
 11  25 

 

and associates

 305  33  338 

 6,753  825  8  1,023  8,609 

Net deferred tax liabilities  1,164  444  (30)  709  2,287 

2016-2017
Deferred tax assets

 2,092 
 1,936  1,772 
 1,237  58  272  1,661 

 189  75  256 
 69  19  88 

Others  105  17  169 
 6,322  (459)  58  117  6,038 

Deferred tax liabilities
  122 

 1,927 
Investment in equity instruments  31  28 

 1,585  223  1,725 
 25 

 

and associates

 338  50  388 

 8,609  2,334  (28)  181  11,096 

Net deferred tax liabilities  2,287  2,793  (86)  64  5,058 
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20 Other Liabilities

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Non-current
 11,055  8,075 
 11,055  8,075  6,249 

Current
 5,057 

 2,652 
Statutory dues  5,239  2,909 
Others  101  22 

 18,278  11,650  9,771 

21 Trade Payables

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

 832  533  590 
 82,860  73,556  56,270 
 83,692  74,089  56,860 

22 Current Tax 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Current tax assets

Current tax liabilities
 8,036  7,956  7,311 
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23 Revenue From Operations

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Sale of products (including excise duty)
 Vehicles  696,253  583,858 

 65,308  55,835 
 761,561  639,693 

Other operating revenues
 3,781 

 3,835  3,569 
 889  776 

 35  703 
    Rental income  370  319 
    Others  2,227 

 11,603  11,362 
773,164 651,055

24 Other Income

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Interest income on
   Bank deposits  17  7 

 885 

   Advance to vendors  16  3 
   Others  2  78 

 378  1,518 
Dividend income

 129  107 
 129  107 

Other gains and losses
 99 

 978 
 12,203 

 273 
 22,389  13,181 
 22,896  14,806 
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25 Material Consumed

25.1 Cost of materials consumed 

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 17,295  13,158 
 358,970 

 13,650  17,295 
 426,279  354,833 

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Opening balances
Work in progress  1,232 

     Vehicle  7,695  8,633 
     Vehicle spares and components  389 
Traded goods
     Vehicle spares and components  2,526  1,988 

 12,305  12,242 
Closing balances
Work in progress

     Vehicle  12,330  7,695 
     Vehicle spares and components
Traded goods
     Vehicle spares and components  2,629  2,526 

 16,986  12,305 

 888  111 
 (3,793)  48 

26

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Salaries and wages  21,028  17,580 
 892 

 1,601  1,531 
 23,603  20,003 
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27 Finance Costs

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

   Foreign currency loans  26 

 292 
 893 

 1  3 
 894  817 

28 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

27,005
 1,213 

 26,039  28,218 

29 Other Expenses

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

` 673 million (previous year `  5,186 
 257 

 1,711  1,866 

 398 
Insurance  151  151 

 1,820 
Royalty

 3,833 
 1,008 

Advertisement  7,265 
Sales promotion  5,516 
Warranty and product recall  687  919 

 5,182 
 632 
 896  786 

Other miscellaneous expenses*  10,783  9,259 
 87,280  80,542
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Note on Corporate Social Responsibility           
` 893 million

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 -    -   

 896  786 

 896  786 
Total        896  786 

               

30 Income Taxes

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Current tax
 23,369 
 23,369 

Deferred tax  2,793 
 2,793 

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year     26,162  20,875 
                

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

101,272 75,847

Additional deduction on plant and machinery

 311  266 
Investment in associates and joint ventures

 50  33 
Others  103  99 

 26,162  20,875 

 



Maruti Suzuki India Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

30.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)
Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income

 3  6 
 25 
 58  38 

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  86  30 

 61 
 25 
86 30

31 Segment Information

31.1 Group wide disclosure      

Overseas Total

Revenue from operations
773,164

599,077 51,978 651,055

Non current segment assets
149,673
140,491
143,205
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32 Earnings Per Share

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Basic earnings per share (`)       
Diluted earnings per share (`)

per share
75,110

 302,080,060  302,080,060 

33

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 77  69 
 10  9 

 266  261 

 

Investment risk               
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Interest risk 

     

Longevity risk 

Salary risk               

 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

As at 31.03.17

25 25 25 25

As at 31.03.16

26  26  26 26

As at 01.04.15

22 22 22 22

 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

Year ended 31.03.17
Current service cost  222  122  12 

 163 
 485  843  122  16 

Year ended 31.03.16
Current service cost  202  96  10 

 213 
 5 

 415  557  96  15 
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Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

Year ended 31.03.17

 108 
 151 

 1 
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense

asset ceiling

comprehensive income
 -    -    167  (8)

Year ended 31.03.16

 107 
 2 

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense  3 

asset ceiling

comprehensive income
 -    -    112  (11)

 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

As at 31.03.17
 13,938  66 

 309  (2,548)  4  (66)
 309 

Net asset / (liability)   -    (2,548)  -    (66)

As at 31.03.16
 11,590  2,106  1,991  58 

 94  2,106  3  (58)
 3 

Net asset / (liability)  -    (2,106)  -    (58)
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Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

As at 01.04.15
 9,563 
 9,632  1,737 

 69  (1,834)  3  (54)
 69  3 

 -    (1,834)  -    (54)

 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

As at 31.03.17
 63 

 3 

Total  -    2,548  -    66 

As at 31.03.16
 56 

 2,106  2 

Total  2,106  58 

As at 01.04.15
 53 

 1 

Total  -    1,834  -    54 

 
Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

Year ended 31.03.17
Present value of obligation as at the beginning  11,590  2,106  1,991  58 
Current service cost  222  122  12 
Interest expense or cost  1,075  163  159  5 

 1,325 
 18 

 62  110  3 
 396  151 

Present value of obligation as at the end  13,938  2,548  2,401  66 
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Fund

Leave 
 

Compensated 

Employees 
 

Fund

Retirement 
Allowance

Year ended 31.03.16
Present value of obligation as at the beginning  9,563  1,834  1,734  54 
Current service cost  201  96  10 
Interest expense or cost  870  5 

 1,137 

 2 
 211  107 

 2 

Present value of obligation as at the end  11,590  2,106  1,991  58 

Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows: 

 
Fund

Employees 

Year ended 31.03.17
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning  11,684  1,994 
Interest income  1,028  159 

 290 
 1,325 

Fair value of plan assets as at the end  14,247  2,405 
Year ended 31.03.16
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning  9,632  1,737 
Interest income  870  157 

 208 
 1,137 

 15 
Fair value of plan assets as at the end  11,684  1,994 

Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets) 

 
Fund

Employees 

As at 31.03.17

Special deposit scheme

Total 100% 100%
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Fund

Employees 

As at 31.03.16

Special deposit scheme

Total 100% 100%

 
Fund

Employees 
 

Fund

As at 01.04.15

Special deposit scheme

Total 100% 100%

 

` ` `
 

Sensitivity analysis

` `
` ` `  

`

`
` ` ` ` 270 

`

` `
` ` ` `

` `
` ` ` `
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34

34.1 Financial instruments by category

 

As at 31.03.2017
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised 

cost
FVOCI Amortised 

cost

FVOCI Amortised 

cost

Financial assets
Investments *

 7,301 
 276,198  135,575 

 12,026  11,181 
 235  507  283 

Loans  28  35  28 
Security deposits  113  106  130 
Claims  72  69 

contracts

 163  72  886  32 

Interest accrued  21  5 

Others  271 
 276,361  7,301  13,318  196,094  5,011  14,747  136,461  4,871  13,220 

Financial liabilities
Borrowings  1,802 

 1,535 
 83,692  56,860 

others

 1,333 

 8,308  6,203  5,695 
Interest accrued  27  228 
Unclaimed dividend  8  7  6 

 590 
Others  37  37  7 

 -    -    101,556  -    -    86,841  -    -    69,981 

`  

` `
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Fair value hierarchy                 

As at 31.03.2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

6  237,111  39,087  276,198 
9  163  163 

   Financial instruments at FVTOCI
6  6,984 

      Unquoted equity instruments 6  317  317 
 244,095  39,250  317  283,662 

As at 31.03.2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

6  153,760  195,420 
9  674 

   Financial instruments at FVTOCI
6  4,732 

      Unquoted equity instruments 6  207  207 
9  72  72 

 158,492  42,406  207  201,105 

As at 01.04.2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

6  88,725  135,575 
9  886  886 

   Financial instruments at FVTOCI
6  4,606 

      Unquoted equity instruments 6  233  233 
9  32  32 

 93,331  47,768  233  141,332 
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Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement          

Unlisted equity 
instruments

As at 01.04.2015  233 
Acquisition  -   

As at 31.03.2016  207 
Acquisition

 110 
As at 31.03.2017  317 

Risk Measurement    Management    

Credit risk

measured at amortised cost

Aging analysis  

Credit rating deposits, credit limits and 

Liquidity risk

Future commercial transactions

denominated in Indian rupee (`

 

Sensitivity analysis contracts

Foreign currency options
Sensitivity analysis Interest rate swaps
Sensitivity analysis
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As at 

31.03.2017

As at As at 

7 125 125 125
8 6 6 7
9

` ` 29,650 
`  

(i) Financing arrangements 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Floating rate     
 29,650  28,880 

 28,450  29,650  28,880 

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities
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Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at 31 Mar 2017
Borrowings

 83,692  83,692 

 13,028  -    13,028 
 101,556  -    101,556 

Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at 31 Mar 2016
Borrowings

 11,978  -    11,978 
 86,841  -    86,841 

Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

As at 1st April 2015
Borrowings  1,802 

 56,860  56,860 

 11,319  -    11,319 
 68,533  1,448  69,981 

(i) Foreign currency risk

periods expressed in `

EURO

As at 31st March 2017
Financial assets

 38 
Foreign exchange derivative contracts

 2,248  2,224  38  -    -   
Financial liabilities

 1,392  8 
Foreign exchange derivative contracts

 3,472  1,392  864  8  -   
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EURO

As at 31st March 2016
Financial assets

 1,093  106 
Foreign exchange derivative contracts

 300  1,093  106  -    -   
Financial liabilities
Borrowings  1,535 

 18,389  2,090  2,206  2  2 
Foreign exchange derivative contracts

 16,344  2,090  1,761  2  2 

EURO

As at 1st April 2015
Financial assets

 11  1,690  11 
Foreign exchange derivative contracts

 11  1,690  11  -    -   
Financial liabilities
Borrowings

 2,315  1,336  5 
Foreign exchange derivative contracts

 7,633  2,315  466  5  -   

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

`

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

` 
strengthens 

by 10%

` 

by 10%

` 
strengthens 

by 10%

` 

by 10%

 1,632 
 83  253 

   EURO Impact  161  213 
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(ii) Interest rate risk
The Company had External Commercial Borrowing post merger 

`

(iii) Security price risk

Equity price sensitivity analysis

If the equity prices had been 5% higher / lower:

`
`

Exposure in mutual funds

Mutual fund price sensitivity analysis

 
` `

34.3 Capital management
 

capital   

through investment policies and guidelines requiring adherence 
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As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

 2,309  5,156 

 1,877 
Total equity  370,751  306,160  260,220 

34.4 Foreign exchange derivative contracts 

 

Outstanding Contracts Foreign Currency 

 5,398  72 

 2,279  32 
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35 Details of Group Companies

Sl Relationship

Incorporation As on  
31st March 

2017

As on  

31st March 

2016

As on  

31st March 

2015

1 Maruti Insurance Business Agency Limited India
2 India
3 True Value Solutions Limited India

India
5 Maruti Insurance Agency Solutions Limited India
6 Maruti Insurance Agency Services Limited India
7 Maruti Insurance Agency Logistic Limited India
8 Maruti Insurance Broker Limited India
9 India

10  Joint Venture India
11  Joint Venture India
12 Bharat Seats Limited Associates India
13 Jay Bharat Maruti Limited Associates India

Associates India
15 Caparo Maruti Limited Associates India
16 Associates India
17 Krishna Maruti Limited Associates India
18 Associates India
19 Associates India
20 Mark Exhaust Systems Limited Associates India
21 Associates India
22 Associates India
23 Krishna Ishizaki Auto Limited Associates India

Associates India
25 Associates India
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35.2  Additional information as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as 
Subsidiaries/Associates/Joint Ventures.

As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016 As at 1st April 2015

As a % of 
Consolidated  

Net Asset

Amount
Consolidated  

Amount
Consolidated  

Amount
Consolidated 

Total 
Comprehensive 

Income

Amount
Consolidated 

Total 
Comprehensive 

Income

Amount

Parent Company  
1 Maruti Suzuki India Limited  361,711  53,713 

Subsidiaries  
1 Maruti Insurance Business Agency Limited  1,381  67  77 

2
Limited

 229  215  13 

3 True Value Solutions Limited  2  2  3 

 390  370  20  22 

5 Maruti Insurance Agency Solutions Limited  286  272  257  15 

6 Maruti Insurance Agency Services Limited  70  66  62 

7 Maruti Insurance Agency Logistic Limited  176  169  156  7  13 

8 Maruti Insurance Broker Limited  2  2  2 

9  315  272  21  22 

Total of Subsidiaries  0.73%  2,682 0.81%  2,545 0.90%  2,393 0.20%  137 0.28%  152 

Minority Interests in all subsidiaries  10  10 

Joint Ventures  

1  180  121  38  21 

2
Limited

 1,017  820  650  197  170 

Total of Joint Ventures  0.32%  1,197 0.32%  962 0.30%  771 0.30%  235 0.35%  191 

 2 

Associates  

1 Bharat Seats Limited  92  79  13  5 

2 Jay Bharat Maruti Limited  892  639  152  101 

3  97  95  88  2  7 

Caparo Maruti Limited  357  325  338  32 

5  751  690  639  61  51 

6 Krishna Maruti Limited  363  285  128  78 

7  353  156  110  197 

8  5 

9 Mark Exhaust Systems Limited  256  235  232  21  3 

10
Limited

 289  171  238  118 

11  65 

12 Krishna Ishizaki Auto Limited  119  87  32 

13
Limited 

 1 

 2,587  1,798  1,186  789  612 

Total of Associates 1.83%  6,810 1.80% 5437 1.71% 4439 1.93% 1492 1.81% 998 

 11 

 10 

Total  100.00%  370,905 100.00%  306,304 100.00%  260,354 100.00%  77,326 100.00%  55,040 
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36 Related Party Transactions

36.1 Description of related parties

Holding Company
Suzuki Motor Corporation 

Key Management Personnel 

Joint Ventures

Associates  
Bharat Seats Limited
Caparo Maruti Limited 
Jay Bharat Maruti Limited
Krishna Maruti Limited 

Mark Exhaust Systems Limited 

Krishna Ishizaki Auto Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries (only with whom the Company had 
transactions during the current year)

Magyar Suzuki Coproration
 

 

 

 

Suzuki Italia Spa

Suzuki Motor de Mexico, SA de CV

Suzuki Motorcycle India Limited

 
 

 

35.3
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36.2 Transaction with related parties

For the year 
ended 

31.03.2017

For the year 
ended 

25,660 6,558
 5,500  5,520 

 6,691  6,077 
 7,863  9,062 

 45,714  27,217 

 120  2,019 
 235 
 355  2,019 

 15,116  11,673 

 10,768 
 13,230 

 6,776 

 97,192  90,787 

 3,036 

 1,192 
 1,372  1,963 

 156  276 
 65  1 

 5,821  5,203 

 13  156 
 23 

 13  179 

 660 
 67  62 
 6  5 

 81  110 
 814  761 
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For the year 
ended 

31.03.2017

For the year 
ended 

 90  27 

 189 
 129 

 233  260 
 129 

 290 

 1,077  779 

 385  883 
 1 

 386  883 

 5,943  4,245 

 38,480  32,443 

 155 

 82  65 
 70  98 

 633  532 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

 2,309  3,718  283 
 55  22  23 

 582 
 12 

 327  320 
 4,063  4,649  1,683 

 127  117  53 

 189  203 
 318  677 

 326 
 1  1  1 

 19  6  5 
 980  686  939 
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As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

 -    5 

 37  27 
 53  133 
 33  98 
 76  106  320 

 51  256 
 3 

 30 
 624  274  846 

 306 

 152  173  122 
 38  396 
 3  1 

 622  904  975 

 1,632 
 85  117 

 4,052  2,531  1,749 

 1,159 
 -    614  1,159 

 19,165  17,787 
 10,723  6,350 

 572  692 
 1,852 

 32,312  29,974  21,618 

 1,063  11 

 303  19  169 
 101 

 236  37 
 17 

 1,812  1,755  217 
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36.3 Key management personnel compensation

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

 161  181 
5 8
1 1

Total Compensation  167  190 

 22  19 
 20  17 

 31  29 
Others  28  51 
Total Compensation  167  190 

37 Operating Lease Arrangements

The Group as a Lessee
Leasing arrangements

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Within one year  59  56  56 
 250 

 562 
 741  797  852 

The Group as a Lessor 
Leasing arrangements 

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

Within one year  88  50 
 393 

 1,351 
 1,744  1,794  -   
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38 Commitments Under Letter of Credit

` ` 1,671 
`

39 Capital Commitment

amounting to ` ` `

40 Contingent Liabilities

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

(i) Excise Duty         
 1,585  7,123  2,965 

 11,751  11,099 

 7,019  15,670 

Total         13,336  25,241  32,376 
Amount deposited under protest         1,598  1,561  383 

(ii) Service Tax         
 715  385 

 2,602  3,318 

 183 

Total         3,681  4,234  5,480 
Amount deposited under protest         52  22  19 

(iii) Income Tax         
 11,572  7,778  6,033 

 21,825 

Total         56,264  40,032  27,858 
Amount deposited under protest         5,172  5,172 

(iv) Custom Duty         

appeals        
 108  108  103 

 51  32 

Total  159  151  135 
Amount deposited under protest  22  22  22 

(v) Sales Tax         

appeals
 70  70  56 

Amount deposited under protest  20  20 
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` 10,317 

`

` `
` ` ` 19 

`

 

`

41

the entitlement period is `

` `  
`

42  

As at 
31.03.2017

As at As at 

(vi) Claims         
 734  329  342 

(vii) Group's share in Associate's and Joint Venture's Contingent 
Liabilities 

 263  227  13 
 1,267  927  1,360 

 66  59  3 
 258  302  368 
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Insurance Agency Solutions Limited, Maruti Insurance Agency 
Services Limited, Maruti Insurance Agency Logistics Limited and 

43.  

The Company has evaluated this arrangement with respect to 

44 2016 to 30th December 2016

(Amount in `
Other denomination notes Total

 10,500  5,059,669  5,070,169 

45 Auditors' Remuneration *#@

Year ended 
31.03.2017

Year ended 

Statutory audit
Taxation matters

`

@ includes ` `
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46 First Time Adoption of Ind As

46.1 Transition elections          

to the certain exception and certain optional exemptions availed 

Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment and other 
intangible assets     

Leases 

opted to determine whether an arrangement existing at the 

Investments in subsidiaries, joint controlled entities and 
associates in separate financial statements   

Designation of equity investments at FVTOCI 
Ind AS 101 allows an entity to designate previously recognised 

               
46.2 Reconciliation of equity, total comprehensive income 

with as reported in previous years as per previous Indian 
GAAP     
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total 
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Reconciliation of total equity as at 31st March 2016 and 1st April 2015      

adoption
31st March  

2016
1st April  

2015

Total equity (shareholder's fund) as per previous GAAP  277,487  243,184 

1  7,101 
1
2
3  12,725  9,090 

Impact in investment in Joint Venture and Associates 
6 3,656

 28,673 17,036

Total equity as per Ind AS  306,160  260,220 

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March 2016    

adoption
Year ended 

 46,998 

1
2

 101 
Impact in investment in Joint Venture and Associates 7

6
 7,974 

 54,972 

Other comprehensive income

Fair value gain on equity instruments 1  99 
5
6  30 

Total other comprehensive income  68 

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS  55,040 

 Adjustments Ind AS

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  155  -    155 
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st April 2015  277  -    277 

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March 2016      432   432  
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these investments (other than equity instruments designated as 

period and the associated service claim cost is recognised as an 

Ind AS, such dividends and related corporate dividend tax are 

at 1st April 2015 and 31st March 2016 included under provisions 

and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in 

 

is recognised in other comprehensive income and taken to 

associates

47 

KENICHI AYUKAWA SHIGETOSHI TORII AJAY SETH S. RAVI AIYAR

Managing Director & CEO

DIN : 02262755

Director 
DIN : 06437336

Executive Director (Legal)  
& Company Secretary

ICSI MEMBERSHIP NO : F1734

Place: New Delhi

Date: 27th April 2017
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Report on the performance of subsidiaries, associates 

overall performance of the Company during the period 
under report

Subsidiaries

J. J. Impex (Delhi) Private Limited 

True Value Solutions Limited

Other Subsidiaries 

surveyor, loss assessor and third party administrator with regard 

Joint Ventures and Associates 

Other Companies

Limited

Annexure - A
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